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Iways ae iis very strange recurring dream. 
as a anal ae a trail drive, It seems 

There i is an argument about whether the y 
hould rustle the herd from the owner. I defend 

e rancher, tell the men that they're crazy to. think of | 
Ik too much. One of the men pulls a re- 

ad shoots me in the chest. And it is all so reall LE 
that slug burn; I can smell gunpowder and — 
can see jagged streaks of lightning seating 
sky; I can hear the excited chatter of the men 
er and farther away as I lie there dying. Then 

up, but it has all been sO reall! Am I actually re- _ 

gt 
just a little girl. We saw all the Heed 

sed to see; then, on a peculiar com- _ 
aske: fate husband to turn off on a. siderosd. 



: __ tive, but I knew that village. It sounds crazy to say it, 
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We had been strongly pdvised to keep to: ‘hee main é 
routes, but I had an unquenchable desire to take this 

: particular road. After we had driven a few miles, we — 
~ came to an obscure little village. It was dirty, unattrac- 

but I felt that I had lived there before. I knew the ar- 
rangement of the town square; I knew the path that d 
led to the lake; and most peculiar of all, I felt a great ; 
feeling of warmth toward a withered old couple sunning 

- themselves outside their hut. I actually felt as though 
_ they might have been my parents when I lived in ets 

village during a former incarnation.” 4 

on * % * 

- “J don’t know if this means I beKieyaei ia ae : 
sight or what, but when I first met Sarah, I felt that I 

had known her before. After we had dated for a while, 4 
she admitted that she had experienced the same sort of — 
feeling towards me. Just for fun, we checked all the 

Be places we had lived as kids or traveled through on vaca-_ 
tion trips, but we had never come within a thousand © 

‘miles of each other before we met. The weirdest part is” 
that I-feel that we've lived together before, maybe as — 
man and wife, maybe as brother and sister. We plan to 

_ be married soon. What else can we do? It seems as 
_though we have always been together.” a 

* * ** © 

Have you, as have my three correspondents cuoted : 
above, ever asked yourself, “How many people am IP” - 

Have you ever walked down a street in a strange city. 
and been overwhelmed with the sudden familiarity of 

its shop windows, sidewalks, and store fronts? 
Have you ever seemed to experience the arousal 



forgotten memo nae you lay at ease ale | 
ranqui mind? Or has a hidden memory — 

stimulated by witnessing a dramatic | re-enact- 
ome scene from the past? oes 

n my. article, “How: Many People Are You?” (Explor. 
he Unknown, February, 1963), I related the story 
‘18-year-old typist, Miss Dorothy Jordan of Bel- 

Ireland, who claimed to have recalled a past life 
tching a movie in Liverpool, England. ie 

1e theater seemed to become unnaturally dark, and 
nos! eerie silence oe the viewers of Tudor é 

aC ady jane bent her head to the chopping block, 2 
rical scream pierced the hush. Silhouetted — 

- screen was a young woman, waving her arms and — 
its all ere all wrong! I know; I was at the 

on!” 3 

ear was | 1936, and even the poorest student of 

ty When revived, pect ieee told a 
le story to a reporter for the Empire News. 
to the young typist, she had been transported — 
ther era while she sat watching the film. 

the screen flashed Lady Jane Grey waving — 
th tower window to her husband, Lord Guil-. 

ey, on his way to his own execution, Miss, 
zed that this was wrong. She knew the room 

it was impossible to look out of the window] 
g the execution scene jane she first real-_ 

sin ne movie that did ai agree ers the 
ie had a vivid poresen of the. executioner, 
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particularly the broad black hand around his wrists. 
When Lady Jane first saw him, Miss Jordan recalls that 
she shuddered and clung to her. Then Lady Jane knelt | 
to the block. They lifted her curls .. . and Miss Jordan 
saw no more. Apparently she fainted. __ 
When she regained consciousness, the surroundings 

seemed strange. She was amazed to find herself not in 
Tudor dress. She is absolutely convinced that the execu- 
tion happened just as she said. 

The reporter from the Empire News stated that Miss 
Jordan appeared to be frank, intelligent, and far from 
flighty. Upon investigation, it was learned that Miss Jor- 

_ dan had never displayed any particular interest in his- 
tory and had no knowledge of the various theories of 
reincarnation. 

If we choose to believe the earnest Miss jo and 
the investigation of the Empire News, then we will assess 
this case as an instance in which a young Irishwoman 
was prompted into reliving the memory of an execution 
‘which took place on Tower Hill, London, in 1554. 

The whole proposition becomies less laughable if we 
admit that, at one time or another, we have all felt 
familiarity in new surroundings, discovered an old house 
that evoked strange emotions, or had the deja vu ex- 

- perience of feeling “that’s happened to me before.” But 
is this “sense of the already known,” as it is called in 
parapsychology, reincarnation? Could it not be another 

manifestation of extrasensory perception, the powers | . 

that are man’s very own? Could it not-be genetic mem- 
ory, inherited flashes of memories transferred through 

_ our ancestors’ genes, just like the color of our hair and 
the size of our brains? | 

Not too many yearg ago, a farmer in Waurttemberg, 
_ Germany, claimed that he could draw plans of primi-- 

tive edifices ‘that had been erected on stakes in the. 
marshy Federsee district, many centuries ago. 

10 



. Mold gable for’ sien men “of science, | 
logists began excavations on the basis of the farm- 

drawings. It was discovered that the man had hardly 

tly where he had indicated that it would be. j 
When the archeologists returned to question the _ 

mmation, the man unhesitatingly told them that he _ 
ed in the primitive lake dwellings ee their — 

y habitation. — 
Reincarnation or genetic memory? 
i — about the actual possession of the living by 
ea 
mmer Nazi lieutenant, who had been stationed in _ 

this enigmatic personal memoir. 
ad received orders to establish quarters in an 
> Rhone valley villa e. Immediately upon arrival, 

| remote village was not so foreign to him after all. | 
As he strolled past a school house, he suddenly had a 
clear 2 d nostalgic memory of toiling at its cramped — 

700 den desks. In the same puzzling flash of recollection, 
2 remembered his parental home at the back of a small, 
ingy confectionary shop. 5 
f yung German officer traced a boyhood path that 

omewhere in subconscious memory patterns. The 
elderly woman who opened the creaking door of the 

; by house. blinked at him in bewilderment as he 

s a small alcove in this ‘house,” he managed 
ken French. “It has a small brown cupboard 

with many toys. A small, broken rocking horse 
s beside a large : stuffed dog. .. 
French woman was dumbfounded at first, een 

da thing. Even a hearth marked in one site was 

r in order to learn more about the source of his _ 

ds France during World War II, gave a news- 

jeutenant was seized by the bizarre sensation that _ 
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she became a little frightened. How pe a: Cinten 
officer, a stranger to their village, describe an amid 
room that he had never seen? - 

The lieutenant insisted on confvntes his description, 
and trembling with doubt and distrust, the old French- 
woman led him to the room, where, just as he had said, 

there stood a cupboard full of toys and a Be a horse 
near a stuffed dog. 

Her eyes glistening with tears, the Frenchwoman 
told the German officer that 21 years earlier her little © 
nine-year-old son had died. In respect of his memory, 
she rarely entered the room and had left all of his ati! 
scattered where he had last played with them. 

“On what date did your son die?” the young officer 
asked, his voice trembling with excitement. | 
“Why,” she hesitated, “on February 8th.” 
“That's. my birthday,” the lieutenant va sol 

emnly. | 
Had the little French boy been reborn as a Gerinauiea 

What strange odyssey had brought the boy back to his — 
home village in the person of an invading officer? Or 
had the young lieutenant beén temporarily possessed 
by the restless soul of the French boy? In the view of — 

- modern parapsychology, something of this sort could 
have been accomplished by the ae reception ts 
a discarnate memory pattern. a 

There are always plenty of such tales in circulation 
as that of the young German lieutenant, and some must 
be taken as embellished or completely imaginary anec- ” 
dotes conjured up by barroom orators, bored housewives, — Z 
or “true believers.” However, one dose occasionally en-— 

counter a carefully investigated and thoroughly docu-~ 
mented case study of a disturbingly well-founded claim ; 
of reincarnation. 

This book came into oe eee of By ee 
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several cases oe seem to be so ekcnives 
that any error of judgment on the part of — 

I have written ten books on such strange and inex- _ 
plicable phenomena as poltergeists, ghosts, the power _ 

phecy, and unidentified flying objects. I have pre- 
dozens of articles on the weird and the unknown 
ch magazines as Saga, Family Weekly, and Ex- 
g the Unknown. I am known to the many medi-— 
faith healers, prophets, and Ufologists whom I 

ye interviewed as a friendly skeptic, and wish to re- 
their stories accurately and objectively. As Long 
Nebel said over his radio show in June of 1967, 

‘ad Steiger has an Open mind, but there is certainly — 
no hole in it!” 

, I feel, have an open mind, aa I do believe in 
- existence of spiritual man (i.e. that man and mind — 

. mething other than physical things) but my entire 
; te ectual, papptonal, and epee bias is ee reine 374 

Th tajority. Bf Western man shares my prejudice “A A 
mine, who i is an Oriental, once told me that, in _ 

sstimation, Western man’s refusal to consider the 

rei a eed between East and West and a 

a which he has long held a ne 

' articulate and eee voices to be more 

studied. 

cate the i impressive "number of great minds who, 

vestigators seems completely out of the question. ety 

of reincarnation was the major barrier preventing _ 

use of an irritating number of cases that cry out _ 
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through de ages, have professed. their acceptance ‘of. 
reincarnation as reality. 

Because, and for this reason most of all, I, like so many 
others, have had those strange, illusory glimpses (could 
they really be memories?) of what seems to be a past 
life—glimpses so vivid that they must be more than past 

- a drama produced by the brain’s dream machinery . 
glimpses so powerful that they must be a product — of 
some as yet unnamed power of subconscious, the re- 
ception of telepathic impulses from incarnate or disin- 
carnate beings, the genetically transferred memory of a 
forgotten ancestor, or yes, a recollection of a past life. 

_ A Swedish scientist, Dr. Lund of Upsala University, 
has been conducting some remarkable experiments we 
subjects who claim to remember other lives. 

Lund records the case of a 40-year-old woman weit 
in the presence of witnesses, was hypnotized. While in 

this state, she was told that she was once again a child. 
At once the woman behaved in a child-like manner. A 
demonstration of hypnotically induced age regression is 
not, of course, at all unique. But when Lund suggested 
that the woman was once again a baby, the woman 
altered her actions to fit the role. | 
Then came the most remarkable aspect of the experi- 

ment. Dr. Lund suggested that the woman return to 
her mother’s womb. After a brief hesitation, the woman 
assumed the position of an embryo. ; a 

“Now,” Dr. Lund persisted, “what were you five years 
before your birth?” 

The woman’s normal voice became gruff _ and hoarse. 
“It’s very hot in here,” the voice on through the 
agency of the woman. 
“What is your name?” asked Dr. Lund, = oe 
-“Age Karlstrom.” ‘= 
“Your profession?” : eck: 
“I am a farmer in Miolbly,” she answered graly. 

14 ; 



man, in her memory as. iS Age Karlstrom, ony : 

ently investigated the woman’s former life and 
established evidence that a farmer named Age Karlstrom — 

had lived in Mjolbly. Four months before the woman's 
ri hhad died, leaving the three children whose 

es he had mentioned during the experiment as his a 

hann Wolfgang Gocthe, the great German Sean ee 
poet, was convinced that the soul inhabited those 

other, forcing the flesh to adapt itself without 
Goethe was a great believer in reincarnation, 

oar of death,” Goethe Pe “leaves me un- 
ce I am convinced that our spirit is indestruc- __ 

something which progresses perpetually from in- 
to the endless.” is 
very mention. of the subject of reincarnation, 

¢ ignores the vast amount of empirical evidence 
, tefusing even to, test the validity of phe- 
a unrecognized by his science. It would — 

e mental processes of even the most rigid 

1c I eet ca the subliminal self may continue to exist 

y, I can promise a most Pestle series 

\dventures. "Then, when all the evidence is in, each 
r must weight the various testimonies and serve _ 
wn ee and j suty. He may consider the evidence 

ie names of the children and several other details : 

-on a farm in Mjolbly. Dr. Lund’s assistants — : 

ies best fitted to its inherent nature, wandering from __ 

once” exclaimed to Charlotte Von Stein that in 

to consider that man may be more than flesh — = 
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damning and once and for all reject the hypothesis of 
reincarnation. On the other hand, he may consider the 
evidence inconclusive as yet and idee to further pur- 
sue the matter with a mind that is no longer closed to 
investigations of unorthodox subjects. Whatever his de- 
cision, the reader of this book will-not run the risk of 
being found guilty of having judged the mystery with- 
out first examining the evidence. 

BRAD STEIGER _ 
Decorah, lowa 



_ REMEMBRANCES OF LIVES PAST 

ms began accumulating research satocale for this me 
I contacted David D. Graham, publisher of Infinity — 

cases 6k reincarnation. : 
ave commiserated with me by stating that good _— 

ome by. “I assure you that such a book as the one 
rou are working on would be unique, due to the ee 

ese cases,” he added. ! 
Graham did place my name and address in “Infinity, 

wever, with a brief note stating the kind of material SS 
or which I was searching. 

suppose this chapter could be titled “Bridey Murphy ae 
Belt Style,” for. the individuals who offered their 
ries’ of a past life were most emphatic that they — 
do so under the protection and oo of 

ete. apa 

es makes these experiences seem so scarce _ 
is almost impossible to find individuals to go 
en er. have had ostensible memories of 

l letter, and told him of my desire to locate Ameri- | 

of reincarnation ‘here in the States were difficult — 
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A Midwestern housewife sim we o. Hes ieaioe 
- it about that she can regress others to the trance state 

where they apparently assume past personalities. If she 
does, she runs the risk of being branded a kook by her 
neighbors and a heretic by her church. 

A bright college student does not recite details of his 
‘spontaneous recall of a past life for fear of being iden- 
tified with the “flower children” who subsist on LSD 

cubes. If he does insist that his experience was real, he 
_ endangers his opportunities for employment upon grad- | 

uation. 
A successful businessman does not drop the bombshell 

( a of his recollection of a past life at the executive board 
meeting, or he will soon be seeking another position. 

_ Such are the difficulties in acquiring substantial cases 
of reincarnation. “You may use my experience, but un- 

_ der no circumstances are you to identify mel” I have 
been told on numerous occasions. Most of the alleged 
cases of reincarnation I would not use under any cir- 
cumstances—period! Often the alleged former life has 
clearly been the result of an excessively dramatic dream, 
an overactive imagination exploiting a psyche prone to 
suggestion, or, often, a deliberate attempt to “put one 
over on” the interviewer. 

There follow, though, four cases which seem to con- 
tain certain convincing elements related by subjects who. 

seem to be of a sincere and trustworthy nature. The 
names are not the actual names of the people involved, 

Case #1: Mrs, Rita Schmidt is an attractive blonde 
housewife in her mid-twenties. She has two children, is 
a devout Roman Catholic. Mrs. Schmidt has a most 
pleasant personality and is well liked by her conmotens: 
on-her part-time job. 

a Last spring Mrs. Schmidt engaged me in coupemetiagt 
_ concerning certain aspects of pyc ei as 

18 



hat she had read a number of my books and told 
at she had always been interested in the subject. | 
nat do you think of hypnosis?” she asked after we 

d visited for a few moments. a 
ot knowing precisely what information she was core 
by asking such a question, I gave a noncommittal 

swer. “As I tell my students,” I said, “it is nothing to 
ound with. Serious psychological damage can be — 

done during an amateur experiment in parlor hypnosis— 
chological damage that may take years of therapy to 

ct.” 
could tell by the expression on Mrs. Schmidt's face ri 

that she had not wanted a lecture on the possible ill 
effects of amateur experiments in hypnosis. “Do you | 

k it would be possible to bring a person back to an- 
“other life through hypnosis?” she asked. 
‘Thad known Mrs. Schmidt for over two years. If she — 

not already told me of her interest in ESP research, 

er. I live in a small Midwestern village where the 
t controversial topics discussed by the townspeople 
generally to do with how much moisture is Boo8 

t night’s stockcar race. I find the solitude aad quiet of 
all town most conducive to my writing, but I have 
m accustomed to the fact that there exist few peo-_ 

ch: Se in She category of the Not Interested. 
Some researchers believe that one might be able to 

1 a past life while in a deep hypnotic trance,” I 
cautiously, wanting Mrs. Schmidt to declare her- 

If further. 
he attractive young blonde matron was not one to 

. “Well, [ve done it,” she announced with a slight 
shy “I nbtought my sister back to another incarnation.” 

19 
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When Mrs. Schmidt % was 15, he ad Pa a paper- 
back book on hypnosis. A natural hypnotist, she was soon 
__ able to place subjects into the trance state after a quick 

_ reading of the book. 
Although one of her sisters resisted! Mrs. Schmidt's 

ie : hypnotic powers, her younger sister proved to be an ex- 
2, @ellent subject. “She knew I wouldn't hurt her and she 
trusted me completely,” Mrs. Schmidt said. 

oo Tae ee SS 
F “J 7 

Rey t Sy 

ee Re ee 

‘Soon word got around the small high school about the 
“teen- -aged hypnotist in their midst. Recess periods be- 
came much livelier now that Rita had Ge her 

_ hypnotic prowess. 
One day, during history class, the instructor hee: to 

scoff at his student’s claims and challenged her to demon- 
strate her ability right there in the classroom. | 

Such a skeptic-packed audience would have aide a 
__ professional hypnotist nervous. The conditions were not 

_ at all conducive toward an effective display of hypnosis. 
The room was brightly lighted, her classmates were 
tittering, and her history instructor was glaring his aig 
cism. 

Rita selected the biggest boy in the room as her aM 
ject. In spite of the unsatisfactory conditions under 
which she was forced to perform, she soon had her sub- 

_ ject entranced. : 
“TIl prove it,” she announced to her sone instruc- 

_ tor. “Ill prove he’s really under.” 
Rita took a straight pin and jabbed it into the boy's 

_ upraised palm. There was no tell-tale flinch of pain to 
testify that he was still awake and peer as a cO-con- 
spirator in any scheme of Rita’s. 
By the time Rita had finished putting her anes 

| through his paces, the history instructor was no longer 
skeptical of his student’s pwess as a first-class amateur 
hypnotist. 
_ Rita was ready to advance to new hypnotic horizons 

20 
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y the time tae summer acation: bad come. Tier paper- 
ack book was dog-eared and worn; its pages loose and - 
yrinkled. She had virtually memorized all of its contents. 

the lawn in the shade of a large tree. “How would you 
ike to try an experiment?” 

Sure, her sister agreed. “Like what?” 

remember any past lives.” 
“Do you think we-should?” Betty wondered. “I mean, 

is that sort of thing right?” 
E “You trust me, dont yout I won't let ie happen 
to you.” 
Soon Betty was lying relaxed, as her older sister spoke — 
to her in soothing tones. 
“You are now growing younger,” Rita told her. “You 

will remember only pleasant experiences in your past. 

“You are growing younger, younger, younger. You are — 
ving back through time, younger, younger, younger. 

Ou are going back through time and space, growing 
Ber, still younger. Now you are nine, _ eight, seven, 
Se younger, five Shou 6%) « Eanes a 

yO... one. 
Now ‘you are going farther back. Back to before you 
re born. You are going back into.a life which you 

before. I will count from six to zero and when I 
‘reach zero, I will count from zero to eighteen. When I 

h eighteen, you will be able to look around you and 
me all about yourself and what you see in your pre- 
us life. You will be able to speak to me in English.” 
ta began counting, first from six to zero, then from 

0 to eighteen. 
“You are now eighteen years old,” she told her sister 

aen she had counted off the last digit. “You are living 
a life before this one. You can look around and tell me 

lat you see. You will tell me about yourself in English.” 

4 

21 

etty,” she said one day as she and her sister lay on _ 

“Like. having me hypnotize you and see if you oF 
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aay opened he: eyes, ‘poke about, began to , talk 
Bac: Peay in a foreign tongue. 
_ Rita’s mouth dropped open in pee “English,” 
_ she managed at last. “You will speak to me in English!” 

_ She repeated the command three ‘times before the 
~ voice heeded her word. . 

“What is your name?” Rita asked 
Betty replied with a name that sounded like “Alana.” 

va le could possibly have been Elena or Elaine. — 
“Where do you live?” 
age _ Again the answer was unclear, but the word geri 
Peo iike: cand... 

“How are you dressed?” : 
“In a lovely long dress of many colors.” (Betty was 

wearing shorts. ) 
“What color is your hair?” 
“It is very black and I wear it long.” (Betty ead Rita 

- are both blondes. ) 
“What color are your eyes?” 
“Blue.” (Betty also has blue eyes. ) 
Rita continued to question the personality, Alana, 

__ fascinatedly taking down notes on their strange conver- 
_ sation. Then, all at once, she began to experience a sen- 
sation of dread and unease. She decided to bring Betty 

“back” to the present. 
3 “I am now going to bring you back,” Rita said, trying 

___ desperately to keep her voice calm. She gave the exact 
day of the week and the month, and the Mahi the 
correct time. 

_ “I will count from eighteen to zero, then from one te 
thirteen. When I finish counting, you will be here in the 

- present, thirteen years old.” 
Rita was most relieved when Betty returned as Betty 

and not as “Alana.” She tried the experiment one more 
time, and Betty once again relived a brief period of time 

-as “Alana.” Then doctor, clergyman, and parent . learned 

22 on 
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the teenager's experiments aa sternly called : a . halt 
her using her younger sister as a “guinea pig.” _ : 
“Someday,” Mrs. Schmidt said, “my sister and I might 
the experiments again. I believe that my sister really a 

d E begin to relive a past life.” 

Base #2: Mark Whitman is a bright college student 
- from Chicago. A bespectacled business major, Mark is 
typical of today’s hard-working, no-nonsense college 
“men. The world of the contemporary Joe College may 
_be a sphere of beautiful foldout girls, all night bull ses- 

yearning for the “good life,” but the environment of the 
male student is also one of great tensions and frustra- 
tions and the ominous knowledge that to goof-off is to 

_ armed forces. 
_ Todays college student has been conditioned to 
sharply differentiate between what is real and what is 
a: between what constitutes reality and what con- 

Beaded in their desire to seck a “somewhere over the 
rainbow” for a social security card. Materialism is the 

é philosophy which shapes their appraisal of “borderline” 
‘experience, and if they cannot touch, see, smell, or hear 
it, they will not believe it. Speculation is reserved only 
for what has already been accepted by the senile. 
Establishment.  __ 

_ Mark was a typical child of his time until he went 
abroad on a six-week summer study program. The result 
of the trip was to be a paper comparing the various 
economic systems of Europe with that of the United 

ates. The son of a well-to-do businessman, Mark’s 
ic passion was the world of high finance. He seldom 

iscussed other subjects, and he had a limited range of 
interests beyond the future of the marketplace. In fact, | 

| ae args: 

sions concerning various “playboy” philosophies, and a “a 

invite academic failure and thereby hasten a stint in the 

itutes fantasy. Most college students have long since ee 



it fook a eoneontinted effort Gh the part of Mark’s friends 
_ and the accompanying faculty advisor to talk the young 
_ man into a day of sight-seeing im the historic German 
city whete they were awaiting the arrival of another 

_ group of students from the States. - 
Mark made little effort to hide his boredom as the 

guide led the small group of tourists through one of the 
massive castles which had been reconditioned for sight- 
seeing. Then, in spite of himself, Mark began to take a 

keen interest in the German: guide’s recitation of the 
events of historical significance which had taken place 
in or near the castle. 

He felt his breathing become deeper and quicken. 
There was something about the stone hallways, the ar. 

. : mor on the walls, the paintings, the feel of the rough 
- floor beneath his feet that began to seem strangely fami- 
Sears ts 

. and this passageway leads to a dead-end,” the 
9 guide was saying. “The hall ends at a wall of solic 

stone.” 

: “Not so,” Mark blurted out. And no one nce: 
-. more startled at his comment than he. The guide starec 
at him as if one of the suits of armor had suddenly 

spoken. Seldom did anyone interrupt his tour lecture 
and no one had ever stopped his recitation. to argue 

_ These rude Americans! 
“What did you say, Mark?” the faculty jd to the 

‘group of young economists asked. 
‘I—I said that the guide is wrong when ee says that 

_ - passageway leads to a dead-end,” Mark replied. 
_ The German guide regarded the young Rncricss 

_ coolly. “So how is it that I am wrongt he demagikd: 0 
__ his questioner. 
“Tell him, Mark,” one of his friends laughed. “Ol 
Mark, who nearly flunked European me is now Be 

oe ing to lecture on it castles!” e 

ne 24 



fark was blushing ae ely: “What I : say is trues We 58 
‘Well, then,” the guide snapped, unholstering a flash- _ 

” 

ct! 

continue?” a 
ol” the guide said firmly. “This young man called, mi 
liar, and I must prove to him that he is wrong!” eo 

% “T didn't call you a liar,” Mark objected. “I only meant : 
that you were mistaken in saying that ee passageway 

sads to a wall of stone.” Hae 
e guide tumed on his heel. “Follow me then!” 

e dark passageway, he played his Hashlight beam 
umphantly over a dank wall. ‘ 
Do you not call that a wallP” he asked Mark. “Is that 

wall of solid stone?” é 
Mark leaned his hand against the damp surface . the | 

of time.” 
collective groan went up from Mark's fellow stu- 
. “Cool it, Mark,” one advised him. “Leave it lone 
e can get on oat the tour, = 
ut he seems so certain,” said a well- aed English- 

ssageway out of curiosity. “Isn't there someway you — 
ght check it for him?” a 
The guide looked -as if he were eae providing 

‘ourists with yet another rare sight, that of spon- 
us human combustion. 

Je iding upon self-control as the best means of keep- _ 

let us walk down the peereerey and see who is aa 

lark,” oe faculty adviser sighed, blinctig at his ; 2 
ch, “time is growing short and we have other places __ 
see. Why don’t you just apologize to: the guide and S25 

ter the guide had led the members of the group ~ . 
had elected to follow him about sixty feet down 

“No,” he said, slowly enene his head. “There is _ : 

‘This wall has been. added at a relatively recent eG 

” man, who had fatiowed the group down the dank © = 
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: e ing he job, ae guide oes his aah in an . official 
smile. “Today is Wednesday. The curator is in his office 

on the main floor today. Perhaps if the young man will 
‘speak to the curator he will be satisfied. Now, let the 
rest of us continue our tour!” 

: To the amazement of his classmates, Mark did not 
Tet the matter drop. Two of them, together with their 

faculty adviser, left the main group of tourists and fol- 
lowed their determined friend to the curator’s office: 

The curator listened patiently to Mark’s story, asking 
_. him occasionally to repeat certain phrases, because, as 
__. he explained, his “American was not as okay as it should 
er.” \ 
“You are quite mistaken, young friend,” the historian 

said with a note of finality after Mark had completed 
his contention that a room existed beyond the stone wall 
which sealed off the ancient corridor. 

“Can't you check it?” Mark asked. “I'm certain that 
- you are wrong.” 

' The curator arched a craggy eyebrow, then scowled. 
“What is it that makes you such an authority on this 
castle?” he wanted to know. 

But by now Mark’s fierce detorminalen had become 
contagious. “You must have some old blueprints of the 
castle,” the faculty adviser said. “Perhaps you can match 
them against Mark’s story.” 

The curator broke his stony silence by suddenly reach- 
ing for a cardboard tube on a filing cabinet behind him. 
With the tip of his pipe he began pushing a rolled up 
‘map through the cylinder. “Here is a blueprint made of 
the castle in 1896... .” 

“Oh, much too late,” Mark said, shaking his head. 
“This castle was built in the 12th century.” 

“There simply aren't many blueprints lying about 
from the 12th century,” the curator said, resuming his 

scowl. 
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ark a for pen con paper, Gietthed a ee a 

k. He smacked his lips after speaking the title, as if 
Germanic words tasted strangely on his tongue. 

rk’s friends knew that he spoke only an elementary % 
rerman.) — ee 

volume, then directed a question to Mark in German. | 

‘ingly, the scholar shrugged and turned to his re 

Shelves. 

am ancient volume. Carefully he turned the crisp 

set the book before the: waiting, Americans. 

‘the room which he insisted lay beyond the stone wall. 
After he had finished his drawing, he named a German 

For the first time the curator seemed to hear the young oS 
‘merican. His scowl deepened, and his jaws clamped _ 
htly on his pipe stem. He repeated the name of the 

~ When Mark only stared back at him incomprehend- = 

_A few moments later, the curator was blowing dust — 2 

md yellowed pages. Then, with a grunt of surprise, he ce 

3 “It is as our young friend says,” the curator admitted, we 

y the passageway extended to this small room. See, 
his drawing matches exactly with the plan in this book.” __ 
“But how did you know, Mark?” the ogee § siabes ae 
sked his student. ce 

m ever since. 4 
Did he pick up a memory pattern that had somehow 

charged the stones of the old castle? 

room? Or had he come across another copy of the ancient 
ook at some earlier time, forgotten the incident, and _ 
tored away the lmowledge of the a room in his 

conscious? 

e is confronted with the alternative which Mark Whit- 
rt does not enjoy considering. One must believe that, 

27 

icating a diagram on a page of the open book. “Origi- 

_ Mark Whitman has been trying to answer that ques- = i. 

Had he clairvoyantly divined the location of the secret = 

f one does not accept any of these ‘hy petieses then 
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in some earlier existence, Mark Whitman walked the 
passageways of that ancient castle, unhindered by the — 

stone wall. Perhaps the room which the thick wall had — 
hidden might even have been:his own. aia ee 

- Casé #3: From her earliest childhood, Ethel Hanson — 
had had a repetitive dream experience. . 

In this strange dream, Ethel saw herself laughing-in a 
raucous manner and swinging her body about in an~ 
abandoned and frenzied dance. She saw herself sur- 
rounded by the leaping flames of campfires. She heard 
the mounting tempo of clapping hands, the wild and _ 

sensuous music rising to a climax of violent abandon. And _ 
always she was dancing, dancing like some unrestrained 
creature of pagan pleasures. 

The most paradoxical aspect of Ethel’s dream was that 
she was the daughter of a strict Methodist minister, who 
considered any aspect of the dance as Satan’s own jig. 

When she was a child of eight, Ethel’s father caught — 
her dancing in front of the radio (a radio was permitted 
because of the news programs). She was spanked with 
the full force of her father’s righteous indignation and — 
forbidden to ever listen to those “infernal dise jockeys” 
again. 

__ At age eleven, Ethel had not yet learned to leave well 
_ enough alone. She came home from school one afternoon 
and asked her mother if she might take dancing lessons — 
with two of her girlfriends. Her horrified mother duly — 
reported the request to Ethel’s father, who not only took — 
her allowance away for two weeks but forbade her to 
continue her friendship with the two “dancing daughters 
of the devil.” igh! 

By the time she was a teenager, Ethel had learned — 
that dancing was only engaged in by young ladies who — 
did not value their reputations, and while her friends — 

_ were having supervised record parties in the homes of ~ 

28 



THE ENIGMA OF REINCARNATION 

m Mbt “hedonistic parents,” Ethel was sitting at home with a 
; book from her father’s 1 ese reading list. 

' And yet in her dreams she would dance, dance, dance. 
_ And how glorious it was! Her hair was borne on the night 
wind like the mane of some marvelously spirited mare. 

_ She knew she was barefooted. She could feel her bare 
) feet striking the smooth earth with a rhythm that made 

blood course hotly through her veins. And she would 
et acs skirt—swirl and twist it high so that her flashing 
ankles and full thighs inflamed the senses of the cheering 

Mornings, she would awaken feeling unclean and 
wonder, od had sent such obscene visions to tor- 

considered confiding in her mother, but 
eel ng oleate soon 
_ find its way to her father’s ears. She took no pleasure 
i the prospect that Reverend Hanson might try to beat 
Tite Ethel ian 
. “Lite” Ethel Hanson wrote, “had settled into a rut of 

frustration and torment. When I entered col- 
and began to take some psychology courses, I 

that my dream was a wish fulfillment. That is, 
dreaming about dancing because I was not per- 

tted by my parents to go to dances. I further ob- 
rved that most girls my age did like to dance, and it 

Was natural that I should have been so much in love 
vit even as a little girl” 

found the solution to the repetitive dream. 
=| Seiithsctieved. 
af eee Years Eve party that Ethel Hanson 

) = more confused than she had ever been concermn- 

_ ment 

| Ethel was a senior at the small church college which 
she attended, and would be graduating that June as a 

(Social worker. Although she was regarded by all whe 
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: knew her as an otsoodinghy prim and proper ‘young 
woman, she was lovely and gracious enough never to . 

Jack boyfriends. Many were attracted but few were 
chosen, of course, because Reverend Hanson conducted ~ 
an extensive screening of the young men who came to 
pay court to any one of his five daughters. 

_ On this particular New Year's Eve, the clergyman 
had been more intent on preparing the New Years Day 
sermon than in examining the moral credentials of the ~ 
young man who had asked Ethel to accompany him to 
a “quiet, well-chaperoned party.” 

Charlie Norris, who had graduated from high Scipol 
with Ethel, was known to have stretched the truth on — 
more than one occasion, to have swallowed the contents 
of several bottles of beer and, when he could get it, hard 
liquor, and he had boasted to any of his contemporaries — 
who would listen that he intended to “thaw out that — 
preacher's daughter.” : 
‘The party, in short, was not. the quiet, sober, little 

get-together that Charlie had talked of to Reverend ~ 
Hanson. It was a noisy, liquor-sopping, jam-packed blast! — 

Ethel had a few moments of inner panic, but she got 
a good grip on Charlie’s arm and entered the party fully 

_ determined to enjoy herself. She was, after all, going on — 
BD. ; 

Ethel did, however, make Charlie promise “not to try — 
to get her to take a drink.” This was one promise that 
Charlie kept. He did not have to tease, cajole, or shame 
her into drinking. The innocent appearing fruit punch ~ 
was laced with enough vodka to quench the thirst of / 

_ the entire Bolshoi Ballet. 
By the time the party-goers had assembles to play 

“Amateur Hour,” Ethel was feeling so uninhibited that 
she had actually laughed at one of Charlie's oo 
stories. yf 
~ Amateur Hour,” Charlie explained to the. Soup was “ 

ve 
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do Lite eee se young ee ai 
7ho | ad been gathering for New Year’s Eve since the _ 

gh school days. According to the rules, each guest at — a 
€ party must perform for the group when called upon 

him to suffer through. . 
- The first guest called upon a young woman, sang “God et 
Bless America” in a high, cracking soprano. The second — 

tation of their old high school principal. fe 
_ Ethel was relieved to note that the critical Sondards co 
e audience had been suitably blunted by large doses 

inebriation, she was grateful that they would not be cs 

-formances of the contestants in the amateur hour. She 
was grateful, too, that she had her wits about her and 
‘was in complete control! of the situation. She called for 
Charlie to bring her another cup of that delicious fruit — 

By the time Ethel Hanson was called to the floor by # 
the master of ceremonies, there was a wicked sparkle in. 
her eyes. Ethel was known to have a fine choir voice, so 

ais intended to dance. Most of the young ene 
e room had known Ethel since grade school. They _ 

new full well the position of her clergyman father on _ 
th evils of dancing. If they were shocked at Ethel’s 

uncement, they were open-mouthed and wide-eyed 
after she requested that her accompanist play 
ae gypsy music,” she put on a demonstration of — 
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ee pop and popcorn parties of junior — : 

be subject to the committees’ choosing a prank tae a 

contestant eared a solid round of applause for his imi- __ 

liquor. Although she felt a slight repugnance at the.) 
sight of all her old high school friends in varying stages — 

any condition to place high demands upon the per- ms 

_reasonably sober | young man had already taken his 
ace at the piano in 2 oeraraas of her wishing to = te 
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_ the most abandoned and exotic dancing that any ee them — 
had ever witnessed. a 

Her hair, worn sedately in a bun piled atop hes ne 
“was undone and allowed to flow in sleek, dark ripples 

_ down to her shoulders. Her shoes were ‘kicked into a 
comer and, barefooted, she executed difficult dance steps 

“with style and grace. She tipped back her head and 
_ laughed at the almost hypnotic effect her swirling skirt 
was having on the men in the crowd. 
On and on she danced until she: collapsed into the 
arms of a very pale Charlie Norris. 

When Ethel Hanson regained her sense of the pres- 
ent, she refused to believe the reports her friends made 

of her performance. She remembered nothing after she 
moved through the crowd to the piano. She recalled that — 
she had intended to ask the accompanist if he knew the 
melody of a popular ballad so that she might sing, but 
beyond that moment, she could recollect nothing. 

“But you danced like a professional,” one of her girl 
friends told her. 

“Like a gypsy!” put in another. 
_ As her friends described her dance, Ethel felt a strange 
little hollow being clawed away in the pit of her stom- 
ach. They were describing her dream! They had seen 

_her as she had been seeing herself in the secret dream 
_ that had been haunting her since childhood. 

Since that night, Ethel has often tried to recapture the 
_ grace and skill which she displayed at the party. Her 
efforts, as described by her close friends, have been 

_ “clumsy and awkward.” Charlie Norris confessed to her — 
- about the vodka in the punch, but Ethel Hanson has 
refused to become intoxicated in an attempt to’ recreate 
the wild experience of her dream. 

She did receive an interesting letter from a girl friend ~ 
who attends another college. The friend, a very talented 
and agile dancer, attempted to reproduce the dance a 
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trys folk music. 

Has Ethel’s recurrent dream been a vivid memory 

the correct answers when they speak of repression and 

m chooses once more to imbibe of spiked punch or con- 
ents to undergo hypnotic Seay . 

i. Cae. #4: “T shouldn't even be telling you this,” a 
ttevenson wrote. “I have a good business in a small 
wn, and I am the scoutmaster for our local troop. If 
rd got out that I believed or thought I believed in 

a kook, my business would die, and people would start. 
hk mat that I was a pervert, so I couldn't work 

y scouts any more!” 

ht, then return before dusk on the following day. 

ndian Cave is a local landmark,” Stevenson ex- 

y people like to trek to the cave, because there are 

ive the boys an illusion of really roughing it. 
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e said ‘that I was dancing a very old dance of fie : i 
gitana, the gypsies of Spain,” she wrote Ethel, “and he __ 
ked me wherever had I seen such a dance performed.” es 

such a thing as reincarnation, I would suddenly become — 

ohn Stevenson’s glimpse at the unknown came while 
as on a camping trip with nine boy scouts. Their 
was to hike up to Indian Cave, camp there over- 

the walls of the cave still bear the evidence of an- 

Phors. a [spaniad with a diecat interest in his coun- 2 

oa previous life? Or do her psychology texts contain a 

wish fulfillment? We will never know unless Ethel Han- 

ed. “It is in a beautiful location down by the river, 
» makes an ideal spot at which to camp. Not too _ 

roads leading to it, so that makes it remote enough __ 
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say the paintings are fake and that the Indians didnt 
really make them, but they look pretty genuine tome.” 

Stevenson led his group of boy scouts to the cave that 
_ day and set them to work building campfires and clear- 
“ing ground for their sleeping bags and tents. Later, 
enough of them caught trout in a nearby stream to sup- 
plement the provisions which they had brought from 

After the:usual campfire songs and hair-raising assort- 
ment of “real” ghost stories, Stevenson told his young 
charges to turn in. He sat up for a while, smoking his 

_ pipe before the fire, until each of the boys had begun 
the regular breathing that told him they were all asleep. 
‘Stevenson crawled into his own sleeping bag. He re- 
members thinking about what a beautiful night it was 

- when “.. . the weird part of all this comes. 
“I suppose I could have been dreaming, but it all 

seems too real to have been a dream. I don’t know if it 
was the power of suggestion, sleeping there next to that 
old cave or what, but I all of a sudden had this feeling - 
that I had slept on that same ground a long time ago. 
Only then I had been an Indian. 

_ “I remember sitting up and feeling strange. Like you 
sometimes feel when you wake up in a strange hotel 
room and you don’t know where you are for a few min- 
utes. I looked at my hands and bare arms and seemed 
satisfied that they were now brown-skinned instead of 
white. I got up and looked at my reflection in the moon- 
light on the water. I couldn't see all of my face, because 
it was too dark, but I could see enough to know that it 

_ was a different face from the one I have now, yet I knew 
that i¢ was my face, too. I could see that I had long, 
-shoulder-length hair, and it looked like I had some kind 
of beadwork pattern across the chest of my shirt. 

“I just had this kind of wonderful feeling that I had — 
come back to a very familiar place where I had had a lot — 
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yy memo: as an Indian. ‘The chee dee 
on or whatever it was was filled with my. a 

ist simple little things. I mean, it wasn’t a big eee 
B ull versus General Custer type thing, and I guess that 

as what made it all seem so real. 
especially remember walking into nine cave od 
1g at the drawings on the wall. I seemed to hold a 

burning branch in my hand for light. I smiled and 
nodded my head. For the first time the drawings seemed _ 
to make sense to me. In fact, as I walked under the | 

3, the whole world seemed to make sense to me. Laken 
really was a Divine Plan and a logic to the uni-- 

“I don’t know. Say it was just a dream if you want to, — 
it seemed so real to me that I just have to believe _ 

at I've been walking around on this earth in one oes os 
another for a long, long time.” ee 
‘John Stevenson, as we shall see, is not alone in this ae 

ge conviction that he has lived before and has 
een gy to recall memories of past incarnations. — Ae 

of the. mst iaroughly dociiented or well 
arched cases suggestive of reincarnation in recent _ 
was published recently in the December 1966 _ 
of Fate. See article, “Reincarnation of a Civil 
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eden, 

The author of the piece, Loring G. Williams, was a 
high school teacher who had developed a reputation 
for hypnotic prowess. “Bill” has often been called upon 
to provide entertainment for local fund-raising drives; 
and as a member of the Keene State College Psychic ) 
Research Society, he has participated: in several ) inves- — 
tigations into the nature of psychic phenomena. 

I contacted “Bill” Williams and told him of my pro 
osed book on reincarnation, 
“Tl help you all I can,” Williams said, generously. 

ae new material has developed since the Fate article — 
appeared. For one thing, the boy has recalled additional | 
lives.” 

Williams told me that it would take him quite a 
while to make transcripts of all the tape recordings, but 
he promised to provide me with material just as soon 
as he could. 

In much less time than I expected, a large packet of 
materials arrived from Williams. He had worked over- 

_time to get the information to me as quickly as possible. 
Briefly, here is the story of “Jonathan” as it -was re- ~ 
ported in Fate. | 

George Field, a 15-year-old neighbor of Williams, 
decided one evening to sit in on the weekly sessions 
which the teacher-hypnotist had been holding in his 
home. During these meetings, Williams would regress 
volunteers in the hope that he might find a subject 
whose story could be checked. 

Such a search is not an easy one. As Williams put it, 

many subjects, when regressed, are hazy about details. 
They cannot remember their full names or their parents’ — 
names, are not sure where they lived, and are unable — 

to give other details that would be needed to check a 
story. Others, though they may go into vivid detail, © 
describe an existence so long ago, or in so remote a 
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cam ‘George, roe : 
sorge Field ane to be an ideal nee for eel os 

“nosis. He went easily into trance and was amenable to _ 
hypnotic suggestion. Within a short time, George was 

rth Carolina at a point in history which would be near 
_ enough to check out. a 

ile in deep hypnotic ean as the New Hampshire me 
eenager “remembered” a life as “Jonathan Powell.” He — 

alled that his father’s name had been Willard and — 
that his paternal grandmother was named Mary. He — 
could not remember the name of his mother. vi 

ccording to “Jonathan,” his father worked a alr z 

bes 

mere Quakers, ministered to by a traveling parson named — 

County. | 

backward in the time sequence of his lifetime. As 

existence of Jonathan Powell. 
Finally, the hypnotist took Jonathan up his last day 

n that incarnation. When Williams asked the personality — 
it he was doing, Jonathan replied that he was busy — 

ading potatoes for those “damn Yankee soldiers.” 
aes to Jonathan, the soldiers were willing to — 
only a few cents a bushel for the crop which he had — 

‘wearing eS must have been southerners, 
yankees. : 

ST 

ibing a past existence which had taken place in x 

and labored in the nearby tin mine. The family _ 

wn. Mr. Brown lived in the “villie” of Jefferson in 

liams shideaed to move George- Jonathan forward 

ie boy spoke, a tape-recorder caught every word so_ 
t, if possible, Williams could substantiate the Pee = 

so hard to harvest. He cursed the men in their Ms 
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were surrounding him than their color uniforms. They 
wanted five sacks of potatoes, but they werent getting’ 
them for ten cents 2 bushel! The stubborn farmer told 

__ the soldiers to keep their money. ae ae 
Then George-Jonathan made terrible sounds of pain 

-and began to cough. ae 
William spoke softly to him, tried to reassure him 

_ that all was well, and let him speak again. 
When the hypnotist had taken away the awful hurt, 

Jonathan told him that he had been shot in the stomach 
_ by the plundering soldiers because he would not take 

their “damn money.” The personality complained that it 
still “hurt a little.” 

Williams progressed the farmer another five minutes 
in the time of his last day of that incarnation. When 
he asked the personality what he felt at that point, 
Jonathan answered that he could feel nothing. 

At the count of three, Williams brought the boy back 
to the present. ae 

Williams was most eager to travel to Jefferson, North 
Carolina, to substantiate Jonathan’s story and to attempt 
to confirm the physical existence of the personality from 
whom he had learned the apparent details of a previous 
earth life. 
Due to the limitations of a close budget, Williams, his — 

son Jack, and George Field, decided to make a camping — 
_ trip to Jefferson just as soon as school was out for the 

-. summer. | 

“Camping was a new experience for me,” Williams 
wrote to me, “although both boys had had considerable 

experience with camporees in the Boy Scouts and had 
quite a bit of equipment. George had a tent that would 
sleep three, and between us we had plenty of sleeping 
bags. A friend provided camping stoves. Finally, much 
to my wife’s dismay, a pile of equipment began to form . 
on the dining room table, ready to be packed. Since we 
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t& a ing by Vo. % 
and every eae item urinated. We ag 

consider it very necessary that we take my two tape _ 
recorders—the large one on which to play the tapes e 

ed, to tape any conversations which we might have - 

ble for use in the car in and around Jefferson.” oe 
illiams was fortunate in that he had an old army 

buddy, who was now a minister serving a congregation _ 
Watuga, Tennessee, living in Johnson City, just a short _ 

nce from Jefferson, North Carolina. The clergyman’s _ 
ackyard provided the expedition from New Hampshire _ 

with a base of operations from which to conduct its re- eS 
in Jefferson. ee 

‘liams enthusiasm and his hopes were high. He © 
E ad visions of _ ocala running about recogniz- Se 

e, falling weeping upon his own Banal place. Then 
it would be a simple matter to proceed to the courthouse _ 

us existence of pee oa in the physical — ne 
of ee Powell. i 

co) come Daihen once 2 again, he Seiad ae = 
) pay no attention to automobiles or other modern | 

in Keene (at the home of the president of the o 
Hampshire Psychic Research Society) and, ab. < 

where A.C. power was available, and a small 

find all the records which would substantiate the — : 

rivances. Williams wished to ene no _chances oo. 



first time in over a hundred years, : was + completely 
dismayed. | 

_ “Picture yourself, if you can,” William waite “going 
back to your old neighborhood after a hundred years. 

_ There are all new houses and streets, and you are trying 
to find your own back yard.” 
When the investigators visited the Asis County court- 

house in Jefferson, they were disappointed to learn that 
the county had not recorded births and deaths before 
1921! There had, however, been a registry of deeds. | 
On Page 430, Volunic A, Williams and the boys found 
the copy of a deed in which a Stephen Reed had con-. 
veyed to a Mary Powell a parcel of land in 1803. This 

- discovery excited the group very much. Jonathan had 
named a Mary Powell as his paternal grandmother. In 
1803, Mary Powell would have been about the right age 
‘to be buying farm land. The investigators became even 
more sure of their research when they were told that 
Powell was a very uncommon name in that area. 

The register of deeds referred Williams to a local 
historian who might be able to tell them the genealogy 
of the old families of Ashe County. Williams called the 
historian and made an eppointne with her for that 

_ afternoon. 

When the historian learned the purpose of Williams’ 
expedition into North Carolina, she went firmly on rec- 

ord as saying that she did not believe in — sort of 
thing.” 

She did, however, agree to offer what help she eald. 
And, after listening to the tape recording of George- 
Jonathan’s session at the Keene Psychical Research 
Society, she had to confess that she was most impressed 

. with “Jonathan’s” knowledge of Ashe County. © : 
After the historian had heard the tape, Williams re- 

gressed George to Jonathan so that ithe: 4 woman might 

40... : 



oo the personality concerning the Ashe County of 

_ “Remember to keep your questions in the present 

tense,” Williams cautioned the historian. “To Jonathan 
“itstillis 1860!" : is 
The historian queried Jonathan about a total of 25 
persons and events in the history of Jefferson. Writing 

“in Fate Williams said that Jonathan knew nothing about _ 
“some of them. He did, however, claim to know about 
“15 of them, many in detail. He mentioned such things 
“as these people’s financial status, their children’s names, — 
and when they built their houses. These details. proved 
0 be substantially correct. In the author’s opinion he » 

“ave enough detailed answers to make any possibility 
of chance very remote. ae 
In addition to the historian’s confirming Jonathan’s 

knowledge of the people and events of Jefferson circa 
1860, she substantiated his claim that there had been a 
Mr. Brown who had served as a circuit riding preacher. 
She could find no records of a Quaker church, but she 
“rapidly conceded that a group might have met in pri- 

te homes. 
They replayed the tape which they had made when 

the historian questioned Jonathan about his life in Jef- __ 
ferson, Williams wrote. They wanted to once again get | 
her reaction to his answers. To Williams, it seemed 
amazing and very significant that one who had never 
had any connection with Jefferson could know so much 

out it. ay 

Williams recalls a humorous incident which occurred 
e he was riding about Jefferson with George and 
The boys asked him what the “snuff” was that they 

Hampshire and in New England in general, the 
f.snuff is practically a lost “art.” Later that day, 

een for sale in numerous places in the village. In _ 



still amazing to watch someone actually “sniffing” to- 

- while shoapine at a cee Williams fie a 
can of snuff as a souvenir for each of the boys. 

Williams had worked in the South and had seen the 
chewing tobacco used on many occasions. He exp ie ot 
to the boys what little he knew about the “taking” of 
snuff, 

_ “About all I could really remember,” Williams says, | 
that the old-timers used to pack a wad behind the lip a 
get the flavor from it.” 

_ As the three of them were riding around the country- 
side a bit later, Williams regressed - George to Jonathan. 

_ He hoped that Jonathan might recognize some land- 
marks and locate his farm, but then, suddenly, another 
_ idea occurred to the hypnotist. 

_ “How do you like snuff, Ma he asked. “Do you 
‘want some?” | 

7 

“I shore do!” 
Jonathan had trouble getting the stall out of “that 

kind of a box,” but once he had the tobacco tin open, he 
set about “blowing” it in a skilled and expert manner. 

Williams was startled. He had never seen anyone: 
“sniff” the tobacco up the nose before. It took him a7 
few puzzled moments before he remembered an article’ 
he had read which described this manner of using snuff 
as being the most popular method years ago. But it was 

bacco. It was an accomplishment which obviously took 
considerable practice and experience, not to mention 
a strong nose! Williams knew that George had never 
seen this done. - 

In his evaluation of the tape as  conapaced with the 
uncovered evidence, Williams points out the difficulty 
of substantiating such a nondescript life as Jonathar 
Powell's one hundred years after his death. At the same 

_ time, the hypnotist stresses the fact that Jonathan-George 
spoke of an obscure village in a small North Carolina 
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oo: a place of which oe Field would fori, co 
are. “Jonathan” was able to identify and provide de- 

tails of the lives of several old families of Ashe County. 
: was able to identify much of the county’s topography, 

Mary Powell—a woman with an uncommon surname for 
which no maps of the area name. Then, too, there was a __ i 

“the county—who bought farm land and who would have ui 
been the right age to be Jonathan’s graces just 
_as the personality claimed. 

Williams feels that one of the most significant parts of 
eke tape is Jonathan's description of his death. Jonathan 
claimed that he was shot to death by Yankee soldiers in — 
“gray uniforms, because he refused to sell them potatoes. - 
Even the most casual student of American history knows 
‘that the Yankees wore blue uniforms. Furthermore, Wil- 
liams’ research established the fact that there were 
no Northern troops in North Carolina in 1863. 
- “Once again, though,” Williams says, “Jonathan was 
“right. The local historian told me that at that time, there. 
“were bands of renegades who came down from the 
-north, using the war as an excuse to raid and plunder. 
“They could well have been dressed in gray because 
4 el would have stolen their uniforms.” 

Shortly after the article appeared in Fate, Williams 

Jonathan's existence in a letter from a woman who 

“were unclearly stated by the personality of Jonathan. _ 
| He (Jonathan), was killed “by the Yankees, so my 

ather said; but he didn’t know any details at all about 
> case on how he was killed. Willard Powell was 
than’s brother. Jim Powell was Jonathan’s father — 

onathan stated that-his father’s name was -Willard 
d that he could not remember having a brother]—and 

was red-headed, or sandy haired; and all the family 

a 

md George Field received further substantiation of 

slaimed to be the great-niece of Jonathan Powell. The _ 
woman went on to clear up a number of items which — 



had blue eyes. We never knew wee became of Willard 
OF his family. 
: . My mother often talked about abs ‘Oasken iad 

: they ‘would spend the night with her family over there. 
oe There was no Quaker church. . 

; . [haven't done any riley on history, but a a 
of ae eastern Tennessee men fought for the South. . 

That could have been somie of them in the gray uniforms 
that killed Jonathan or it could have been the renegades.” 
_. In subsequent sessions of hypnotic regression, Williams | 

has led George Field back into three lives pest to his 
_ incarnation as Jonathan Powell. 
“These were short lives in England in the fifteen and 
_ sixteen hundreds, so they are impossible to check, Wil- 

_ liams told me. “They do, however, paint a vivid and 
seemingly accurate picture of life during those periods. 

Tn two cases, he was a girl, once a boy. In no case did he - 
or she- know his parents. It is a historic fact that during 

_ those years there were thousands of orphaned or de- 
___ serted children living in the streets.” 
ae Although the transcripts of each of the lives is quite’ 
lengthy, Williams provided me with a capsule report of 

the three previous incarnations of Cae Field before | 
_ he was born as Jonathan. 

_ Number One. A girl. She has no memory of parents. 
She first remembers being cared for by a man who seems" 

“to be no relation. She lives in a one-room hovel and 
sleeps on a board. She is alone most of the time, and the 

man brings her just enough food to keep her alive. When 
she is about seven years old, the man dies. She takes to_ 

_ the streets, sleeping where she can, eating raw dough 
_ stolen from bakeries and whatever else can be found. — 

_ When she is about 12 years old she is killed in the street 
__ by a horse and wagon. (A note of great interest herel 
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her died. Could this mean something? ) 

Number Two. A girl. Her background and Heist con- 

thing about this experiment is that when taken through 
the death experience, she accounted all the symptoms 
a the Black Plague that swept England at the-time. 

his father, only that he had died at an early age. George 
- Field lives with his widowed mother. Again, could a pat- 

m be maintained in reincarnation?] As a twelve-or 
urteen-year old boy, he works around the docks and 

is on the sailing ships in port there. He seldom receives 

“most the work on the sails and the rig 

Telates, is that when he regressed George Field to this 

lice rope. 
splice a lot of it,” the personality told him. 

Ii ee 
ife Number. Three: George fell ‘off the dock and 

Boned when he was about fifteen. 

a my Sai he capsulized five major subjects 
ise claims of past lives are currently being investi- 
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_ The most amazing thing about this Aoooant Williams 

‘illiams produced a piece on which the boy made a 
st and expert splice. George Field has not even the _ 
intest idea of how to go about splicing a rope. Rope 
cing has become almost a lost art since the days of 

is the manner in- ahh jonuthon ald that his i 

ditions are similar to Number One. The most interesting — 

Bamber Three. A boy. In this incarnation, he is again 
orphaned and deserted. [Jonathan could not remember _ 

any pay, but he is given food for working. He enjoys — 

life, he asked the sixteenth century teenager if he cone a 



ject Number One is a woman of 25. While under hyp- 4 

nosis, Williams has allowed her to recall two ‘other lives. _ 
Her first remembered incarnation took place in the 
- United States about 1850, when she was born a boy who — 
_ lived with his mother and sister in a cabin on a small 
_ farm. There was no father present, and the boy seems © 
to feel that his sire has deserted them. When he is about — 
ten years old, he leaves the cabin to go in search of his — 
_ father. He realizes that the search is hopeless, but he 
_ does not return home. Instead, he becomes a drummer — 
boy for the Union during the Civil War. After the War, — 
- he becomes-.a hermit-like creature who prefers to live 
alone in the woods for the rest of his long life. He 
acquires many animal friends in this strange, idyllic — 

existence, but he becomes 
- of old age. 

_ In the woman’s second remembered life, she is 
a girl in England in 1678. Her parents die when she is © 

about twelve, leaving only a small inheritance on which © 
she might subsist. For two years she gee then, at 

_ fourteen, she has spent all of her money. S 

a'misanthrope before he dies — 

born q 

e is caught © 
_ stealing and sent to jail. She spends a long time in jail — 

- and contracts tuberculosis before she is finally released — 
on the condition that she sign a bond or indentured — 
_ paper. The papers are sold to a ship captain who trans- — 
s _ ports her to America for the purpose of selling the bond 

to someone in need of a servant ( 
- inthose days). _ 

__ By the time she has reached the colonies, she is weak, 
coughing a lot, and spitting up blood. She is sold to a 
plantation near Richmond where she works in the kitch- 

this was an old racket 

2 er _ en. She is the only white help there and she describes — 
making many loaves of bread each day. She portrays the 

__ large brick oven in detail. 

aE 
She enjoys life on the plantation much better 

4 

ee 
than | 

gland, but her tuberculosis grows progressively worse. — 
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She. ties ae ates. oe Gescebes her fancral: a me 
_ watches herself being buried, She is e glad that es died - . 
a she loves to float. ie 
pee 

"Subject Number. Two. This volunteer for Williams’ 
_ experiments is a boy who is presently sixteen years old. _ 
_ He has recalled two previous lives under hypnosis. 
In his first life, he was born in Illinois about 1830-40. 
He has a small farm, a wife, and children. When the _ 
‘Civil War starts, he goes to Virginia and joins the Con- 

 federate Army. He experiences combat and is killed in 
_ action May 5, 1863, probably at the battle of Chancellor- — 
ville. Williams has spent some time checking the rec- 
ords at Chancellorville, but of approximately 20,000 Con- 

_ federate soldiers killed there, only a few hundred were 
_ ever identified. - i 

_ The second life which Subject Number Two recalls — 
' Carries him much farther back into time than the Battle 
of Chancellorville. He remembers being a black male 
slave, who was born in ancient Egypt. He is forced to . 
labor a fourteen-hour day with two meals per day as — 
the architects of the Pharoah construct’a pyramid. De- 

pot! is put to death at about the age of forty. » ek 

a Subject Number Three. This 35-year-old woman re- 
calls one previous life. While under hypnotic control, 
she has regressed to the memory patterns of her life as 

tion in the year 1790, e 

_ As a young girl, she is sent to France to Eas a” 

pacity, she meets a rich, old Frenchman and proceeds 
arry him, strictly for his money. After she has the 
committed to the satisfying of her desires, she en- 
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pressed at last with his hopeless life, he attacks a guard — 

a girl born in this country to parents of French extrac- - © 

| governess for a rich family there. While working in this _ 



miserable as she can. . 
The old man finally dies, much to her delight, leaving 7 

‘a oys making his life, and the lives of his servants, just as 
en fn ae Se 

: _ her the house, money, jewels, and servants. She becomes — 
involved with a handsome young fortune hunter, who — 
_ manages to relieve her of most of her money, but she — 
still has her jewels. At last a maid, who has grown 
weary of her cruelty, kills her and steals her jewels. 

Subject Number Four. This sixteen-year-old boy is 
_ able to remember owning a plantation and many slaves 
in the Kentucky of 1840. He recalls'his wife and family. — 

Most of all, he remembers the terrible Panic of 1857 when 
he is unable to sell his sorghum crop. By 1858, he has no ~ 
money to feed his slaves. They revolt and kill him. After — 
his death, he is able to-watch over his family for about — 

_ ten years, especially one son, who fought throughout — 
. the Civil War. ; 

S Subject Number Five. Williams’ hypnotic prowess has 
~ enabled this woman, who is now 28, to relive a past life © 
as the daughter of a noble family in Poland in the early — 

1800's, True to the custom of the day, the subject re- 
_ members that her marriage was arranged for her by her 
_ family. She is pleased to discover that her young noble- 
_man is handsome. In addition, he has a great estate, — 
many serfs, and is governor of a territory. When she is 

_ has a huge funeral, which she is able to watch. She is 
able to watch her family for several years after her 

- death. ; : sibase te 

__ “Unfortunately the written word cannot convey the 
feeling that is expressed in the voice and actions of the — 

_ subjects as they recount their past lives,” Williams — 
told me. “They sound old and weak as old age ap- 

oie ae 

wie tape 

_ about 40, she is thrown from her horse and killed. She — 



hes; they register pain and distress hee pee 
ing modern is brought to their attention, such — 
lectric light, a radio, or an automobile, they are 

zed and usually frightened.” : 
illiams points out that it is out of the question to 

ck most of the cases. “In this sort of work, however, 
fact that something cannot be proven does not make 
alse. In many cases the subject will recount accu- . 

letails of things that he could not possibly know. 
der hypnosis and regressed to a previous life, many 

subjects possess skills that are ae quite foreign to 
em, and often are lost arts. 
“If, in a former life, the subject was literate and could 
e, I will ask him to write something for me. When I 
pare the handwriting of the previous personality: _ 
1 the script of the present personality, I am able to 
that the two styles are completely different. While 
essed, the Hypnotized subject is reliving another life 

| every detail. 
_ One argument that is often raised is that there: exists” < 
blood relationship between the person today and the on 

incarnation. It is then claimed that the subject is _ 
recounting old family stories that he has heard 
‘ago but forgotten. 
have never found any pipes relationship ion ‘ie 

g about someone or something that ve has read. 

In the case of ‘Jonathan,’ the previous personality _ 
rom a small town, unlikely ever to have been heard: 
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‘up a psychic record or image of one who has lived in 
the past and is not reliving his own past life... eee 
“This can be accomplished through hypnosis, and I 
have done it. However, when this is done, the subject 

sees the people and events only as an observer, as if he 
‘were watching a movie. This is quite different from a 
regression to a subject’s own previous life. When a sub- 
ject is regressed, he relives the experiences which he. 
describes. 

“A phenomenon which can happen, and apparently 
does in some cases of spontaneous recall where the per- 
son has died recently and nearby, is the partial pos- 
session of a subject by a disincarnate spirit. This, of 
course, is considered to be nonsense by the materialists, 
but this belief was accepted by the early Christians. 

_ This is the reason cited for Jesus casting the demons 
into the herd of swine and then sending them on to 
drown.” 

_ I found correspondence with Loring G. Williams’ to 
be most fascinating and helpful in the gathering of ma-_ 

__ terial for this book. As for what his investigations prove, 
Williams says that perhaps each reader must decide for 

himself. The skeptic will proclaim that nothing has been 
proven, that there are no facts, only coincidences. The 
believer will proclaim that, at last, we have proof of re- 
incarnation. 

Williams has tried to remain objective but cannot re- 
sist the feeling that there is much more here than coin- 
cidence can account for. He believes that they found 

_ as much evidence for Jonathan as one could hope to find, 
after 100 years, of the life of someone who lived a short 
and unremarkable existence. He convinced Jonathan 
Powell did live in Jefferson, N.C., from 1834 to 1863. 

_ After knowing Jonathan and visiting Jefferson with him, 
_ Williams can believe nothing else. a 
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_BRIDEY MURPHY REVISITED 

To : a great. number of hacen: “Bridey Murphy” 
has become synonymous with reincarnation. This story 
of the Pueblo, Colorado, housewife who remembered a __ 
past life while under hypnosis made a dramatic impact 
upon the public imagination. Newspapers, magazines; 

and ‘scholarly journals debated the validity of the “mem- 

: reincarnation has not resolved itself to this day. snod 
" William J. Barker of the Denver Post. published the 
tst account of this now famous case in that newspaper's 

Empire magazine. Barker told how Morey Bernstein, 

cellent subject “Mrs. S.” was for deep trance when — 
was asked to demonstrate hypnosis at a party in 
ober of 1952. : 

sipate in an experiment of age-regression. 

led their subjects back into past lives, but he had 
ys scoffed at such tales. He had been particularly - 

ptical. about the testimony of the British psychiatrist, 
i \lexander Cannon, who reported that he had in- 
tigated over a Peceauil cases wherein entranced | in- 

als had recalled past incarnations. 
3. S., who later became identified as ‘Ruth Simmons, 

* and the controversy surrounding this alleged case S ; 

oung Pueblo business executive, first noticed what wee 

t was some weeks later, on the evening of November oe 
that Bernstein gained the woman’s consent to pare we 

e amateur hypnotist had heard stories of men Bee a 

t py interested in ie So notises nor in be- ie 
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_ thesis of Cannon and the others who had ea in- 
Fn _ vestigation of former lives. She was, at that time, 28 

_ years old, an attractive young matron who enjoyed play- 
ing bridge and attending ball games with her husband. 
Mrs. S. was, to employ a Madison Avenue cliche, the 
typical American housewife. 

With Mr. Simmons and Mrs. Bernstein as witnesses, 
the hypnotist began to lead Mrs. Simmons back through 

significant periods. of her childhood. Finally, it was time 
for the big try. 

Bernstein placed Mrs. Simmons in a trance, then told 
_her that she was going back until she found herself in 
another time and another place. The hypnotist told his 
subject that she would be able to talk to him and tell him 

_ what she saw. 
Bernstein paused for a glass of water, waited another 

minute or two before he spoke again to Mrs. Simmons. 
When he asked her if she could view a scene from an 

earlier existence, the woman began to breathe heavily. 
Her first words from an alleged previous memory were 
more enigmatic than dramatic. 

“I'm scratching the paint off my bed, because ae 
mad. I had just got an awful spankin!” 

_ When Bernstein asked for the personality’s name and 
_ was told “Bridey Murphy,” the strange search for evi- 

dence of a former incarnation had begun. 
At first, though, the hypnotist-businessman was un- 

impressed with his subject’s apparent memory of a 
former existence in Ireland, because “strange responses 
often come from people under hypnosis.” 

Then Bridey—short for Bridget—began to use words 
and expressions that were completely out of character 
for Mrs. Simmons. And, as Mr. Simmons pointed out, 
more than simply being out of character, the use of cer- 
tain terms required a knowledge which his Eee 
wife “a not, nor could not, possess. _ f 
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wis who had “reddish hair like - mine” ts. Sim- ie 
ms was a brunette). ha 
She told of attending Mrs. Strayne’s schosl in Con et 
ere she spent her time “studying to be a lady.” 
With sensitivity she recreated her marriage to Brian — oo 

far from St. Theresa’s church. 
In her melodic brogue, “Bridey Murphy” told of a 

‘life without children, a life laced with a small point of 

them how she had fallen down a flight of stairs when she 

After her fall, Bridey had had to be carried about. 
The burden was lifted one Sunday when she died 

while Brian was at church. It upset him terribly, Bridey 
said. She recalled how she lingered beside her husband, __ 
trying to establish communication with him, trying to a 
him know that he should not grieve for her. | | 

“People on earth won't listen,” she complained. 
_ Bridey told the astonished hypnotist and his witnesses _ 

priest friend of her husband’s, had passed away. She 

tgatory, she said, and added that he admitted it. Be 
@ spirit world, she said, was one in which you 
dn’t talk to anybody very long... they'd go away. — 
did not sleep, never ate, and never became tired. 

‘ thought that she had lived in the spirit realm for 

t a second session, Bridey again stressed that the — 
life” was ponies: oe to be-afraid of. There 

53 | 

MacCarthy, a young lawyer, who took her to live in Bel- — : 
fast in a cottage back of his grandmother's house, not 

conflict because she was Protestant while Brian was — ne 
Catholic, then, in a tired and querulous voice, she told 

that she had waited around Belfast until Father John, 

mted to point out to him that he was wrong about | 

out 40 years before she was reborn as Mrs. Simmons. — : 
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‘ Pe ee she ote! aid he saw hee dation but 
ee he didn’t. 

The spirit world, then, was simply a place where the 
soul waited to pass on to “another form of existence.” 

i Details of Bridey Murphy's physical life on earth be- 
- gan to amass on Morey Bernstein’s tape recorders. Busi- 

ness associates who heard the tapes encouraged Bern- 
stein to continue with his experiments but to let some- 
one else, a disinterested third party, check Bridey's 

statements in old Irish records or wherever such evi- 

_ dence might be found. 

-. Ruth Simmons was not eager to continue with the 

. series of experiments, but the high regard which both 
she and her husband had for Morey Bernstein led her 
to consent to submit to additional sessions. 

Bernstein told Empire magazine that he made care- 
ful notes in preparation for each session after the per- 
sonality of Bridey Murphy had revealed itself. 
_ The hypnotist stressed the importance of avoiding 
loaded questions in dealing with an entranced person. 
The subject becomes child-like in that he will be dis- 

_ posed to say what he thinks the hyena wants him 
~ to sa 

ee each session, additional “evidence” of her 
existence was given to the researchers _by the charming 

- Irish woman. 
She recalled how her mother had told her stories of 

the Irish Hercules, Cuchulain the warrior. 
_ Utilizing the body of Mrs. Simmons, Bridey es 
strated a graceful and lively rendition of an Irish folk 
dance which she called “the Morning Jig.” Her favorite 
songs were learned to be “Sean,” “The Ministrel’s March,” 

and “The Londonderry Air.”- Mrs. Simmons had no in- 
_ terest in musical activities previously. 

_ Barker asked Morey Bernstein if he felt the strange 
case of Bridey Murphy could be explained by memory 
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had been ‘trans erred ‘through | Mrs. Simmon’s ane 

rechya 

The young hypnotist- -businessman oneeded nes the Ce 
whole episode would make a better story if it could be | 
oe that Bridey Murphy were one of Mrs. Simmons’ 

rebears. The subject was one-third Irish, but the gene- ee 
tic memory hypothesis falls apart when it is remembered 
that Bridey had no children. 
Other researchers who have regressed subjects back 

into previous life-memories have found that blood line — 
and heredity have nothing to do with former incarna- _ 
tions. Many have spoken of the after-life as a kind of 
“stockpile of souls.” When a particular type of spirit is _ ae 

wired to inhabit and animate a body that is abou ot 
em be born, that certain spirit is selected and introduced 
into that body. 
Bernstein observed frankly and humorously that a 

person who boasts of having noble French ancestory 
may have been an African slave or a Chinese concu- 
Dine on his last visit to the physical plane. 

ts of view in regard to the strange case of Bridey 

hold that Mrs. Simmons was not the “normal young gal” 

tation of a script dreamed up by Morey Bernstein “be- 
ause he likes to fool people.” 

tein said, then the public must admit that the ex- 

ond, and that, without fully understanding what had 

BS 

nm Bernstein's opinion) one could only take one of two ae: 

urphy. One might conclude that the whole thing had in : 
been a hoax without a motive. This conclusion would 

seemed to be, but actually a frustrated actress who 
ved to be a consummate performer in her _interpre- i 

If one were not to accept that particular bypoeas sae 

iment may have opened a hidden door for just a 

n seen, it had been an exciting glimpse of immor- _ 

Io bleday released Morey Bernstein's The Sak 3 
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tee Bridey Misphy in 1956. Bersens chained ‘that he 
had invested $10,000 in his exploration of Bridey’s asser- 
tion of a physical existence and that he did not hope to 

earn that much in royalties from sales of the book. 
Furthermore, the businessman stated, he did not care if 
his. expenditures were met or not. He had, he hoped, 
opened up an important facet of man’s existence for 
further exploration. 

Skeptics and serious investigators aikeos were inter- 
ested in testing Bernstein's thesis that Bridey Murphy 
had given America an “exciting glimpse of immortality.” 
In mid-January, 1956, the Chicago Daily News sent 

_its London representative on a three-day safari into Ire- 
land. He was assigned to check out Cork, Dublin, and 
Belfast and uncover any evidence which might serve as 
verification for the Bridey Murphy claims. With only 

one day for each city, it is not surprising that the news- 
_ man reported that he could find nothing of significance. 

In February, the Denver Post sent William Barker, 
_ the man who first reported the story of the search for 

_ Bridey Murphy, to conduct a thorough investigation of 
the enigma. Barker felt that certain strong points had 

already been established by Irish investigators and had 
been detailed in Bernstein’s book. 

Bridey (Irish spelling of the name is Bridie) had said 
that her father-in-law, John MacCarthy had been a bar- 
rister (lawyer) in Cork. A lawyer in Dublin had written 
the book publishers on September 30, 1954 and informed 
them that there was a_John MacCarthy from Cork, a 

- Roman Catholic educated at Clongowes School, listed 
in the Registry of Kings Inn. 

Bridie had mentioned a “green-grocer,” John Carri- 
gan with whom she had traded in Belfast. A Belfast 
librarian, in a letter dated May 19, 1955, had attested to 

the fact that there had been a man of that name and 
trade at 90 Northumberland during the time in which the 
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city of Bridie Murphy t hed Seined to have lived ~ 
there. — me 

The librarian, a Mr. John Bebbington, had also veri- 
fied the personality’s statement that there had been a ce 
_ William Farr who had sold foodstuffs during this same 

period. By, 
One of the most significant bits of jofarmation had © 

to do with a place that Bridey Murphy had called 
Mourne. Such a place was not shown on any modern 

maps of Ireland, but its existence was substantiated — 
through the British Information Service. a 

_ While entranced, Ruth Simmons had Seerinen tt 
that Catholics could teach at Queen’s University, Bel- 
fast, even though it was a Protestant institution. Ameri- _ 
can investigators had made a hasty prejudgment when _ 

_ they learned of such a statement and had challenged: — 
the likelihood of such an interdenominational teaching : 
arrangement. In Ireland, however, such a fact was com- 

_ mon knowledge, and Bridey had scored another hit... 
_ Barker conceded that any one of the items taken 

_ separately did not constitute proof of reincarmation. The 
- newsman did feel, however, that all of the details com-  _ 
bined did begin to add up into a most PEO ae case 

_ for the defense. ‘3 
_ Then there were such things as Bridie knowing about 

- the old Irish custom of dancing at weddings and putting 
" money in the bride’s pockets. There was also her famili- 
_ arity with the currency of that period, the crops of the 
_ region, the contemporary musical pieces, and the folklore 
_ of the area. S 
_ When Barker dined with a hotel owner who was 

"interested in the “search,” the newsman questioned Bri- 
 die’s referring to certain food being prepared in “flats.” 
x Flats wasn’t a word we knew in that context, Barker 

: told his host, Kenneth Besson. 
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en es a waiter their table and asked him 
to bring some flats. _ 
_ When the waiter returned, Barker saw that flats were. 
‘ like platters, far as he could see. It was a perfectly nor- 
mal term there, Besson said. 

Several scholars had felt that Bridie had committed a 
_ gross error when she mentioned the custom of kissing 

the Blarney Stone. 
The Blarney superstition was a comparatively late 

19th century notion, Dermot Foley, the Cork city libra- 
rian told Barker. 

_ Later Foley told the reporter that he owed Bridie 
_ an apology. T. Crofton Cronker, in his Researches in the 
South of Ireland, 1824, mentions the custom of kissing 

_ the Blamey stone as early as 1820. 
But Bridie Murphy did not always score. Numerous 
_ Trish historians and scholars felt that she must have been 

- more Scottish than Irish. They were especially firm about. 
the name Duncan, which she had given for that of her 
father and her brother. 

trek 

__. “I wonder if she might have been tryin’ to say Dun- 
_ nock instead of Duncan,” speculated John Collins, de- 
scribed as a “walking history book” of Irish customs. 
- On Barker’s long flight home to Denver, he tried to 

_ organize his conclusions. Later, he published the find- 
__ ings of his own private search for Bridey ee in = 
. Post. 

_ On the debit side, Bridey had been wrong about most 
of her people, even about alleged facts in her own life. 

_ Barker had been unable to find complete birth data on 
either Bridey or her kin. The personality had used the 

_ word “barrister” with a frequency that amazed educated 
Irishmen. And Bridey had shocked most Irishmen with 

_ her crude term, “ditched” to describe her burial. Barker 
was told that the Irish are much too reverent t toward 
or tne ssa to employ such a brutal word. — 
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“The Oy, ke ‘ancl M Mrs. Simmons, ted a 
eee little knowledge of Ireland’s history from me 
_ 1800 to the 1860's. Bridey and Brian’s honeymoon route 
had become hopelessly untraceable and confused with 

the trip she had made to Antrim as a child of 10. The © 
principal difficulty in accepting Bridey’s story lay in the | 

fact that so much of the testimony was untraceable and 
- unverifiable. 

On the credit side of Bridey Murphy's ledger were 
all the many things which she had been right about, _ 
even though the scholars and the authorities at first 

~ stated that she was wrong. 
There was the matter of the iron bed which she had > 

_ scratched with her fingernails. Certain authorities dis- 
_ credited this statement on the grounds that iron beds 
had not yet been*introduced into Ireland during the 
period in which Bridey had claimed to live. The Ency- 

| _ clopaedia Brittanica, however, states that iron beds did - 
ee in Brideys era and were advertised as being 

ee from the insects which sometimes infected wooden 
" bedsteads.” 

_ Extremely convincing is Bridey’s vocabulary. If the 
-whole thing were nothing other than an elaborate hoax, 

- Ruth Simmons must rate as one of the most brio 
character actresses of all time. One of the most difficult 
_ things to attain in achieving a convincing characteriza- 

tion is the speech pattern of the person being mimed. 
Our speech patterns are as distinctive as our fingerprints. 
"The personality of Bridey Murphy never faltered in her 

~ almost poetic speech, and of the hundreds of words of — 
"jargon and colloquial phrases which she uttered, nearly 
all were found to be just right for the time in which she _ 
claimed to have lived. The songs which Bridey sang, — 
her graphic word pictures of wake and marriage. cus- 
“toms were all acclaimed by Irish folklorists as being 
accurate. _ 
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- Her grim Taakenes to the | “black one “which 
took the life of her baby brother probably referred to 

_ famine or disease. The Irish use of “black” in this man- 
ner means “malignant” and would have nothing to do 
-_ with the actual color of the pestilence. 

Barker found that Bridey had bested the ‘qpithoritios 
on several occasions. Bridey’s claims to have eaten’ muf- 

- fins as a child, to have obtained books from a lending 
_ library in Belfast, to have known about the Blarmmey 

stone were, at first, judged to be out of proper time 
context. Later, ‘her challengers actually uncovered 

torical substantiation for the statements made by Bridey 
_ through Ruth Simmons. 

What did he think about the whole Bridey business? 
_ Barker wrote. It was no fraud, he said, whatever it was. 
_ And it wasn’t telepathy. 
_~ Certain researchers of psychic phenomena have dis- 

agreed with this analysis. While agreeing that the Bridey 
Murphy case is not a consciously contrived fraud, many 
investigators will not rule out the role that telepathy or 

_ some other extrasensory ability may ba played in the 
_ “memory” of the Irish housewife. 
__ First of all, one must concede that certain items nia 
have been “remembered” by the Colorado housewife 
_ via normal means and could have been dug’ out of her 
__ subconscious by the hypnotic trance induced by Morey 

_ Bernstein. “Mrs. S.” could have had several acquain- 
‘tances throughout her childhood who were familiar with 
Ireland and who may have each imparted a bit of the 
_ memory of “Bridey Murphy.” 
__ Many skeptical researchers tried to apply the. phe- 
_ nomenon of cryptomnesia to Ruth Simmons (later dis- 

__ closed to be Mrs. Virginia Tighe), who was adopted in 
_ infancy by her mother’s sister, a woman with the typical 
__ mixed heritage of the average American. Cryptomnesia 
holds that a child might somehow have known 2: acre 
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ber the information so that he might dramatically pre- 
‘sent it as recalled from a past incarnation. The attempts 
to discredit Bridey Murphy as a manifestation of cryp- 
tomnesia fail in the estimation of researchers C. J. Du- 
easse and Ian Stevenson. In Stevenson’s estimation, the 

critics of the Bridey Murphy case provided only sup- 
positions of possible sources of information, not evidence 
that these had been the sources. 

It cannot be denied that Bridey possessed a knowl- 
edge of 19th century Ireland which contained a number © 
of items of information which were unfamiliar even to 
‘authorities and historians. Such details, when checked 
after elaborate research, were found to be correct in 
Bridey’s favor. 
_ It is when the reader finds himself up against these 
annoying “hits” that cannot be undermined by the most 
penetrating analysis that he finds himself forced to ad-_ 
™mit that “Mrs. S.,” alias Bridey Murphy, either ac- 
quired the information paranormally (ie. through ex- 
trasensory means) or by reliving the memory of a past 
life. : 

REINCARNATION—OR A VOICE FROM BEYOND? 

¥ The voice spoke in a slow drawl. “Hope I’m not in- 
trudin’, but my name is Dave Dean. I’m a Kentuckian, 
a ‘long hunter, and the Shawnees scalped me!” 
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nto 1947, author and 
psychic researcher Edmond P. Gibson attended a series 

of sittings with William H. Thatcher, a trance medium, 
in Grand Rapids, Michigan. ee 

_ According to Gibson, the -spirit personality which 
manifested did’ more toward proving survival and con- 
 tributing to historical knowledge than Bridey Murphy 

dreamed of. Sari 

In the late fall of 1946 and on into ] 94 ie F 

_ Speaking through Thatcher, the spirit voice told of 
_. being born in the 1760's, having lived for a time in 

Boonesboro, and ‘being a member of George Rogers 
_Clark’s expedition to Kaskaskia. Many of the names 

_ which the medium relayed for Dave Dean were easily 
found and substantiated, Some of the facts and inci- 

_ dents which the spirit voice cited were at first thought 
to be totally incorrect. Extensive research in dusty old 

tomes proved that Dave Dean had been right. Although 
_ Dean was never too clear about his dates, he remem- 
_bered details that seemed to be genuine memories of 4 

- physical existence in the frontier America~of 1760 to 
~ 1800. 

Even some of the most obscure items which Dave 
Dean mentioned were later found to be historically cor- 
rect. Attempts to trip the spirit of the frontiersman most 
often ended with a victory for Dave Dean. eu: 

_ Having Clark’s memoirs of the expedition available, 
Gibson noted that on the march to Vincennes, the troops 

_ were frequently in water to their armpits. In his last 
sitting with the Thatcher seance circle, Gibson asked 

_ Dave what song the men sang as they marched to Vin- 
cennes. : 

The voice said they didn’t do much marching, but 
_ were wading in water up to their waists most of the 

ane. 

_ Dave Dean cited “Lil OF. Bolero” and “World Turned 
_ Upside Down” as two favorite songs of the men. 
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The Nese lester roe a a . song ‘entitled Lili. Re 
bullero, written about 1766, had been very popular both ee 
among British soldiers and the frontiersmen. The origi- 
nal Spanish words were quickly corrupted on the fron- 
tier, and the lyrics were sung phonetically and with 
on by the backwoodsmen. It is easy to see how Lilli- 
bullero became “Lil OF Bolero” under “the conditions 
of performance. 

So it may have been ie “World Turned Upside 
Down.” In the Journal of the American Society for 
Psychical Research for July, 1950, Dave Dean recalled See 

as much as he could of ae lyrics of this marching song: 
ee ve traveled far and I’ve traveled wide 
: ~ In every port and clime, 

(Here he says he forgets some of it.) é 
I've drunk my lot, I've filled ay. shot 
In country and intown _ 
"Till I. got a wife. 
An’ the world turned apaide down.” 

‘The names of the men whom Dean designated as 
Be peciaity lusty singers were found on the roster of the 

t Virginia Dragoons, but the song itself was not 
easily traced. Then, finally, a researcher uncovered an 
18th Century Marching song: 

_ “When I was young and in my prime, 
Yd neither thought nor care, 

\ I took delight in mirth and wine 

And rov'd from fair to fair: 

_ I took delight in jovial life, 

“Til fate on me did frown: 

Until alas! I got a wife, 

% And the world turned upside down.” 

f They discovered that this march-time ballad was very 
p ular among the British soldiers during the Revolu- 

. Again, it is quite easy to see how homespun fron- 
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. sion of, “The World Turned Upside Down.” 
The communication of Dave Dean through the medi- 

um Thatcher fills 40 single spaced, typewritten pages. 
The entire transcript was sent to a nationally known 
historian, R. E. Banta, whose special interest in Ameri. 
can history has been the Ohio River ‘Valley. 

“IT not only ‘care to look over’ Dave Dean’s com: 
aa een ons: but I have read them through three times,” 

_ Banta wrote the researchers. “This is one of ei most 
interesting documents I’ve seen. 

“Thatcher's subconscious is out, mainly. I meee stowed 
away a great deal more information about the Ohic 
frontier than he can know exists and no one could cal 
up any such volume as s this, on shoe notice, out of my 
dormant cells. 

. This thing could open up an entirely new field of 
historical research but it would surely catch hell from 
the ‘union members’ in the process!” 

Although the possibility of the medium haviawe extra- 
_ sensory access to existing literary sources must be one of 

the hypotheses considered, many of the investigator: 
favored the theory -that an authentic communication 

_ from the dead had been received. 
Might such communication from’ “beyond the grave’ 

explain all cases of reincarnation? Could it be that those 
who claim memories of past lives have become unwilling 
mediums and have been temporarily controlled by an- 
other personality? This possession could last for but the 

_ duration of the period of mediumistic or hypnotic trance. 
or it might last for several months, as in the case of Mary 
Roff-Lurancy Vennum. 

“Mother. I heard voices in my room last night. Voice: 
that called out “Rancy, Rancy, and it was as if I could 
feel someone’s breath on my face.” 



Such Lee Sota of a ae i chanes in fie a 
life of Lurancy Vennum, a life that had been quite nor- 
mal and uneventful up until that morning in 1877. 

Mary-Lurancy Vennum—Rancy, as she was called by iG a 
her family—was born on April 16, 1864 to James J. Ven-_ 
num and his wife Lurinda, near the town of Watseka, 
Illinois. It was inher thirteenth year that the strange 
occurrences began to take place. 
On July 11, 1877, Lurancy began to have recurring 

fits, sometimes several a day, often times lapsing into — : 
unconsciousness. Sometimes she became quite violent 
and had to be restrained. At other times, she lay, almost — i 
corpse-like as if entombed in the ether of some nether 
world. 

The trances, which lasted something over six months, 
had varied effects on the young girl. At times she ex- 
perienced pain and agony; on other occasions she 
seemed to approach ecstasy. She spoke of heaven and 
pages and of contact with the deceased. 
Word of Lurancy’s problem attracted more than a an 

passing interest from A. B. Roff, a highly respected 
citizen in the community of Watseka. His daughter, 
Mary, had undergone similar fits years earlier and cas = % 
subsequently died from one of them. 

Because of his past experience, Mr. Roff sympathies A 
= y with the Vennums and was finally able to per- 

de Mr. Vennum to allow him and an acquaintance, 
Dr. E. W. Stevens, to come to the Vennum home to 
observe Lurancy. Dr. Stevens was a Wisconsin physician 
and prominent psychical researcher. He was familiar 
with the case of Roffs daughter, Mary, and hence 
greatly interested in another case so close, hearse such 

ities. 

“When Roff and Stevens arrived at the Vennum resi- 
ce on January 31, 1878, Lurancy was sitting near a 
on ina sete trance. 
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© otptd is AY: 

THE ENIGMA OF REINCARNATION 
me 

At this time she claimed to be a 63-year-old woman 
_ Katrina Hogan. Later Katrina seemed to fade into Wil 

lie Cunning, a wayward youngster who had passe 
away. ve 
Getting nowhere with Lurancy’s constant changing o 

oe identity, Dr. Stevens suggested to her that the spirit 
that controlled her might send someone more rationa 

and intelligent so that she might have more control ove 
herself. Lurancy replied that there were many wh 

- would like to come, and she proceeded to name a list o 
people who had been dead for quite some time, an 
who, in life, she, as Lurancy, had never known. 
When Lurancy had finished recounting the eerie roste 

of souls, she said, “But there is one whom the angel 
have chosen... Mary Roff. She will come.” 
- Roff was overcome with excitement. “Oh yes, let he 

come!” he said, thinking of his daughter who had die 
twelve years before. - oe 
_ When Lurancy awoke the next morning, she recog 
nized none of the Vennums. She insisted that she wa 

_ Mary Roff and begged her “father” (Roff) to take he 
home. Roff was dissuaded from such a move and Mary 
Lurancy remained with the Vennums. 

_ A short while later, Mary’s mother and sister were o1 
their way to the Vennum home to see Mary-Lurancy 
Upon seeing the two relatives Lurancy embraced then 
and called her sister by the pet name ‘Nervie, whicl 
only Mary Roff had ever used. | 

_ This confrontation seemed to make the child ever 
more homesick than before, so a move was agreed upon 

__ and on February 11, 1878, “Mary” was allowed to go t 
the Roff home and stay. . 

__ During her sojourn in the Roff home, “Mary” recog 
nized every person that she had known while she hac 
been alive, from twelve to twenty-five years before 
-Lurancy-Mary also recalled many incidents which hac 
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while she ae anil alive. The girl never seemed. a 

to recognize the Vennums. until after they had made : She 

several trips to visit her and the two families had be 

come close friends. | Sse cee 
Then, in May of that same year, the girl told Mrs. 

Roff that Lurancy Vennum was coming back. “Mary” 
closed her eyes as if being led into a trance-like state, __ 
then the change took place. ~ ee 
_ When the Lurancy personality emerged, she looked — 
around and asked where she was. Mrs. Roff told her, 
and the distressed girl asked to be taken to her home. 
The transformation had only lasted for a few minutes 
when Lurancy again left and the Mary personality re- 
turned. 
~ One of the most interesting incidents in the dual life 
of Lurancy-Mary occurred one afternoon when she 
stated that her brother, Frank Roff, should be carefully — iS 
watched, for that evening he would become gravely ill 
and might possibly die if proper attention were not avail- | 
able. Frank, at the time, appeared quite healthy. 
_ Dr. Stevenson checked with the family that night and 
then proceeded on to a patient’s house in “Old Town.” ‘ 
It was expected that that was where he would spend 

Marsh’s. 
_ At about two a.m. Frank went into convulsions. 
_ “Go get Dr. Stevens,” cried Lurancy-Mary. “He’s at 
Mrs. Marsh’s.” 
' “No,” the family argued, “he’s in ‘Old Town.’” 
_ “He’s at Mrs. Marsh’s,” the girl insisted, and indeed, 
that is where the physician was found. 
_ When Dr. Stevens arrived on the scene, he found 
Mary already treating~her brother. She seemed to be — 
doing everything quite properly, so he allowed her to 
continue under his guidance. 
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the night, but for some reason, he returned, unan- 
unced, to the Roff neighborhood to stay at a Mrs. 



festation of the Lurancy personality. 
Then one day Mary became quite disconsolate. “Lu 

ancy is coming back,” she said, and she gave a dai 
and time. 

The Mary personality immediately set about gettir 
ready to leave, bidding farewell to friends and rel 

_ tives. On the prescribed day, she and Mr. Roff were ¢ 
their way to the Vennum house when the transformatic 

took place. Upon arriving at her own home, Luran 
recognized all of the members of her family and seeme 

to show no ill effects from her experience. 
On January 11, 1882, Lurancy married a farme 

George Binning. The Roffs visited her frequently, bo' 
before and after her marriage, and up until the tin 
when she and her husband moved farther west in 188 

In a letter to the Religio-philosophical: Journal, M 
Roff wrote that, for a time, “Mary” weuld take contr 

of Lurancy for brief periods and then recede agai 
_ “Aside from this, she had little opportunity of using h 

mediumship, her parents being afraid to converse wi 
her on the subject lest it should cause a return of # 
‘spells’ . . . and her husband never made. himself a 
quainted with spiritualism. . . .” 

“She has never had any occasion for a physi¢ian sin 
she left us, never having been sick since then. 1. . Wi 
the birth of her first child, Lurancy became entrance 
and did not recover consciousness until after the chi 
was born.” ; 

Later, psychical researchers made attempts to g 
some statements directly from Mrs. Lurancy Binnin 

but no answer to the inquiries was ever received. 
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Per in the case of Lurancy Vennum we might 
find a model case study of temporary possession and 
use it as a guide by which we might distinguish between 
cases of possession and cases suggestive of reincarnation. _ 

_ To briefly summarize the case, we recall that Mary 
Roff had died when Lurancy was but fifteen months _ 
old. Although the two families lived in the same town, _ 
they were only slightly acquainted. During the period 
in which the Mary personality possessed Lurancy, she __ 
not only displayed the personal characteristics of Miss __ 
Roff, but she exhibited a knowledge of Mary’s life which 
would have been quite beyond the capacity of either _ 
Iurancy or her parents. The Roffs themselves were — 
convinced that their daughter had returned in the body 
of Miss Vennun. One knows how readily eager-to-be- _ 
lieve parents might be momentarily deceived in the dim 
light of a seance room, but the Roffs were able to live 
with “Mary” for a period of several months. At no time 
did she falter in her knowledge of incidents and people __ 
3 which she would have been acquainted as Mary 

__And at no time did “Mary” claim to be a past life of 
Lurancy Vennum. “Mary” had temporarily returned in 
Lurancy Vennum’s body, and she spoke of Miss Ven- | 
num as a separate and distinctly different personality. 
(The same thing was true in the Dave Dean communi- _ 
cations. At no time did the frontiersman claim to be a ~ 
previous life of William Thatcher, the medium.) a 
_ This element of behavior on the part of the surviving 
or communicating endl seems to offer the investi- 
gator the principal difference between temporary pos- 
session and cases Seyi of reincarnation. At no 
time, in cases where the percipient of the experience 
seems truly to recall a prior life, does another personality 
claim to be utilizing the body of the percipient as means 
of communication. In true cases suggestive of reincarna- 
a 
— ; i _ 
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‘tion, the ecient claims to  remennee ‘how os once 
_ felt and reacted to his environment in a previous life. 

_ A case similar to that of Mary Roff-Lurancy Vennum, 
in which a separate personality controlled or possessed 

_ the body of the percipient, is that of Iris Farezady, a 
_ 15-year-old girl in Budapest, who seemed to have been 
i “reborn” asa Spanish charwoman. 

“Iris is dead,” Mrs. Farczady told Cornelius Tabori, 
a well-known psychic investigator, when he arrived for 
an interview with the family in 1933. “She left us in 
August. She who lives with us now is a Lucia—a 
woman from Madrid.” 

Mr. Farczady was a chemical engineer. His wife was 
> the daughter of a distinguished Viennese officer. Such 
a respected family as the Farczadys would seem to have 

_ nothing to gain and much to lose by attempting to pe 
petrate a hoax. 

_ Mrs. Farezady told Tabori that she had always prided 
herself on being an enlightened, level-headed woman. 

_ Her daughter, Iris, had been a brilliant pupil—an out- 
_ standing mathematician and linguist, who had studied 
French and German. 
f “Then, that night in August, she felt ‘W. I put pe to 
bed and sat with her. Suddenly she- gave a long sigh. 
oy: I knew that my darling, clever daughter had 

ied. 

“I bent over to listen to her heart; it was still beating. 
But I was right. My daughter had died. The person who 
had taken her body awoke, shouting in some foreign 
‘tongue. We tried to calm her, but she did not under- 
stand us. She jumped from the bed and tried to run 

_ from the house. She kept mentioning Pedro and Madrid. 
At last we realized that she was speaking Spanish.” 
Try as the family would to communicate with Iris, 
‘she would speak only Spanish. She could neither under- 
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email. It took the concentrated efforts of the large _ 
k a single word “of Hinson, Preach O 

Farezady clan to teach her enough German so that they ae 
: might be able to converse with her. 

‘Tabori addressed Iris in German and récetved. aS 
angry one because he had not called her by her oe 

“real” name. 
“My name is Tncia Sie. ” she corrected him in lee ae 

heavily accented German. During the interview, she ex- _ 
plained to the investigator that she had felt very ill that’ — 
August afternoon in Madrid. Her husband, Pedro, had 
been away at work, When Lucia realized that she was 
‘dying, her first concern had been for her fourteen chil- ue 

- dren—one for each year of her married life. 

I was shocked,” Lucia-Iris told the researcher. “I won- 
dered what had happened to me and where my black 
eyes and thick dark hair had gone. Now I find it quite 
pleasing that in my new life, I am such a lovely young — 

Mrs. Farezady commented to Tabori on the eat ae 
diversity of temperament between her serious, studious a 
Tris and the gay Lucia, who sang and danced forthem. = 
“When I first looked into the mirror after coming here. Eu 

girl. My only regret is for my poor motherless children.” 
_ To seek substantiation for the bizarre story from a0 ‘G 
member outside of the immediate family circle, Tabori _ 

_ later visited Dr. Tibor Huempfner, a Cistercian profes- : 
sor who had spent many years in Madrid. The professor 
‘remarked that he had been astonished when the girl 
; spoke Spanish to him and described the churches of 
‘Madrid in great detail. Huempfner had also been pres-— : 
ent at a party where Iris-Lucia had amazed a Spanish — 
_ by apedking to him in a perfect Madrid es oe 

a lost his ability to speak in his native one 

Sy 

~The’ case of Concetto Buonsignore is also one of aun as 
aan possession -by a controlling entity that the 



_ speaking ancient Greek in the voice of one who had: 
_ been dead for 2,700 years. Again, at no time, did the 

_ “voice” claim to be recalling a previous existence of the 

simple farmer. eager = 
Thinking that her husband had been overtaken by 

a spirit, or at the very least become insane, his wife 
motioned for him to follow her, and she led him to the 

priest of the small Sicilian town. The peasants, who | 
greeted. him along the way, were astounded to hear him 
babble back unintelligbly, as if he did not know them 
at all. After a moment’s concern, they shrugged it off as 

' the after effects of the previous evening’s festival. 
After listening to the man, the priest realized that he 

_ was not simply mouthing meaningless prattle. “Your 
husband is speaking in some strange language,” he in- 

formed the wife of Buonsignore. 
“What language?” the wife asked with a scowl. “He's 

never been off Sicily!” 
_ But the priest was convinced that the old peasant 
farmer was speaking in some unfamiliar tongue. He 

sent for Father B., stationed in Palermo, who was a 
professor of literature, and had great facility with lan- 
guages. The priest came to Pergusa and listened care- 
fully as Concetto Buonsignore spoke. 

The linguist immediately announced that the man was 
speaking in Greek—though it was a variety of a very 
ancient dialect that the scholar had only come across in 
the Greek of Homer and his contemporaries. 

After listening for a while longer, Father B. came to 
the astonishing conclusion that the Sicilian peasant was 
reliving a personality that was 27 centuries old] 

The first time that Concetto Buonsignore had even 
heard of Greece was when his son was sent to that coun- 
try with an expeditionary force of the Italian army in 
World War II. But, as the Sicilian spoke to Father B., 
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Buonsignore, a Sicilian peasant, awoke one morning 



: od the surroundings and the times of the an- 
cient city of Athens. — . i 

His house, he claimed, was in front of the altar and 
the temple of Demeter, and the dwelling was shaded 
by a large tree. He described a distinguished military : 
career in which he had fought for his city-state as a 
soldier and a sailor. The priest was able to identify one _ | 
of the battles in which he had taken part as the battle 
of Aegospotami in 405 B.C. l 
The “voice” went on to describe in correct detail how 

the Athenians had lost the naval battle by not heeding — 
the words of Alcibiades, and how, the following year, — 

Sparta had been able to dissolve the Athenian empiy ' 
because of the loss of the fleet. 

Concetto Buonsignore quickly eae aL celebrite 
and newsmen began to converge on the island of Sicily — Ei 
and on the town of Pergusa. 
The journal La Domenica del Corriere did print a 

long article reviewing the strange manifestation in its — 
December 29, 1946 issue. The Milan reporter was one 
of the few whe had arrived in time to hear the peasant 
use the ancient Greek tongue. 
On the fifth day of possession, the personality of the 

ancient Greek sailor left the body of Buonsignore as sud-. ; 
denly as it had come. The last words spoken in the an- 
cient tongue were directed at his wife: “I feel hungry.” 
From that time on, the peasant lapsed back into his 

original personality and to the Sicilian dialect that he 
had spoken from birth. 

The actual conversations that occurred between the 
- Pergusa priest and the peasant farmer, while Buonsig- 
more was in the entranced state, were recorded, wit- 28 

“nessed, notarized, and filed with the French Academy © 
of Eoiences in Paris. The language professor, Father B., 
“called in from Palermo, also signed the document as a 
s aaa 
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_ And then there are those who voluntarily offer them- 
selves as temporary — physical dwellings for those who 

have “passed over.” Especially in the phenomenon 
- known as spirit healing do we find individuals who al- 
_ low their bodies to be possessed by the alleged spirits 
_ of deceased physicians so that the great healers’ work 
might be continued. 

Dona Silvina, one of Portugal’s most well-known witch- 
es, receives more than 100 clients a day. Her tiny house 

sometimes becomes so crowded that apprentice witches 
_ distribute numbered cards at the entrance, supermarket 
_ style,-and Dona Silvina treats patients in groups of 
ove. 

Several pairs of crutches hang on the wall in silent 
testimony to the cripples who have been cured after a 
visit to the 20th century witch. Dozens of letters from 
grateful patients swell the files of this most unusual 

MIG, ox 
The portly witch takes no credit for herself. “Every- 

_ thing that I give comes from my hands. They transmit 
__ the good wishes of the good doctor, Dr. Sousa Martins.” 
Dr. Sousa Martins died 70 years ago after a life of 
unselfish work among the poor people of Portugal. Dona 

_ Silvina claims that she allows the spirit of the doctoz 
to “incarnate” within her and to use her body as an in- 
strument by which he might continue his ministry of 
healing. 

-. Dona Silvina invokes the incarnation of Dr. Sousa 
_ Martins by repeating a set speech: “Let us thank our 

_ brother, Dr. Sousa Martins, for the cures he is about to 
_ give us.” 

Once the invocation has been uttered, the witch goes 
- into convulsions near her altar. The patients who have 
come to seek the curative gifts of the spirit doctor also 

_ begin to writhe about on rugs which have been’ scat- 
_ tered on the floor. Sega 

{ 
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When the spirit has pee to possess as ak Dona 4 : 

Silvina sits on a low chair beside her creaky iron bed. 
From deep within her throat comes a manly growl a 
which is allegedly Dr. Sousa Martins’ voice. 

“I miss the earth,” the voice tells those assembled. te 
miss my sick patients.” ; 

' Once incarnated in the ample flesh of Dona Silvina, 
the spirit of the doctor wastes little time. At once, he 
sets about prescribing healing rituals and calling forth i 

_ various patients to be cured. 
_ For those patients who claim to have benefited from 

‘the bizarre clinic: of Dona Silvina, it matters little that — 
they have allegedly been treated by a doctor who has 
been dead for over 70 years. 

A MOST UNUSUAL FAMILY 

The lovely Maria Januaria de Oliveiro was dying. At 
the entrance of her close friend, Ida Lorenz, she man- . 
aged a’ slight smile. “Thank God you came in time,” 
Maria said. 

“Hush with that kind of talk, Sinha,” Mrs. Lorenz — 
said, using Maria’s nickname. “You will soon be well.” 
_ Maria began a grim chuckle that ended in a painful 
Spasm of coughing. When she had regained control, she _ 
said, “See there, the lungs are too far gone. I have 
planned it all rather well.” 
% Ida Lorenz shook her head sadly. It was common 
“Knowledge among the Oliveiro family and their close 
friends that Sinha had deliberately exposed herself to 
the cold, damp weather. She had contracted a severe 
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£ Paleroon of her ime ce apie which ae de! 
_ veloped into tuberculosis. 

“I have planned it all,” Sinha acknowledged, as if she 
could read her friend’s thoughts. “I wanted to die.” 

_ “But why Sinha?” Ida Lorenz asked, no longer mak- 
__ ing an effort to check the tears that had begun to well in 
her eyes. “The beautiful daughter of a wealthy rancher 
in Rio Grande do Sul, you had everything to live for.” 
if “I shall tell you why, my friend,” Sinha gasped. “Let 
us start with the men who loved me, but who were 

driven away from my side by my disapproving father. 
- One man even committed suicide because of mel 
_ “In spite.of my wealth, I have been lonely out here 

away from city life. My only happiness has been my 
_ visits to the village of Dom Feliciano to visit with you 
and your husband. You are a good woman, Ida Lorenz, 
i and that is why I have planned my death so well.” 
Ida frowned. “I—I don’t understand.” 

“I am going to come back as your deuce Ida,” 
Sinha said, a fierce intensity strengthening the wispy 
‘timbre of her voice. “I shall be reborn into your family. 
I shall be the child of Ida Lorenz, wife of F. Y. Lorenz, — 
Eas schoolmaster. I know that my next incarnation 

shall be a happy one!” 
On August 14, 1918, ten months after the death of 

_ Sinha de Oliveiro, Ida Lorenz gave birth to a daughter, 
~ Marta. When the child was two and a half years old, 
she began to recall events in her life as Sinha. 

Her older sister, Lola, was the first to report Marta’s 
_ strange conversation of a time “when she was big.” 

It began that day when Marta beseeched her sister 
~ to carry her on her back. “You have legs of your own to 
walk on,” ” Lola scowled. “There is no need for me to 
ed you? 5 S: 
aoe lower ne quivered in a pout. "When ae | 
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"were Snail: and r ‘was s big, T used to carry you often oe 
enough!” ee 

Lola laughed at her young sister’ s ‘eure “When were ee 
you ever bigger than you are now, little peanut?” es 
“When I lived with my other parents with the cows, | : 

oxen, and oranges on the ranch,” Marta replied promptly: 
Lola repeated Marta’s humorous remark to her school- __ 

master father. Mr. Lorenz smiled and gently told vis a 
child that they had never lived on a ranch. : os 

“I don’t mean you,” Marta said. “I had ie parents | 
in those days.” 

“And did you have a little native servant like we © 
have?” one of Marta’s other sisters teased. 
“No,” Marta replied after a moment's thought. “Our ‘ 

. servant was big. We did have a little native boy, though, 
and one day Father beat him for forgetting to fetch 
water from the well.” 

“Marta!” Mr. Lorenz said tee “I have never beaten : 
a servant.” . 
yam speaking of my other father,” Marta sighed im- 
patiently. “And all the time my other father was beat- 
‘ing him, the little boy kept shouting, ‘Sinha, help mel’” 

_ Mr. Lorenz was visibly taken aback by Marta’s iden- 
_tifying herself with Sinha de Oliveiro. Neither he nor 
his wife had ever discussed Sinha’s deathbed promise, 
to return as their daughter, in front of the children. From _ 2 

_ that day on, the Lorenz children would be made in- 
_ creasingly familiar with the fact that their sister Marta — | 

claimed to have been among them before as “Maria- 
something-or-other-Oliveiro, but call me Sinha.” 
Marta. made over 120 declarations of her life as Sinha, - 

and each of these declarations was duly recorded and 
_ yerified by her father. o os 
__ She often expressed favoritism toward her brother, 
_ Carlos, and protested violently whenever she thought 

_ that other members of the Lorenz family might be mis- > 
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. treating him. When asked why she elt so protective 
o toward her older brother, she reminded them that she , 
__ (Sinha) had been Carlo’s godmother. 
_- When she was a child, her remembrances were usually 
prefaced with the phrase, “When I was big,” but as she 

_ grew older she became more direct and recounted epi- 
~ sodes in her previous life by beginning, “When I wa. 

Sinha.” 
Once during a rainstorm, one of the Lorenz children 
_ began to sob about a deceased sister, Emilia. “She will 

_ get wet down in her grave,” the child worried. 
__ Marta comforted her sibling by telling her that Emilia 

was not in the graveyard at all. “She is in a much better 
place than the one we are in,” Marta said. “Her soul will 
always be safe.” 

Marta ceased being obsessed with her alleged life as 
Sinha when she was between the ages of seven and ten. 
She continued to speak of her former incarnation and 

_ her memory remained vivid, but she had begun to ad- 
_ just to life as a member of the Lorenz family. After all, 
_ that had been Sinha’s wish, to return as the daughter of 
her friend, Ida. _ ; 
_.. Mr. Lorenz did not inform Mr. de Oliveiro of his 

daughter's supposed rebirth until Marta was twelve. 
~ Mrs. de Oliveiro was never told of Sinha’s alleged return. 
_. Marta Lorenz grew up, married, and had a family of 
_her own. In 1962, when she was interviewed by Dr. Ian 

_ Stevenson, Marta was living in Porto Alegre. She told 
the investigator that she had not forgotten her life as 
Sinha. Her death from tuberculosis remained particu- 
larly vivid in her memory of the former incarnation. 

One reincarnation in a family would seem to be more 
than enough, but the F. V. Lorenz.household hosted 

_ two children who claimed prior lives. 
_ In October of 1921, the sister Emilia committed sui- 
cide by taking cyanide. She had been the second child 
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t daughter of the Lorenz family. She had been 
in 1902 and had been given the name Emilia after _ 

Emilio, the Lorenz’ first child, a boy, who had died in _ 
infancy. ¢ See : 

According to the family, Emilia had not been happy 
as a girl and had repeatedly told members of the Lorenz _ 
household that if there were anything to the doctrine of __ 
reincarnation, she would return as a man. She rejected — | 
all preposals of marriage and made a number. of suicide _ 
attempts before she swallowed the dose of cyanide. 

Sometime after the death of Emilia, Mrs. Lorenz was _ 
given a spirit message while taking part in a seance, 
Mamma, I will come as your son,” said a voice she 

recognized as that of her deceased daughter. “Take me 
as your son.” 

~ Ida Lorenz was most skeptical about the spirit’s plan — 
for return, as she had already borne twelve children, of 
whom the youngest was the then three-year-old Marta, 
who claimed to be her deceased friend, Sinha. The spirit, 
however, was willing, and regardless of how weak the — 
flesh may have supposed itself, Mrs. Lorenz did conceive 
for the thirteenth time. A little less than a year anda 
half after Emilia’s suicide, she gave birth to a boy, — 
whom the Lorenz’ gave the name Emilio. fie 

In Emilio, or Paulo, as he preferred, the.reincarnated — : 

Spirit seemed to become just a bit confused. If he were _ 
indeed Emilia returned as a boy, he should have been — 

_ a rugged-type fellow who enjoyed being a boy. Emilia _ 
had, after all, given her dissatisfaction with her lot as _ 
_ 4 girl as the principal reason for her suicide./But Paulo — 
* steadfastly refused to wear boy’s clothing, preferred to 

_ play with girls and dolls, gave evidence of an extraordi- 
nary talent for sewing, and identified himself with the 
_ deceased Emilia. hese 
_ At last, when he was five, Paulo accepted a pair of | 
_ trousers, which had been made out of a skirt belonging 
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to the deceased Emilia, and this act ee, to bring 
oe about an increased acceptance of his sex role. Even as 
= a grown man, however, (Dr. Stevenson was also able to 
interview Paulo during his visit to Brazilin 1962) Paulo 
Lorenz maintained an exceptionally strong identification 
with the feminine personality. He had never married 
and did, in fact, shun the company of women. It ap- 
: _ pears, then, that Emilia, if she did return, had taken that 
_ dose of cyanide in vain. Life as a man was obviously 
ae not the answer to her distress in the previous incarnation. 
. Our unusual family in Brazil opens up a most inter- 
esting point of speculation. We do not at our present 
level of scientific inquiry and knowledge know the limi- 
tations of genetic transmission. Neither do we know how 

_ much the mind of the mother can affect the develop- 
ment of the gestating child she carries in her womb. 
a Mrs. Ida Lorenz is the common factor in both of these 

cases suggestive of reincarnation. Could she have been 
able, in some as yet unknown manner, to have forced 
the identification of Marta with Sinha and of Paulo with 
_ Emilia by impressing this suggestion on the minds of her 

ws unborn children? 

THE MYSTERY OF NAOMI HENRY 

E 4 March, 1956, Henry Blythe, a professional ype 
 tist, was commissioned by the London Daily Express 

_ to undertake a duplication of Morey Bernstein's experi- 
ments with ‘ ‘Bridey Murphy.” 

__ As his subject in the experiment, Blythe chose Mrs. 
Naomi Henry, a 32-year-old housewife from Exeter. 
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e mother of four children, i proved i 
an exceptionally good subject in past demonstrations. _ 

% She went under hypnosis rapidly, entered an unusually es 
deep trance state, and was very sensitive to Blythe's _ 
suggestions and commands. 
In an early series of experiments with Mrs, featy 

Blythe felt that he had been able to project her astral 
-self from her body and accomplish remarkable feats of 
telepathy. gee 
In his book, The Three Lives of Naomi Hea, Blythe eae 

wrote that he had succeeded in taking Naomi’s ‘self, = 
‘soul’ or ‘spirit’ out of her physical body. If he could re- 
sea this phenomenon before an audience, he would — 

a position to prove that the ‘self’ can leave the body 
_and that therefore physical death need not be the end 
of everything because it was possible for the ‘self to 
exist outside the human envelope which encased it. 

According to Blythe, he and Naomi succeeded won- 
derfully well in their demonstrations before large audi- _ 

_ ences at St. Mary’s Bay holiday camp, Brixham. Blythe 
‘did, however, note that Naomi seemed exhausted after _ 

_ each performance and called for several glasses of water. — 
arn h notist became concerned for the woman’s health, — : 

her husband, and Blythe ceased to use Mrs. - 
ay Henry as a subject in 1951. Poe 
_ But now, five years later, there was a new challenge. e 

- The Daily Express had offered £250 for evidence of an- 
‘authentic case of reincarnation in Britain. Blythe had — 
“accomplished age regression with several subjects, and_ 
he felt that if any one could recall a former life under 

| hypnosis, as in the Bridey Murphy case, it would be 
_ Mrs. Naomi Henry. 3 
On the afternoon of Morch 28, 1956, in the presence 

four reporters, Blythe regressed Mrs. Henry as far 
Pack a s her memory would go. The Piet was com- 
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; handed to tell shoes: semble oie she v ‘was and ‘ena 
- she was. 

- After a pause, her voice softly acknowledged that 
she was “Mary.” 

During that first session, Naomi-Mary told the hypno- 
__tist and the representatives of the press that she was a 

17-year-old Irish farmgirl from Cork named Mary Co- 
hen (because of this unusual surname for an Irish family, 
the name was thought, perhaps, to be Coen, Cowen, or 

- Cowan—names which would sound the same as Cohen 
' when spoken). Naomi-Mary recalled that the farm on 
which she lived was called Greengates, that the nearest 
village was Grener, and that her greatest affection was 
directed toward her 15-year-old brother, Sean. 

The newspapermen were greatly impressed with 
Blythe’s initial success and greatly urged him to attempt 
to discover more details of the Mary-life during the next 
session. : 
It was because of their insistence that Blythe try to 

learn the details of Mary’s death that a most terrible 
and frightening thing occurred during that next experi- 
ment. 

_. Blythe had begun by taking Naomi-Mary back to her 
_ life at age 27. By this time, “Mary” had been married 

to a man named Gaul, whom she did not love, and had 
had two sons. When Blythe progressed the personality 

to age fifty, the hypnotist and the assembled witnesses 

noted the physiological change which seemed to come 

over Mrs. Henry. A pained expression distorted her 
_ features; her mouth pulled down at the corners; and she 
looked older. Her attitude was one of bitterness toward 

a brutal husband who beat her and mistreated their sons. 
Blythe moved Naomi-Mary up to age 60. At this stage, 

her speech became that of an old and senile woman. 
She was uncertain of her_ surroundings, vague about 
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3 s, and who was with he She told 1 Blythe 
he ie able to hobble about on “sticks.” 

The hypnotist jumped ahead another ten years. The =: 
personality asked to lie down. Blythe assured her that Bon 
‘she was lying down and need not fear. | exer 
He asked her how much longer she had to live. ae 
oad the voice whispered that a woman said not 

hen, after Blythe promised Naomi-Mary that things : 
Gould soon be peaceful for her, the personality uttered, 
“Praise God!” ve 
‘He was watching her closely, his fingers on the vse 

on her left wrist, Blythe wrote of the session. Sud enly © 
he felt her pulse die away, her breathing, clearly audi- _ 
ble in the room during both sessions—stopped, every _ 
‘trace of color gone from her face. She appeared to be 
dead. He bent close to try and discover a trace of a 
breath, but there was nothing. vite 
By urgently assuring Naomi-Mary that she was cake ae 
- managed to bring her out of the state of sus- 

; animation into which she had entered. oe 
_ Although Mrs. Henry bore no ill-effects from hee five sue 

“seconds of “death,” the Daily Express chose to remove _ 
their support from the experiments at once. On April 
28th, Donald Gomery wrote of his paper's decision to 
abandon the investigation.  - se 

_ Gomery related that a number of experiments across ~ 
the whole of Britain, all conducted by-professional hyp- 

tists, had produced some most startling results. Then _ 
‘mentioned the chilling episode which had taken — 

Place during Blythe’s second session. 
‘That woman, he pointed out, had “died” at 66. When 

‘the hypnotist asked what she was doing at 70 she — 
: .* that she was “dead.” Then she stopped brea S 

oe is vy ie felt the experiments should not con- 7 
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_ tinue— Because he now  elioved that Ae la Ssciges 
He confessed that when the report reached him, he 

felt more than frightened—he felt acutely afraid al. 
though the experiment was carried out by a professiona 
hypnotist of known ability in front of witnesses. He wa: 
afraid that publication of such experiments might in. 
duce others, not sufficiently qualified, to carry out simila 
“a ates without proper supervision, - experiment: 

_that might have a damaging effect on the subject. 
Blythe could not argue with the Daily Express de 

cision. He felt that it was a blow to discontinue the in 
vestigation, but he could sympathize with the news 

- paper's position if even one amateur hypnotist were te 
regress even one person and possibly his heartbeats a: 
a result of having read the series in the Daily Express. 

To Blythe’s great joy, however, Mrs. Henry agreec 
to continue the experiments privately. _ 

On May 18th, in the hypnotist’s bite room, the 
investigation began its second session. Attending as wit 
nesses were Mrs. Blythe, Dr. William C. Minifie, osteo 

- path, Douglas Warner, author, and Elizabeth Warner 
who was given the task of shorthand reporter. Althoug} 
_a tape recording was made of nearly all the sessions, Mrs 
_ Warner’s notes were useful both as a check against th 
tapes and as an ever-alert human record. The tape re 

_ corder needed to have its spools changed and might b 

“deaf” at a crucial moment. 
Blythe brought Naomi back to her life as Mary Cohe! 

vand the investigators learned additional facts | aie the 
Irish girl's existence. 

Her parents had literally given the bride away in mar 
riage to Arthur Gaul. Mary protested that she did no 

_ Jove her husband, but that her mother had told her tha 
she couldn't keep her any longer. 
The only pleasantness which Mary could remembe 
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entire lifetime was the sh ctoone whick she spent 
meadows with her younger brother, Sean. = 

_ Her death had come on the floor of an old house. Two 
or three old women and one old man had witnessed her | 
death. Mary’s last days were spent in pain, hobbling _ 
about on sticks, because her husband beat her so are Pes 
that he had broken a degre ree 
When Blythe asked her if she were glad to Shave fin- i 

ished that life, she answered, “Oh, yes!” € 
' Then the hypnotist posed a question which each a we 

the investigators had been eagerly | awaiting: What © = 
happened to her in between that life when she was _ 
Mary Cohen and when she came back again to us... 
what was she doing in between that life and this? - 

_ Each member of the group leaned forward epee 
tantly. Would they now hear details of what life was like - 
after death? Would they at last be able to tell their fel- 
low man what kind of existence he might pee be- 
yond the grave? ee 

“Nursing,” came the answer. ae 
__ The investigators shot one another bewildered glances, ae 
Blythe temporarily found himself at a loss for words. 
Her reply had been so totally unexpected that the hyp- is 
hotist was forced to take a few moments to ge. a 
control, 

“When he was once again able to direct his questions ae 
to the entranced subject, Blythe was startled to lean 
that he had uncovered. yet another life of Naomi Henry. 

‘In this life, the personality had been much happier. 
es name had been Clarice Hellier, and she had been a 
‘Turse, who, at the turn of the century, had been re- 
pease for the care of twenty-four children. | Le 

Clarice’s life had been short and uneventful. She had e 
Pied at 32 of a goiter in her throat, completely con- 
tented that her life had been spent caring for her won- i d 
. children, : 
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_A crippled boy named Bobby had received the mos 
< attention from the nurse, and both Blythe and the othe 

__. investigators noted the similarity between her love fo 
_ Sean (in Mary’s life) and her affection for the cripple 

_ Bobby. The comparison was brought into even sharpe 
focus when the hypnotist regressed the personality bac 
to Mary’s life and they learned that Sean, too, had bee! 
a cripplel ; 

During the fifth and last experiment, Naomi-Claric 
was brought up to her time of death, She said she wa 
at Westbury on Tyrm. 

_ Blythe asked Clarice what she was doing at Westbur 
on Tyrm. 

_ Clarice spoke slowly, squinting as if she were tryin 
to read something which she could see but dimly. Sh 
hesitantly mentioned numbers, ending with the numbe 
two hundred and seven! ; 

Blythe asked her what the number meant. 
. There was a long pause, and the investigators leane: 

_ forward to catch the faint, single word, Grave. 
_ Clarice had been reading the number of her grave 
stone! aoe | 

Then the voice was still. Blythe knew that this wa 
the end of memory. g 

Gently the hypnotist spoke to Mrs. Henry and tok 
_ her that the experiments were over. He assured her tha 
he could take away every. memory trace of what sh 

» had told them. She would go back to being her norma 
self. All memories of her previous existences would b 
wiped away, cleared from her mind and soul. She woul 
come back to them as a normal, ordinary woman. 

In the conclusion to his book, Blythe lists seven hy 
potheses which might explain the three lives of Naom 
Henry: 1.) that he perpetrated an elaborate hoax t 
gain publicity for himself; 2.) that Naomi Henry man 
aged an ingenious deception; 3.) that the subconsciou: 
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brought about the hoax; 6.) that the revelation of past 
lives is a Salen the spirit world to be used for man- 
cind’s enlightenment; 7.) that the experiments have 
proved reincarnation—that is, the re-birth after death : :: 
of One spirit in the body of a new creation. 
Blythe hopes that his reputation will serve to eli. ae 

of the hypnotist placed the deception into the © 
subconscious of Mrs. Henry; 4.) that the hypnotist — 
dredged up a compilation of strange memories from the — 
subconscious of Mrs. Henry; 5.) that malignant spirits. 

nate hypothesis number one from consideration. The — i 
motist believes that Mrs. Henry must certainly be 

absolved. Not only does he consider the woman mentally _ 3 

and morally incapable of practicing a deliberate decep- 
tion of such creative magnitude and histrionic ability, 

but he points out that even the greatest actress could . : 

hot have stopped her pulse and breathing for five sec- 

onds and frightened a great newspaper into calling off 
$0 promising a series of investigations. od 

Blythe does give the third hypothesis its due, and he 
admits that Douglas Warner, the author who served as 
pne of the witnesses, is inclined toward that particular 
explanation. The hypnotist personally rejects this theory, oe 

ever, because he, in his experience, has “never 
known the subconscious to act so ‘out of character.’ ” For 

the same reason, Blythe discards the fourth hypothesis. — 
_ As for the supernatural explanation postulated in the 

fourth and fifth theories, Blythe admits that he has no 
evidence to support spirit activity, but he concedes that 
such phenomena “may be possible.” 
The seventh hypothesis, that reincarnation is: fact, (4 

Blythe feels may be supported by several confirming 
items which were subsequently uncovered by private 
investigators assigned to gather evidence of the physical 
existence of Mary Cohen and Clarice Hellier. 

: _ The hypnotist is most impressed by the fact that Mary- = 
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- Clarice-Naomi is recognizable through two centuries as_ 
_ basically the same person, If Naomi Henry had re- 
vealed an existence in 1790 as the daughter of a king, 

“the whole story would have been less credible, while as 
Mary Cohen and Clarice Hellier there is an essential 
rightness which puts no strain on credulity. 

It must have been this essential “rightness” which 
prompted Annie Besant to write (The Ancient Wisdom) 
that with reincarnation man is a dignified, immortal 
being, evolving towards a divinely glorious end; with- 
out it, he is a tossing straw on the stream of chance cir- 
cumstances, irresponsible for his character, for his ac- 
tions, for his destiny. a 

Do the three lives of Naomi Henry prove reincarna- 
tion with its evolution toward a “divinely glorious end?” 
Whatever hypothesis one wishes to accept at this point, 
the evidence amassed by Henry Blythe during the five 
sessions of hypnotically controlled regression must cer- 
tainly be judged as most impressive. Whether the evi- 

- dence offers substantial proof of reincarnation or another 
startling facet of mind, Blythe has made,a great con- 
tribution toward the “final judgment.” ’ 

WHOSE HAND GUIDED THE PAINTBRUSH? 

The young woman tossed fitfully in her sleep. Things 
-had not been going as she might have wished. First 
there had been the divorce, then the determination to 

_ leave her native Holland and come to Paris to support 
herself by her painting. 

_ Tonight she had driven herself to the point of exhaus- 
tion so that she might collapse into the merciful arms of 
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sleep. lex: a oaied | into wakefulness ae 
Shee insistence on working long past midnight; now re- 
fused to be stilled, and even ae she slept, it was a 
sleep of the most superficial kind. -_— 

“Dont be so lazy, Weisz,” she heard a voice say, 
“get up and work.” 

Cautiously she opened one eye. There was no one 
there. She was alone and she knew it. 

“Get up, Weisz. Great art is not accomplished while 
‘one lies sluggishly in bed.” 

This time she opened both eyes and propped herself — 
‘up on an elbow. : 

“To your easel, Weisz!” 
Henriette Weisz-Roos was now wide awake. She was 

as curious about the voice’s insistence in calling her solely 
by her married name as she was by the eerie fact that 
“there was no body to accompany the voice. — 

Under her own name, Henriette had acquired a repu-— 
tation as a Dutch portrait painter. She had married a 
man named Weisz, whom she had subsequently di- 
yorced. Although it is the custom in Holland for di-— 

_ yorced women to resume their maiden names, Henriette. _ 
Roos continued to work under her married name. She 
was rebuked by her mother for thus flaunting conven- 

_ tion, but Henriette explained to her mother that, for - 
some unaccountable reason, she liked the name Weisz. 

“It is a very strange feeling,” she’ tried to explain to 
her perplexed mother, “but somehow that name seems 

_ to suit me. I feel one with it. It is more me than my own 
‘Mame, Roos. Whenever people call me by my maiden _ 
_mame, I have the feeling that they are talking to some- 
one else.” 
At last Henriette decided to. compromise with custom 
and to call herself Mrs. Weisz-Roos. 
| ‘But | e she was alone in her studio in Paris, with 
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some. disembodied voice calling her by ; her m 

“Weisz,” the voice insisted. “Get out — bed and Pete 
_ to your easell” 

_ At last Henriette obeyed the demanre of her invisible 
ey Peet and slid her feet out from beneath the covers. 

“No lights!” the voice cautioned. 
“How am I to paint in the dark?” Henriette won- 

_ dered aloud. 
Then, as she described the incident in a personal 

communication to Dr. Ian Stevenson, who quoted the 
_ episode in his essay, “The Evidence for Survival from 

- Claimed Memories of Former Incarnations,” Henriette 
began to paint with feverish haste. She scarcely knew 
what she was doing, but after a time she felt better, be- 

a came drowsy, and returned to bed and to sleep. 
When she awakened the next morning, she was 

amazed to discover that she had painted a beautiful 
- little portrait of a young woman. 

Henriette was completely puzzled by the whole affair. 
Later, when she described the uncanny incident to.a 
_ friend, her confidante recommended that she take the 
painting to a psychic sensitive who practiced psychome- 
_. try, the ability to determine information about an object 
simply by touching it. 

When Mrs. Weisz-Roos brought the painting to the 
sensitive, the clairvoyant took the frame in his hands and 
lightly touched the surface of the portrait. In what 
- seemed to be only a matter of a few seconds, the man 

_ had gone into a trance. 
“Letters,” he said in a hoarse whisper. “I see very large 

golden letters. And a name... a name is spelled for me. 
i _ Itis G-O-Y-A .. . Goya, the great Spanish painter. 

“He tells me that he was forced to fly from his coun- 
_ try because of his enemies. It was you who received him 
in your home; it was you who offered him your peered 
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“tion j in 2 your home: in in a hig contin aya in France, He | : 2 
lived with you until the end of his life. i 

“Goya has remained so thankful for your kindness in é eS 
that life, that he wishes to guide you. You seldom relax 
your guard, You make it most difficult for him to repay 
his debt. That was why he made you paint in the re | $3 
"so you could not see what you were doing!” 

Goya! Henriette Weisz-Roos was stunned. The spite 
_of the great Spanish painter had come to her. But why? 
‘What did the sensitive mean when he said that she had 
protected Goya in her home in southern France? She 
was Dutch with no French blood, and she had certainly 

never owned an estate in France and was not even born 

until many years after Goya’s death. Could the sensi- 
_tive have been referring to a past life? 

Later that same evening, Henriette Weisz-Roos re- 
ceived an answer to the enigma. While she was at the 
_home of a friend, she noticed that her host owned a 
‘copy of the life of Goya. As she flipped through the _ 
_ pages seeking a clue to the awe she came upon_an 
account of Leocadia Weisz. . 

THE MURDERED MAN AND THE TEENAGE GIRL 

_ Fourteen-year-old Maria Talarico oe a group of hee : 
fedends stood on the bridge that spanned the Corace — 
“River between Siano and Catanzaro, Italy, and stared 
‘down at the battered body of the young man that lay 

“sprawled on the rocks of the riverbank far below. It 
was February 13, 1936. 

“What do you think happened, Maria?” asked one of 
her schoolgirl. eorpanions: . 
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aes was a carouser. ae no good!” shouted an old 
woman from the crowd. She had overheard the girls 

question and took advantage of the teenager's attention 
_ to deliver an impromptu lecture on the evils of the 
younger generation. “Take heed from his example,” the 

woman told them sternly, wagging a plump finger un- 
der their noses. “That is how wastrels end their lives!” 

‘ Maria and her friends left the old harridan to shout 
her lecture to other hapless teenagers. That night, the 
girl read in the newspaper about the death of Guiseppe 
_ Veraldi, who had been found on the rocks below the 

_ Corace River bridge. He had been stripped half-naked 
and his clothes had been scattered about the riverbank. 

- His left arm had been broken and doubled under his 
chest. Coroners determined that the young man had 

- also suffered a fractured skull. Police ruled that Gui- 
seppe had thrown himself off the eo ‘in despair 
over an unfortunate love affair. — 

oe Maria Talarico folded the: newspaper and. decided 
“not to concern her pretty head with another thought 

about the unfortunate Guiseppe. 
Fate, it seems, had decided differently, 
‘Three years later, on January 5, 1939, Maria and her 

grandmother were crossing the bridge when the seven- 
teen-year-old girl suddenly dropped to the ground in 

a pain. When she was helped to her feet, she was no 
longer the shy young schoolgirl. She was the brazen and 

tough Guiseppe “Pepe” Veraldil 
____ As Pepe, Maria did not recognize a single member of 
her family. She kept calling for “Mother,” but she did 
not want Mrs. Talarico, she insisted upon Mrs. Caterina 

| Veraldi. 
_. It.is fortunate for the annals of psychic research that 
__a number of responsible doctors were available in the 
village, and each of them kept extensive Hoses a 

: Maria's Ss most mysterious malady. 
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; | didn’t jump of that eldee" < Tepes Sot 
at: the investigators. “That. bridge is over one hundred 

feet high. Do you take me for a fool?-I had been drinking — : 
and watching my friends play cards at the Gioso Tav- ae 
ern. I left at midnight with Toto, Damiano, Abele, and 
Rosario. It was those four cowards who beat me- and i 
dragged my dead body down to the rocks!” et 

At last Mrs, Veraldi decided to come to see the idl ae 

_ who claimed to be her son, Pepe. Pepe-Maria was over- _ 
joyed at the sight of her. She pulled up a chair for the — 
woman and lavished affection upen her, “Three years!” ae 
the girl shouted as “Pepe”. “It has been three years since 
I have seen you.” oo 

Mrs. Veraldi had not come without a test for the girl. — 
A brother-in-law unwrapped a picture of Pepe's sister, _ 
whom Maria Talarico could never have seen. “Who is — 
this girl, Pepe?” Mrs. Veraldi asked. . 

_ Maria-Pepe immediately identified “his” sister and re- _ 
~ lated a humorous incident involving the girl. 

“You must not think that I would commit suicide,” - 
Pepe’s personality beseeched his mother through the _ 
person of Maria. “I had been drinking. Twenty-four — 
glasses of wine I had drunk that night. And they put > 
something in my wine. There were four of them. I de- 

- fended myself as best I could. They beat me with iron 
_ bars and stones. They broke my jaw and my arm. Ne 

“Tt is as I have already told the silly police. Did they 
_ think that I would jump over one hundred feet and then _ 
get up and take’ off half my clothes? My false friends _ 

killed me and dragged me down to the rocks. They ce 
__ took off my clothes and scattered them.” 

_ Pepe told his mother and the assembled investigators 
_ that one of his murderers, Abele, had died of a heart 

" attack in September of 1938, Toto, according to Pepe, © 
_ was badly wounded while fighting with Mussolini’s army — 
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_ in East Africa, Both statements - 
- correct. see a S a 

_ “The cur, Damiano, is on his way to this house at this 
very moment,” Pepe told the physicians. “He has come 

_ to make sport of the little girl who thinks she is Pepe, 
_ but I am ready for him!” . 

_ Within minutes, Damiano, one of those whom the 
spirit of Pepe had accused of murdering him, did in- 

deed appear at the door. He barged into the house and 
immediately charged that those assembled there were as 
insane as the girl if they believed any of the lies that she 

. had been spreading about him. 
; Then Pepe began his barrage of questions about the 

night of the murder. Soon a heavily perspiring Damiano 
was fleeing from the house. He pushed his way past the 

_ physicians, who demanded to question him further, and 
_ shouted that he wanted no part of such traffic with the 
dead. : . 

During Pepe’s possession of Maria, the girl was able 
“to recognize all of the murdered young man’s friends 
- and relatives and to recall intimate details about each 
of them. Pepe’s memory of his last night alive was vivid, 
and he named everyone whom he had seen in and 

-. about the tavern. Some citizens found themselves em- 
_ barrassed as Pepe-Maria recalled lovers’ liasons that he 
__ had observed. seca hie 
_. Pepe returned Maria to her rightful inhabitation of 

her body in as bizarre a manner as he had possessed 
her. He led the investigators down to the rocks be- 

_ side the river, stripped off half the girl’s clothes, then 
stretched out the form of Maria Talarico in precisely the 
_ same position as Guiseppe Veraldi’s body had been 
_ found. Be 

_ - The girl lay on the rocks for about ten minutes before 
she seemingly regained consciousness and began to sit 
up. One of the men who had followed “ Pepe”. to the 

later verified as 



the ae ale was shocked to bud herself in. hak a “ 

tate of undress. 
Maria had not been left with one shred of memory 

‘of the two weeks during which Pepe had possessed her. i 
‘Shamed by the allegation that she had spent a fort- 
night claiming to be a man; Maria Talarico went into 
seclusion and refused to leave her house. 

Later, at the request of one of the physicians who had 
been attending her, Maria issued a statement in which 
' she said she could remember nothing of what others 
were telling her had transpired during that two week 
| ae She had never dreamed of Guiseppe Veraldi. 

had never talked to him while he had been alive. 
‘She had never known him or his family. Maria affirmed 
the fact that she was a healthy seventeen-year-old and — & 
had never been ill. © 

_ Fortunately, Maria Talarico was in no way mentally 
‘impaired by her experience, but she never permitted 
any of her friends to discuss the incredible two weeks 
when her body was possessed by the memory patterns 
ofa erate personality. 

CAN WE REMEMBER a ANCESTORS’ LIVES? — 

Can memory be inherited - genetic transmission? — 
‘The birth of redhead in a family of brunettes is always — 
the subject for a great deal of rather earthy speculation, 
until it is discovered that great-great-grandfather proud- - 
ly wore a fiery mane and beard. The unexpected ap- 
‘pearance of musical talent in a family of folks “who 
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can’t ‘carry a tune ina bucket” ° 
of teetotalers may be due to memory 

| transmitted i in the genes. 
If the miracle of conception, with its pairing of th 

Sollee genes and the father-genes, determine the color | 
of our hair and our eyes, our basic height and weight, an 
our inherent strengths and weaknesses, is it not possible, | 
‘many researchers are asking, that certain dramatic mem- 
ory patterns may also be inherited? ; 

In another of my books, I relate the story of how a | } 
young Jew in Ireland was “cured” of a crippled hand i } 
by the teamwork of a psychiatrist and a psychic sensi- |) 
tive. The sensitive determined that the young man’s” 
‘subconscious carried the violent memories of a Pogrom 
in Czarist Russia. This particular persecution had in- |) 
cluded the rape of the young man’s female ancestor and |) 
the chopping off of the hand of a male ancestor, who | 
had struck back at his attackers. + 
- When the young man was told of the sensitive’s im 
pressions of the origin of his physical debility, he re- 
marked to the doctor that it was as if he had heard it — 
all before long ago. Once the seat of the trauma had — 
been discovered, its therapy could be prescribed along 
the lines of conventional] psychoanalysis. y 

In his article “A Genetic Theory of Reincarnation” |, 
which appeared in Fate, Volney G. ‘Mathison wrote |} 
that the precise knowledge of “how” we inherit physical _ 1 | 
and psychical characteristics remains a mystery to sci-— 
ence. Some of the genes which we have by chanc 
inherited may have last appeared in a remote ancestor. i 
Incredible as it may seem, only 20 generations back, we 
each have 1,048,576 ancestors. Only 40 generations back | 
crowds the family tree with over 140 trillion ancestors. | 
On cellular and bioelectronic levels, elements of all of 
these ancestors are within us, and vast amounts of data_ 
are carried in the minute storage area of the electrons, # 

ergy patterns 
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Mathison ‘theorizes that : since our ; electronic patterns 
transmit detailed information about our forebears’ physi- _ 
cal structures, these patterns may also carry domed: \ 
data relating, he says, to enforced genetic modifications © 
of structure occurring as a consequence of lack of food, 
injuries in combat, pestilences, and other disasters. = 

Mathison believes that certain repetitive dreams or 
hypnotically induced recollections of past lives may be. — 
the reactivated expressions of harmful events suffered — | 3 
by some remote ancestor whose genes were inherited. 

Obviously, not everyone walks around~bent under 
with the sorrows of the trials and tribulations of his an- _ 
cestors. What Mathison is postulating is that some in- 
dividuals may experience disturbing present-moment 
situations which contain elements similar to the disas- 
trous ancient events in their genetic line. 

These, he suggests, trigger images, either symbolic — a 
or actual, of those ancient, unknown past events which 
had decisive effects upon one or more of our force . 
and hence, inevitably upon us. 

Perhaps such a theory of genetic memory explains o 
the case of a man whom an analyst would refer to only 

as Harold. 
Harold was of Gea iiayian stack, and he worked pee 

farm in the heart of rich Midwestern crop land. Since 
ee childhood, Harold had had a morbid fear of fire. 
age hobia had reached such dramatic proportions that 

ild would run screaming from the room if a guest. 
i a cigarette. 
-Harold’s crisis situation was reached when, as a young > e 

man of 32, the barn on the family farm caught fire. 
Harold’s 65-year-old father went into the flaming _ 
iaicine. in an attempt to lead a prize bull to safety. 
‘Timbers collapsed and both Harold’s father ane the ani- 
mal. were proved | in the flames. 
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As much as Harold wanted to go to his father's rescue 

the young farmer was unable to move from the spo 
where he lay sobbing and vomitting upon the ground 

Fortunately, neighbors arrived in time to rescue Har 
old’s father. The bull had to be destroyed. 

The analyst was perplexed because he could find nc 
precipitating trauma in Harold’s childhood which woulc 
account for his pyrophobia. According to his parents 
Harold had “just. been born afraid of fire.” 

‘This case does not end with a session of hypnotic 
regression probing the source of Harold’s phobia. This 
particular analyst is much too conservative to employ 
such “far-fetched” (and time-saving) techniques. 

_. No, in this case it was the patient who provided the 
key to his problem. Or maybe that is what happens ir 
any successful psychotherapy. At any rate, during one 
session, Harold brought with him an old leather-bound 

“It belonged to my great-grandmother on my mother’s 
side,” Harold told the analyst. “It is her journal of the 
trip across the ocean and her early days on the prairie.” 
_ Harold’s family maintained close ties with relatives in 
the “old country,” and Harold’s parents were able to 

~ read Norwegian. The night before, the young man ex- 
plained, his mother had had an unusual idea and had 
read aloud a certain section of the journal. 

; “My great-grandmother writes of a terrible thing 
_ that happened to my great-grandfather on the ship com- 

ms, ing over,’ Harold said. “A fire broke out in the ship's 
_ galley, and a can of cooking grease exploded. 

“Great-grandfather was seated near the galley door 
at the time, and some of the flaming grease landed on 

his chest, shoulders, and neck. He received very bad 
_ burns, and he nearly died before they reached America. 
_ Mother says that he bore the scars from those burns un- 
til the day he passed away.” ~ ene? | 
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S ‘ 
te pad, “And you think there may be some connection 

_ between your erat grandrathier’s severe burns and your 
_ fear of fire?” tat 
in “Well,” Harold said * you know it’s a funny shoe: but Se 
ever since I was a kid, whenever I would think of fire, _ 

| I would get a picture of the sea. I could never make any — 
' association before. You know, fire and water, conn a 
eo ae 

“Then, last night, when Mom was seadine from that ke 
old diary, I had this funny feeling. I could see it all as _ 
she rea - just like I was watching it all on television.” _ 

ie Had the memory, and thereby the fear, of fire been — 
' transmitted through the genes from Harold's great- 
I grandfather to his own memory bank? 

_ Volney G. Mathison relates a sesiecly similar case of | 
| a fear of fire that had seemingly been transferred to a : 
descendant by genetic memory. oe 
Connie, a Mexican girl who was employed in Mathi- a 

son's ‘electronic plant, had been doing a clumsy job of — 
| soldering joints and wires. Apparently unaware of her | 
shoddy workmanship, she became extremely upset and — 
irrational whenever she was reprimanded by her super 

"Mathison knew that previous analysis had indicated — 
_ that Connie had “an intense, subconscious terror of get- _ 
ting burned.” According to conventional psychoanalytic _ 

| theory, this meant that Connie had suffered severe burns — 
in elidhood or infancy. But she never had, as far as — 
anyone could determine. 8 
| Mathison decided, rather reluctantly, to hypnotize — 
Connie and try for a pridey Murphy type of pastite i 
regression. ve 

_ While under hypnosis, the girl told of being enroute 
to the New World on a Spanish sailing vessel! A fire 
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broke out on the craves 17th century ship, and in the 
resulting panic, she had been badly burned. ; 

; When Mathison brought the girl back to the present, 
__ she exclaimed, “Why should I be so afraid of a little old 
__ soldering iron after I went through all that?” 
It is interesting to note that the girl had a reddish 

birthmark that covered her back and her right shoulder. 
_ According to Mathison, this mark began to diminish in 
size after the catharsis of the hypnotic session. 

_A case which seems to be an instance of genetic mem- 
ory becoming an obsession came to my attention a few 
years ago. It would seem to fit into our discussion in this 

_ chapter, although I will readily concede that the case 
might also be representative of possession or, perhaps. 

an instance of. extreme ancestor identification. 
When Karl Woodstock married Joan, he decided that 

_ the perfect place to spend their honeymoon would be 
_ his grandfather’s old hunting lodge in Northern Michi- 
_ gan. Karl’s parents tried to dissuade him from using the 
_ old place. No one had used it in years, they argued, and 
it had fallen into a state of disrepair. 3 
Karl's father had never cared for hunting or fishing 

and had not been to the cabin since his own father's 
death, when Karl was 10 years old. - : 

_ “I got enough of hunting and fishing and getting up 
-at dawn every morning when I was a kid,” he would 

__ say whenever Karl would beg to go north to the cabin. 
“JT just got sick of it. Besides, spending a day with a 
_ fishing pole is like throwing a day away. You can never 

regain time wasted, boy.” 
Karl's grandfather had been a professional portrait 

_ painter of some repute, and the hunting lodge had been 
_ both his retreat and his favorite studio. 

Z “Where better to work than amongst Nature,” Kar' 
__ could remember his grandfather saying. “If my client: 
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an’t wait for me to get hak to the city, they « can come 
ut here to have their portraits painted.” 

- With Grandpa Woodstock, a vacation at the Idee was a fee 
Strictly a busman’s holiday. He would rise at dawn for __ 
‘several hours of hunting or fishing, then he would spend a 
the rest of the day at his easel, just as if he were in his 
‘studio in the city. The lodge walls were hung with por-. — 
‘traits of the Indians, fishermen, hunters, trappers, and 
dairy farmers who were local residents of the area. These _ 
portraits were never for sale, although, on occasion, Karl 

“had known Grandpa Woodstock to give one away to the 
| subject who had patiently sat for him. aes 
__Karl’s bride, Joan, was a game girl, who did an ex- 
‘cellent job of convincing her husband that she would 
‘like nothing better than to spend her honeymoon recon-_ 
_ditioning a hunting lodge in the north woods. Before 
their two weeks had ended, however, Joan Woodstock 
had come to regret the fact that she had not held out ~ 
for the more conventional Bermuda or Niagara Falls. 

_ On the first night in which they occupied the cabin, _ 
| Karl found an old family album. The newlyweds were — 

“when the young ‘husband noted a photo of his ene e 
father with a luxuriant Van Dyke. ye 
|. “I never knew Grandpa to wear.a beard,” Karl said p 
| Then, reading the scrawled caption beneath the snap- 
“shot, he exclaimed, “No wonder. This was taken — = 
bay before I was born.” | eS 

‘Karl rubbed his chin reflectively, then turned his at- _ 
: tention to a number of notebooks which his grand- — 
father had kept during his years of study in Paris. When _ 
Joan fell asleep that night, Karl was still reading = 
: journals by the light of a blazing fire. aa 

The new bride woke up alone that morning, a con- 
"dition to which she would soon become accustomed. She 
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_— THE ENIGMA. 
- “found Karl at the end af the dock. He had risen early to 
go fishing, ee 

That afternoon, Joan rubbed her ishiee after a ic 
= and asked Karl if he weren't going to shave. Karl 

grinned, replied that he had always wanted to grow « 
beard. Joan rolled eyes heavenward. A honeymoor 
seemed like a most unlikely time to begin to grow « 

beard. 
When they went into the nearest town for some fooc 
supplies that evening, Karl disappeared from Joan's side 

& _ for a few moments and returned bearing a sack of art 
__ ist’s supplies. 

“I was glad that hobby shop had some oils anc 
brushes,” Karl said. “The tubes in the cabin have driec 

oe 2Outs 
“I didn’t know you painted,” Joan said. “Have yor 

any other hidden talents?” 
At the end of the two-week period respectfully se’ 

aside as the newlyweds’ honeymoon, Karl’s parents de 
_ cided to drive up to the cabin and pay the young couple 

a surprise visit. The surprise, as it turned out, was o1 

them. 
- Karl’s father was shocked to see his bearded and be 
smocked son standing before an easel, while the long 

_ suffering Joan sat in a swimming suit, posing for him 
Scattered around the studio were a number of portrait: 
in varying stages of completion. 

The style in which the paintings were done, according 
to Karl's father, was that of his own father’s early per 
iod. Karl’s mother later testified to the fact that her sor 
had not previously shown any desire to paint nor hac 

he displayed any creative inclinations. Regarding Karl’ 
+ physical appearance as he stood behind the easel witl 

grandfather when they first entered the studio. 

_ his rapidly sprouting Van Dyke, both parents remarkec 
that they felt as if they were seeing a ghost of the boy’ 
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looks as Father da when be wee young,” 
senior Woodstock stated. “He resembles F ather as he 
was long before Karl was born.” 
Karl continued to paint after the yoide couple fed. 

set up housekeeping in their own apartment back inthe = __ 
city. As‘time passed, however, his painting became pro- 
ie ssively worse, and Karl soon lost interest in the easel. 

rtly thereafter he had abandoned his oils and brushes, 

and awoke one morning aghast at what he saw in the es 
eaipeoege mirror. He immediately set about shaving off 

his bear ee 2 
‘This case, admittedly, contains. a variety of factors a 

which may have brought about Karl’s temporary obses- _ : 

sion. On the most simple level, we might conclude that 
Karl suddenly became interested in emulating his grand- _ 
father after spending a night reading his journals. This a 

would not, however, account for the considerable talent © - 
which the young man originally displayed. A desire to 
imitate will not substitute for talent no matter be ae 
fierce the wish. . 

Reincarnation per se seems out of the question in 
Karl's case. Karl was a boy of ten when his grandfather — eR 
8 assed away. Such a thing as temporary possession by oe 

© spirit of his grandfather could remain as a possible i 
hypothesis. 
On yet another and: might not our theory of genetic on 

Hansmission of memory be considered a very likely ex- pe 
planation? A memory of style, skill, and even appear- 
ance transmitted through the genes—a memory that be- % 

came intensified and stimulated by the young man’s - re 
moving into an environment in which those memories 
would have been developed by the original percipi- 
ents, Karl's father and grandfather. 

Re seahise sex is one of man’s most basic and — i 
pies and pecaise: sex is Nature’s way of insuring man- — S 
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_ kind’s physical immortality, Volney Mathison has dis 
covered a number of cases in which a violent sexua 

: experience has left a memory pattern that results i 
_ problems for future generations. 

Mathison relates the case of a married woman whos: 
every contact with her husband would produce in he 
a severe genital inflammation. This condition was ex 
tremely painful and would persist for days after sexua 
intercourse. we 

While in deep hypnotic trance, the woman told of : 
past life in which she had been raped repeatedly by : 
band. of sea coast marauders. The terrible experienci 
left her ancestor with painful injuries. 

Mathison states that on the basis of this genetic dream 
he “proceeded precisely as in the case of any sever 
present-life trauma or injurious situation.” 
’ In another of the hypnotist’s cases, a woefully unat 
tractive spinster was sent to him because she sufferec 
from depression. 

While under hypnosis, Mathison says, the womal 
told of being a beautiful, immoral, and ruthless courte 
san who had ruined homes, driven men to duels, ant 

_ inspired murders. 
“I'm 65 and I'm still a virgin,” the woman wailed t 

___ the hypnotist when they spoke of her present life. “N 
- ~man has ever wanted to marry me, or wanted me a 

all... no man ever will. I’m the world’s ugliest womar 
_ This is my Karma. I’m paying for what I did in previou 

lifetimes.” 

_~*“Although Dr. Ian Stevenson admits that we have no 
3 discovered the limits of genetic transmission, he argue 

in his essay, “The Evidence for Survival from Claime 
_.. Memories of Former Incarnations,” that the extensio 

of such a hypothesis to account for the apparent mem 
ories of former incarnations meets with serious ok 

stacles. ei 
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_ Dr. Stevenson concedes that genetic memory might _ 
_apply in instances where the percipient (Person A) be- 
‘Tongs to a line descending from Person B, but he points 
out that in most cases suggestive of reincarnation, the 

town. Dr. Stevenson also states that the second birth 
usually occurred within a few years of the death of the 
first person. This would make impossible any transmis- 

"second person was born in another family and in another _ a 

sion of information from the first to the second person 
along genetic lines. 
In this view, then, genetic memory may indeed be a 

ssibility, but it has nothing to do with reincarnation. 
' Unless, of course, one were to argue for a Jungian “col- 
lective unconscious,” in which lie all memories, attitudes, 
‘and inclinations that have been amassed by the past of 
the human race, a collective unconscious into which the _ 
transcendent level of every human mind may dip and — 
draw from according to individual need, desire, or long- 
ing. : 

_ Such a view certainly leaves a physical interpretation 
of reincarnation for a metaphysical explanation, and we 

Shall take’ up the matter of “records” of each life on the — : 
“Divine Mind” or “cosmic consciousness” in the next 
chapter. . 

~~ PAUL TWITCHELL—THIS GENERATION’S EDGAR CAYCE 

_ Certainly one of the most colorful individuals with 
whom I have traveled into the far reaches of the Un- 
known is Paul Twitchell, a man who is reputed to be a 
member of a secret world brotherhood of adepts who 
5 

\ 
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use the ancient science ot soul travel termed Bdcinkas 
_ to read “Akashic records.” 

_. Even the casual reader of payehac! advelbues will 
sooner or later find himself confronted by some sort of 
-metaphysics.. Metaphysics is much more difficult read- 
ing than a collection of weird and unexplainable hap- 
_penings, and most readers, frightened away by what 

- sounds to them like a curious mixture of philosoph * 
theology, do not penetrate very far beyond its 

"  daries. The wisdom and teachings of the East have 
oe greatly influenced the metaphysicians and, in turn, those 
_ who ponder their writings. Briefly, the Akashic records 
. _are said to be the spiritual impressions which each life 

_has made on Divine Consciousness. 
_.. The Great Akasha has a record of the diving laws. o! 
-. debt (Karma) and duty (Dharma). Just as the Chris. 
tian Bible states “. . . whatsoever a man soweth, thai 
__~ shall he also reap,” so, insist the adept, do the of wea 
_ forces which emanate from us always come f Sap 
and return to us. 
In our examination of the various doctrines of rein 
ae carnation, we should have to consider ourselves quite 
“remiss if we were to overlook those who claim to reac 

the records set down in the Great Akasha. For a grea’ 
4 many people, both in the East and in the West, suck 
readings fully explain the enigma of reincarnation anc 

make of this mystery a very natural aspect of each in 
_ dividual’s complete life cycle. | 

The life readings which were given by Edgar Cayce 
Lethe remarkable psychic of Virginia Beach, have re 

ceived a great deal of publicity and have been quotec 
in a variety of published forms, Although Cayce has no 

es been with us for a good many years, the impact of th 
- man’s work seems steadily to-be acquiring new impli 

cations for modern man. Intrigued by the very notio: 
na of “life mens and “Akashic records,” I ie mi 
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ed this generation’s Edgar Cayce. 
an who may one day be ; 

& ‘I first made Paul’s acquaintance when I was compiling S 
a collection of articles on strange and unusual people _ 
‘and happenings. Paul is the only known Occidental 
"teaching the ancient science of controlled bilocation. — 
‘Tn other words, Paul Twitchell can be in two places at 
once. ; 

_ lay on a bunk in the jail cell. 
~ Paul Twitchell is very serious about the applications 

_ 0f controlled bilocation, and with perhaps this one ex- 
" ception, he has never used his ability to project his astral 
body as a means whereby he might perpetrate a joke. 
~ Twitchell uses his unique talent of getting in and out of 

the body to heal others, even at a distance, to predict 
the future, and, of course, to read the Akashic records. 
_ Twitchell terms this science of soul travel, Eckankar. 

“Eckankar is not a philosophy, occult system, religion, _ 
_ or a metaphysical theory,” he told me. “It is only a path 
to God. Just one of many paths, but the one which | 
know best, since I have used it since childhood.” 

Paul Twitchell was only five years-old when, during 
a near-fatal bout with pleurisy, his stepsister healed him — 

Via astral projection. She slipped into his room late on 

_ that night which very likely would have been his last. 
‘She sat down beside the bed in a lotus position, took a 
couple of deep breaths, and slipped out of her physical — : 
body into the Atma Sarup, the soul body. 

_ “She took me out with her,” Paul recalls, “also in the 
_ soul body, and we hung off the ceiling like a pair of eyes — 
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Twitchell’s friends like to tell of the time when Paul _ 
"was imprisoned in a South American jail because of a _ 
“misunderstanding about his passport. To amuse himself — 
and to confound his jailers, Twitchell appeared walking _ 
_ about in a downtown square while his physical body _ 
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viewing the body on the bed below. My stepsister 
accomplished the healing by impressing the thought 
that I would be made whole again, upon both my astral 

and my physical body.” 
- Once Paul knew that all was well and that the living 

_ clay lying below them on the bed would once again be 
his temple, he expressed a reluctance to re-enter the 
body. He resisted for just a moment, then his stepsiste1 
impressed upon him the necessity of returning. 

The next moment Paul remembered awakening tc 
_. find his stepmother and the rest of the family syns 
_ by the bed, completely amazed at the swift recovery 
- their youngest child. 

“Two weeks. later,” Paul says, “when my father re- 
_ turned from overseas, I heard him thank my stepsiste1 

for saving my life; it seemed that he had projected him- 
self to the house, from overseas, for the same reason, 

only to find her taking care of things.” 

_ Eckankar Yoga has gained a wide following in the 
~ intellectual and college circles of Western Europe, anc 
each spring and summer, Paul Twitchell embarks on « 
_ European lecture tour. A number of Twitchell’s work: 

_ have been published in European journals, and his worl 
____has been discussed by leading European parapsycholo- 
_. gists and psychic researchers. 
“The philosophy of Eckankar is that we have proof o! 
_ survival after death,” Paul says. “This is something tha’ 

_ many people do not believe, especially the Existentialis' 
crowd. The true purpose of Eckankar is to offer a patt 

__ to God by offering total awareness via soul travel.” 
A great deal of this “total awareness,” Twitchell be 
lieves, comes from a knowledge of one’s past lives. 

“A good reader of the Akashic records will give hi: 
__ client the events of certain past lives which are affecting 

_ him today in this life. It depends upon the judgment o: 
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the Akashic reader to give what lives and what events _ 
he thinks ‘are causing the present problems and to offer _ 
‘suggestions on how to resolve them.” eee 
_ Paul Twitchell pointed out that too many people want 
‘to hear readings which will help to build their own iA 

z Pe. “They want me to tell them that they have 
een a queen or some important person in history. - 
“This is a case of self-defeat, for a reading on past 

_ incarnations should be a therapy, a cleansing and under- _ 
_ standing of one’s past lives. If it isn’t, then it does not do 
one much good.” 

_ Twitchell then related the incident of ‘his reading the — 
Akashic records of a middle-aged bachelor. 

_ “He interrupted me and demanded that I give him a 
vivid account of his sexual adventures in his past lives. 
_Inaturally declined.” 

_ Through an examination of the Akashic records, Twit- 
chell learned that the bachelor was attached to his 

- mother’s apron strings. She controlled the estate which 
the man would one day inherit, and to please her own | 
“Selfish whims, she would not permit him to marry. 

“This all proved out in his past lives,” Twitchell re- 2 
_ calls. “There had been a time when he had controlled 
"her in a similar manner and now he was paying for his _ 
prior selfishness.” 

_ Often a client may have a residual scrap of memory - 
_of a former life which influences him to act strangely in 
his present life. Twitchell mentioned a female client - 
who, as a child, would not allow anyone to call her by 
any name other than Sally, which was not her name at 

“Sally was the name of an aunt, who died just before : 
_ the child was born. The aunt's death was doubly tragic, 

ried. 

not only did she die a very young woman, but she 
ied only a few days before she was to have been mar- 
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“The child grew up with all the. charieortee of or 
aunt Sally. She seemed obsessed with the idea of getting 

: ‘ married. Finally, at eighteen, she was wed to a respon- 
sible man, who in turn, seemed to have similar char- 
acteristics to the man whom her aunt Sally would have 
Ye aytied: I suppose she might even have married her 
-aunt’s fiance if the man had not met with a. fatal accident 

_ shortly after the death of the original Sally.” 
_ To read the Akashic records, Twitchell must. project 

a himself via the atma sarup (soul body) so that he can 
rise above the time track and read ahs lives of whomever 

_ has requested a reading. 
“It doesn't make any difference where the person 

= _ might be,” Twitchell points out. “My client may be in 
Australia or the Arctic Circle, but, sitting here, I can 
_read his past lives. Once I rise above the time track, the 
_ lives of that individual being read are spread out like a 
fan of playing cards. I must look at the millions of these 
little file cards, which are memories of the past lives, 
and select. what I believe to be important to my client 
: and the problems which he is facing today. Next, it is 
up to me to make suggestions as to how he might go 
_ about dissolving the Karma (debt) which he has ac- 

_ cumulated i in a past life. 
“Often I have to even go into the lives which a client 

_has spent on the other planes before I am able to return 
to the physical again. This is not at all hard when one 
“has learned Eckankar, the science of soul travel.” 
To handle his vast flow of mail, Paul Twitchell main- 

tains a headquarters and staff in Las Vegas, Nevada. 
Although he is immediately responsive it is the 

: mails, Twitchell prefers to remain somewhat aloof to 
_ personal contact and to avoid situations-which might 
-become psychically depleting. He often refuses to talk 

7 ic with anyone even by telephone. Twitchell does, how- 
_ © ever, make himself available for public lectures both in 
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this country and pedaend occasionally conducts work- na 
_ shops in controlled bilocation. 

. In order to facilitate my research into the enigma of : 
_ feincarnation, Paul Twitchell granted a request which, 
frankly, I did not expect. He agreed to open his files to 
“me so that I might make use of any cases which ap- 
“peared interesting to me and which bore some type of 
substantiation or response from a satisfied client. Ales: 
though it is to be hoped that I have gained a reputation _ 
for objective reporting, Twitchell’s complete compli- 
ance to my request certainly demonstrates his sincerity 

and his confidence. ; 
In the following cases, which have been’ excerpted 

: from the files of Paul Twitchell, the reader is once again 
_ Feminded that the author of this book is neither endors- 
ing nor criticizing the metaphysics involved in the read- 
ing of “Akashic records.” I am simply reporting yet an- 
| other intriguing facet of the mystery of reincarnation. 

When a Mr. B. J. of Nashville, Tennessee wrote to 
Paul Twitchell for a reading of his personal Akashic 

_ records, the practitioner of Eckankar Yoga told him: 
“.. . At the start of this reading you will be given | 

some of the major incarnations in which your many lives _ 
“were spent on earth. . . . Each time we take up a new 
"body here on earth, the soul will retain the memory pat- _ 
terns of the lives in the past bodies. But the new brain | 

_ Our goal is and we start working to get back into heaven 

does not have any memory of these past lives. We have 
to look into the soul in order to have any recalls of those 
past lives. Once this happens, our sojourn here is prac- 
tically over, and we are aware of who we are and what 

again. 
“.. . you came into this world about forty thousand 

years ago, which is not long when compared with many 
who have been here much longer. But your life has been 
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one OF perplexity and fear as to what your mission is. 
in this universe . . . the struggle between the spiritual - 
: e and the physical natures has caused a lot of disharmony 

: each to understand. . 

According to Twitchell, Mr. B. J.'s first incarnation ~ 
was on the continent of Atlantis, where he was a healer- 
_ physician, a wealthy man who chose to work for the 
poor. Because of his influence with the masses, jealous 

_ nobility planted 4 bit of gossip with the king which con- 
_ vinced him that the healer would eventually tur the 
masses away from the throne. As a result, the king had 
Hee his agents assassinate him. 

“This-was the first karma you had on earth,” Twitchell 
a told B. J. “Your first life started out in a series of bloody 

- you have far too many sides to your nature for. 

intrigues that really didn’t concern you, but, as usual, 
the human mind doesn’t want anyone to get ahead of 
~ himself. These initial intrigues are showing up all 
- through your incarnations here. Soul is always an inno- 
cent entity in its life here on earth. It is that part of us 
: which is certainly happy all the time, and if we could 
revert ourselves back to soul consciousness, then prac- 
tically all our problems would be dissolved, or at least 
put under control.” 
_ B. J.’s next life was in the land of Egypt under Ram- 
_ ses II, who was the husband of the Queen who found 
e Moses in the river rushes. This time, B. J. was a priest 
who was very close to the Queen. Acting as the Queen’s 

_ father confessor, he knew about the young man, who was 
: -one of the favorites in the court, but the Pharoah was 
doubtful that Moses was one of his sons. His suspicions 

_ grew stronger when he learned by rumor that Moses 
was visiting the Jews in Goshen. When Moses per- 
- sisted in his visits in defiance of the Pharoah’s orders to 
cease venturing to Goshen, he was ordered out of the 
. Country. B: yi, ;the priest, defended Moses and wanted 
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20 with the: young oe but te weaved that his first 

; later. 

her family’s villa. - 
Twitchell. remarked: “One must remember that ese: e 

_ were violent years in the history of the world, and if one | 
was incarnated into this period, it was due to the ia 

_ that he was drawn back because of his karmic debt.” 

his death. 

_we have listed. 

Deak #4 
_ believe. You must put yourself on the path to God . 

all things will start getting better.” 

i gintter i in the near, if not immediate, future. 
he In B. J.’s reply to Twitchell’s reading, the man re- s 
marked: “Paul, I am glad that you mentioned the legal _ 
“empl that i is Ee up in the near future . rt intend - 

was to the Queen. Many years later, as an old man, — 
h did follow Moses when he led the Jews out of Egypt. a 

_B. J., the priest, died in the wilderness a few. months 

Intrigue etiacdte to cast the pattern of B. J.’s various - 
~ incarnations, as Twitchell next saw his client as a Roman 
' cavalry officer battling the advancing legions of Hanni- _ 

_ bal’s Carthagians. B. J., the Roman officer, died a violent — 
' death in an attempt to kidnap the woman he loved from 

“Much karmic debt was worked out by B. J. in his — 
~ next incarnation when he was a priest who spoke out for — 
Jesus during his trial. Declared an outcast for defending — 
»a trouble maker, B. J. was condemned to wander until — 

__ Twitchell saw a number of more recent incarnations a 
- of B. J., but most of the karmic debts that he had — 
accumulated came about during the major lives which — 

_ “Now the rope is completed in this life,” Twitchell 
~ told him. “You must work off the debts, in a manner of | 
_ Speaking. This is not the great, difficult task that so many _ 

then you will start dissolving much of this atte and : 

_ Twitchell closed by warning B. J. that he saw a legal — 



|THE ENIGMA OF REIN ver 
. the leasing of some mineral. acreages that Iown...1 
have held onto this . . . since I was a boy in the hopes 

that it would be valuable some day...” 

oy An interesting correspondence was initiated by a Dr. 
-C., who wished to learn if his life had interacted with 

that of H., his son, in any previous incarnations. The 
following is excerpted from his files: 

“Dear Dr. C.: 
“Here are further details on the past lives of your son, 
- which you requested in your letter of March 21st. You 
_ will find this reading in greater elaboration than the one 
sent you January 29th of this year. It will also show more 
connecting links between you in the past that brought 
you both together, sometimes in close bond and other 
times, remotely. fig 

“Since he is an old soul here in this material world, it 
is only fair to all concerned to show that he had much 

_ influence in shaping the lives. of those around him for 
_ the better. Much of his work, which has been in the field 

of social justice, certainly changed a lot of customs and 
traditions in various times as he (his soul) took body 
after body, down through the centuries. Being a thinker, 
and one with a purpose, he always came back, intent 

- upon finishing what was started in lives before. Some- 
times this was consciously known to him, but many 

times it was the working of . . . the-deep urging of soul 
to impress his mind to follow the channels of helping 

- others. 
“The first of his incarnations in this material universe 

__ is found on the planet Jupiter, where he first met with 
_ you when you were working in the field of science and 

religion. You discovered the formula for lon evity. He 
at this time was the minister of civil affairs. He was a 

__ very good friend of yours and worked with you closely 
because of his interest in health of the nation’s people. 
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2 oth had a very. close ilies tie, and you were 
oth interested in the worship of one God. The subject 

of space travel and flying machines used by the Jupi- 
“terians was of much interest to both of you. Twice, H. 
_ had to appear before the Emperor to defend bagi: 
_ subject of your work and discoveries. oe 
_ “Your formula for longevity was siclen: by enemy _ 
— and you were accused of selling it to the Suk- 
“shams from the planet Mars. H. came to your rescue _ 
and saved you from the King’s wrath. The formula was _ 
“recovered before any damage was done, and finally, — 
it was actually lost. But by now the King had accepted _ 
"you as trustworthy, and he forgot the formula, as — a 
= he was sure it wasn’t in enemy hands. a 

"Next, H. is found again in embodiment on the planet & 
oot Venus, a few years prior to your arrival there, for you _- 
had stopped on the planet Clarion, where you were do- er 
_ ing work in spiritual healing. This time he is a priest in _ 
‘the worship of the mysteries of Dionysius, which later _ 
came down to Earth and was established in Greece, as ; 
one of the early mystic teachings of the ancient world, “ 

“H. became involved in the continued wars against ne 
ihe raiders from Mars and other warlike planets, when _ 
the good King Coth, ruler of Clarion under the Council 

_ of Ten, got himself into trouble by declaring a war with- — 
_ Out permission. He had sought out H.’s advice about the _ 
"continued raids that were making deep inroads on the _ 

et's business and commerce. But he misunderstood _ 
‘what H. had told him; what H. actually said was that if 
_ War was to come, then it would be best to get the planet - 
a per ared first. But the King got the idea that war should _ 

eclared on any planets where the raids initiated. 
“This brought about trouble for H., for when the ~ 

- King faced the Council and said it was H.’s advice, there — 
“was little H. could say to correct this impression. As _ 
result, H. was ordered to go into seclusion and not to 



appear again until released from this order. He died in 
a monastery, not far from the Temple of Dionysius. 
_ “H. bypassed Venus where you stayed for‘a long time 

_ as Haramchis, the High Priest of the Order of Golden 
- Dawn, and went on to Tertan, the ancestrial city of 

Brest. Briefly, he served as Chief Minister under a sinis- 
< ter dictator, who blocked all social justice that H. tried 

to bring to the people. He died, but he came back again, 
this time to the land of Mu, that great continent which 
filled most of the Pacific Ocean area. Here he was a 
member of the Holy Brothers in the world which was 
almost flat as a table top. This was the world before the 

coming of the magnetic cataclysm, which according to 
ancient records, brought the waves of seas flooding the 

earth. ree 
e “These Holy Brothers were a group of enlightened 
_ men, who went across the world preaching and teaching 
the light of God. They gave the prophecy that, unless 
the people would change, very few of them would sur- 
vive the coming tragedy. H. led his little band through 

~ Mexico, part of America, across to Europe, and into 
_ Africa and some of Asia. It was the ancient world in 

_ those days, but much of civilization was greater than it 
_is now. ; 

“These brothers were later taken into the Order of 
Golden Dawn, and your paths crossed on Lemuria, 
where you disguised yourself as a farmer but were actu- 
ally the leader of the Golden Dawn Order. You were 

_ distant cousins at this time. Actually, the two of you 
were fighting the black magic forces of the Black Broth- 

_ erhood. But, here in this life, H. died, in the central area 
of Brazil, knowing that he had completely failed at giy- 
ing his message to the peoples of the lands where he 
had traveled. % ; 

_ “Next H. appeared again right after the terrible disas- 
ter had struck the world. Now he had to be content with 
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‘to rebuild the new world. The old ae em- 
pire of Uighur in central Asia was practically destroyed 
and only a few survivors wandered, destitute, around © 

“what is now the Gobi desert. H. pulled them together _ 
and showed them how to garden vegetables, build shel- _ 
“ters, clothe themselves against climatic conditions, and 
hunt for whatever game was left. He practically pulled ey 
the Aryan race back into existence again, and centuries _ 
later, it invaded Northwest India where it settled to toh as 
come the ruling race for generations. Vs 

“H, then went west, working with whatever survivors _ 
“could be found on the new crust of Earth. He was very 
"successful, and a new world was formed where the old _ 
one had been. After doing his work here, H. decided _ 
“that it was time to return to the Astral plane and wait 
for a little while before assuming a physical body in 
reality. H. disappeared for two or more centuries, ac- 
cording to our time here. 

“—. reappeared in body form again, in early Beype 
; under Ramses II. At the same time, you were an en- _ 

i oon you were attacked by the King’s agents. rey 
_ “At this time, H. made his appearance as a reader for _ 
‘the court. Since few people (including the Pharoah) ~ 

adapted to this art was hired permanently to read the _ 
news and other official communications sent to the court. 

“couriers, Ramses II made his agents in the field send 
"news by tablets and papyrus. ae 
_ It was through you that H. became interested in 
Moses and involved in helping the Israelites to be freed 

“of their bondage. H. finally left the court and started _ 
Biving full time to the cause, When oa Israelites were — 

ee 

gineer for public works in that country. You were inter- Ae 
ested in Moses, and were killed in a secret meeting 

had the knowledge of reading, someone who was os 

Most communication was verbal, but not trusting his — i 



able to leave the country, H. accompanied them, but he 
died in the wilderness. eae 

_ “H. went through several other. incarnations in the 
Middle East: in Uruk, in Babylon, in the old city of 
-Damagg, in China under Shang dynasty, as a mystic in 
Central China, and as a warrior at the city of Mohenjo- 
Daro, in the Valley of Indus of early India. - 

“Another important incarnation was in ancient Greece. 
This time he was a King at Attica, and he was known 

as a great one, because of his liberal views in helping 
_ the common people. His upper class fought him bitterly 
over this, for it meant the weakening of their hold on 
olitical and economic matters. This was the cause of 

the downfall of his city-nation, for one night some of the 
masses opened the gates of the city to the enemy and 
all was lost. H. was killed in the attack. : 

“H. reincarnated in Crete as a bull dancer. Again in 
Greece, as a prophet who forecast the outcome of Phil- 

_ lip of Macedon’s campaigns. Then H. got back into body 
as a mystic and preacher in ancient China. During these 
periods, H. found a relationship with you in many capa- 
cities, as described in other readings sent to you over the 

~ past few months. a 
_ “During the early years of Rome, when Rome and 

Carthage were at war, H. lived in Rome as an official 
artist for the Republic. When Scipio was commanding 
the Roman legions in Spain and later against Carthage, 

_. H. was sent to North Africa with the legions to record 
the campaign by pictures. He was at Utica when he 
saw a young, lovely Carthaginian slave-woman with 
whom he fell in love. H. went to Scipio, under whose 

_ direct command he was serving, and asked for her. 
_ Scipio was amused and curious at the request, for he, 
_ as a Roman, believed that it was beneath the dignity of 

- anyone to ask for a slave as a wife. Nobody in Rome fell 
~-in love with a slave; they were for amusement only. 
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Then Scipio saw the wo 
sauty that he took her. for brabele H, became un- 
over this, and he tried to rescue the woman, in 

the hope that they could escape into the desert. But H. 
was killed by a guard before they could get away. This 2: 
“woman is the feminine soul that will later come into H.'s _ 
‘Tife during his adult years and reclaim her love for him. _ 
it will be a mutual happiness. oe 

_ H. was in Palestine during the time of Christ’s minis- _ 
‘ty, where he was a legal counselor for Pontius Pilate, _ 
then the Provincial Governor for the Roman rule over _ 
‘Palestine. mee 
“When Christ was 1s brought before Pilate, the governor ae 
‘asked H.'s advice on the legal aspects of the trial. H. 
pointed out that Pilate had no legal hold on this man, ; 
“nor did the priests, and advised Pilate not to have any- se 
thing to do with the situation. But Pilate disregarded 
the advice, turned Christ over to the Temple council, _ 
‘and let them proceed with the trial. H. was very im- 
pressed with Christ at the time, but died before follow- ie 
ing out any ideas on the new sect. ae 
_ “Then H. went through a number of other incarna- _ 
tions: in Greece as a priest at the Oracle of Delphi; a 

‘soldier under Clovis; lawyer during Justin Il’s reign and 
= where yo ye ur paths crossed many times over. cae 
_ Hi. is found again at the signing 4 the Magna Charta. oan 
lowing this: life, he came back in England as a friend _ 

| of Edward III, who was responsible for the English law 
which gave the common man a chance to defend him- _ 
self in court. H. was in several Crusades. He served in © 
‘ for a life under Charles XII, as a military chief. _ 
In another incarnation, H. defended the policy of Sav- 
onarola, the monk who sought to reform the Church. 
“There are many incarnations that H. went through — 

during his past journey down through the centuries. 
lese are fitted in where many of his other incarnations _ 
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eH ave. been explained ina | previous reading. F ioliewing 
his incarnation in the Napoleonic wars as a gunner, he 
came back again as a friend of George Sand, Chopin, 
and some of the greats in the last century. In fact, he 
was in love with George Sand, alias for Aurore Dude- 
vant, the famous woman writer of the 19th century. At 
the time he was himself a writer, a critic of plays and 
dramatic subjects for one of tae. newspapers in Paris. 
His love never was realized .because of her affection for 

» Sg da He died about 1878, of a fever.” 

Twitchell gave an intriguing reading for a Mrs. L 
H. of Mohawk, New York. The adept told Mrs. L. Bee 
that, from her first incarnation, her “pride has been 
great, but courageous to the point of sometimes losin 
your life. Yet your temper has been too strong, forcef 
and unpleasant at times. It has been this quality which 
has hurt your health so much even in this life. This is 
one of the threads of karma which has come down inte 
this present time.” 
‘As an aside, Twitchell told the woman: “Please don’ 

think that karma is all evil, for it isn’t. The word karme 
is used for the whole law of retribution, or cause anc 
effect. It is a counter check, a balance between the gooc 
and the bad of one’s conduct and experiences on earth 

_It keeps the bad from overbalancing the good, and vice 
versa. As in your case, you are now paying for this karmé 

with your bad health and afflictions. One must either ge 
through these experiences or learn to avoid them. Ofter 
a high teacher can dispel karma for one, but on the 
other hand, he may not because he sees that the chek 
must earn his right to be freed of this karma only by 
going through it to get the experience. Since it is onl 
experiences which make us aware of the Ultimate King 
dom of God, then it is experiences that purify | us ant 

_ mnake us eligible to enter into the kingdom gcse = 
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incarnation as a priestess in the Temple of the Bull on 
Crete. As a male poet under one of the early Shang 
‘rulers in China, L. H. stubbornly fought the emperor for 
"peasant reforms. As the wife of a wine merchant in 
Jerusalem, L. H. became a fanatical follower of Christ. 

_ As a monk in old England, L. H. failed to warn Thomas . s 
a Becket of the plot against his life and silently watched i 

"the clergyman go to his death. 
But the most significant of L. H.’s incarnations was Ms 

during the persecution of the Christians under Nero 
when, because she adamantly refused to betray her 
friends, her eyes were put out with hot irons. 

‘In her letter of response to Twitchell’s reading, Mrs. : 
_L. H. wrote: “My Akashic record received and read _ 
many times with great interest and increased under-_ 
"standing of many things. You are a wonderful man to 
~ do such excellent work. ¥ 

“T was thrilled to learn Slee my life in i time ‘of 
_ Jesus, for I have had vibrations in that respect, but L 
hardly thought I deserved such an honor. . 
Ihave a question about my eyes . von say this is 
mainly 1 the problem with my eyes today. No doubt you — : 
“mean the blindness, or do you mean the pain also? Dur- 
ing most of this life, I have suffered aching and distress 

% times. . 

‘tag ee very pleased abe you said that I was a fine 
ist in France... I have always had a strong desire _ 

for piano music in this life. . 
‘To Mrs. L. H.’s husband, “Twitchell wrote: “You have 

a ec which has sustained you for centuries. You should 
never feel parted because of this love... it has wrapped 

a protective aura around her throughout the centuries, 
whether you were the husband, friend, wife, relative, or 

in my eyeballs with frequent spells of very severe pain, 
like soles boring into my eyes, unbearable at 

OM I. H. was onealicd by pride ees ie first ae 
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any ‘othiek: person es to her. is have been a 
- good combination with your wife, in this life and in past 
lives. You and she have been in a varied number of 

lives, especially the ones that I have named. You were 
_ the husband in the last one, the Englishman that she 
married, Often you were the wife. But you have always 

_ been together and that is the most important part about 
oe relationship.” 

To answer my query concerning the relationship be- 
tween the dogma of reincarnation and the signs of the 

: "Zodiac, Twitchell replied: “This is one of the most im- 
_ portant and interesting aspects of reincarnation. . 

“It is necessary, according to the teachings of Eckan- 
__ kar, to have a birth within each sign of the Zodiac. This 
nets what Buddha described as the Wheel of the Eighty 

_ Four. We each go around the Zodiae with rebirth in 
each sign, many times, and often rebirths one after the 
_ other within a sign, until we are put on the path to E08 

_ or reach God-I]lumination. 
“Once we have had some degree of this God-Illumi- 

nation or have entered into the Kingdom of Heaven 
(words used to describe the ultimate realm of God) 
_ then we are without need to reincarnate again. We are 
on the heavenly path to God and will continue to go a 
ure ladder until reaching the ultimate kingdom. 

“What I am saying here is that we do not reincarnate 
- again on the physical plane; but we, as soul, go to the 
-astral plane and live there for a while, then up to the 
- casual or mental plane. Then we will go through the 
same process between planes of having to be reborn 
- again on the lower plane, maybe the astral, or casual, 
until we are off that lower plane and into the higher. 
~ This process goes on until we are able to reach the fifth 
_ state of consciousness where we are established and be 
come liberated from reincarnations on any leer plencag 
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‘is is the whole purpose of Eckankar: to give one y 

liberation during his lifetime. Once a spiritual traveler 

is gradually taken to the fifth plane of consciousness, 
Sometimes called the soul plane—the dividing line be- 

“tween the lower worlds and the worlds of pure spirit 
(God). Once established on this plane, the student be-_ 

master, guru, or whatever one wishes to call these — 3 
higher souls) takes him under instruction, the student 

comes free and can travel without the assistance of a 
master. He can live in this physical body until his days 
are over on this world and go on to the God-worlds after _ 

death without help from anyone, and he does not need ~ 
‘to have to undergo the process of reincarnation again.” 
__ The following excerpts illustrate another facet of Mr. 3 2 
‘Twitchell’s readings. The request was made by the sister __ 
‘of Mr. E. F., who was ill, and whose sister was quite — 
naturally concerned for him. . 
“Dear Miss S. F.: 
__ It is my pleasure to have this opportunity to do this - 
Akashic reading for your brother via soul projection—the 
Separation of spirit from the body—which is the pro- — 
cedure which I use to look at the etheric records of any- 
‘one while I am out of the physical body (with their 
permission, of course ). 
- “Generally, I will not do a reading for anyone when © 
Tequested by another, but in the case of illness, as you 
have pointed out, an exception is made. However, to 
continue, I wish to point out that Mr. F. is surrounded 
“by a deep brown and yellow color, which is, of course, 
the aura about his spiritual body. It means that he is 
living in a dualistic world, his physical consciousness is 
| pulled into the materialistic region, while soul is trying 
‘to keep a higher state of consciousness; but not exactly » 
din g so. There is a strong pull on his mind to go two 
Ways, splitting it into sections, and frankly keeping him 

m having any reality on present time. 
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_ “This is one of the great troubles in our society, for 
the psychic forces which pull the individual in many 
- ways splits him into little pieces and he generally ends 
- in an institution. Too many of our present members 

of this society cannot recognize the psychic forces at 
- work in an individual. Usually, as in the case of Mr. F, 
_ it’s a case of a child being too sensitive to the inner 

_ powers when there is no one to help him. But I will 
_ discuss more of this in the consultation which is to follow 
_ this reading. ; 
“The reason we are here instead of heaven is simply 
_ that we are sent to the physical planes to gain ex- 
perience, like a child is sent to school to get his educa- 

_ tion. Eventually we will, after many incarnations here, 
_ gain varied experiences which will purify souls so that 
‘we may return to heaven where we will be ready to 
serve God as a co-worker. : 

_ “Tam going to bypass the depth of many of Mr. F.’s 
incarnations to show how his illness has happened and 
why it is, in his present life, working out as a karmic” 
condition. In this reading we will discuss several of his 
_ major incarnations to find out what has happened in the 
_ past and put it up to date. © et 
- “Mr. F. stepped across the borders of the spirit worlds 
into the lower universe many centuries ago, in fact so” 
many that it is impossible to determine just when it 
was, according to the matter of year and date. But it 
was on the planet of Mercury that he first saw. this uni- 

verse and mingled with the intellectual citizens there.” 
Hereafter follows a detailed analysis of Mr. F.’s “lives,” 
ending with, those named here. “You were mentioned 
several times where it was a close tie with him, but you” 

a he have been together for a long time, in many 
ives. 

a The clients who ask Paul Twitchell for life-readings 
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immensely a afied with he: Tale teh this 
produces. Whether Twitchell actually touches — 

ther he, through some clairvoyant faculty, is able to. 
avide them with readings which suit their tempera- 

_ ments, psychological needs, and secret longings is not 
the consideration of this present book. I do know © 

Phat I read several letters such as this one, from a Mr. 
HL. R. of Overton, Nevada: 
“I found the entire reading both intriguing and en- 
| “Tightening . . . after receiving the reading and studying © 
| at very Histoughly, I have noted a substantial improve- 
_ ment in my outlook and my ability to maintain a steadier __ 
 Tevel of emotional stability . . . it (the reading) has been 

_ of distinct benefit as well as of interest. 
oe especially want to thank you for helping my 

mother, as she has noted a most remarkable improve-+ _ 
| Ment in her general level of health since my last letter _ 
i to you.” 

, What about Paul Twitchell himself? Does he recall _ 
_ any of his past lives? Is he able to read his ¢ own Akashic. 
records? — ae 
| In the January-February 1967 issue of Orion maga- 
“Zine, Twitchell wrote: “During the 6th century B.C. 
_ when I studied under the great Pythagoras of Greate, 
- Llearned that he was concerned mainly with two points 
‘in the teaching of truth. First, emphasis on love, wis- 

| dom, and charity, and secondly, that the Kingdom of ~ 
| Heaven was within man. 

_ “This was the basic point of his teachings. It dis- 
turbed the priestcraft of his day so much that, after his 
death in 500 B.C., the masses were incited to attack 

» and destroy Pythagoras’ followers and schools at Cro- — 
| tona and Metapontum. Fortunately, I escaped both dis- 

asters, Peete: the ae of Dose who were compelled — 

certain “memories” which the clients sense or 



ane ‘die of ances and thirst in the Temple of the Muses 
_ When a reader of one of his articles criticized Twit 
- chell’s statement that he could trace his own past lives 
as far back as eight million years ago, Paul sent me the 
man’s letter with a note of his own attached: “It's true 

I can trace my lives back this far, but I would never at- 
_ tempt to give anyone a reading on his reincarnations this 
i far back! It would shock a person's senses too badly.” 
_. Akashic records, Karma and Dharma, systematic re- 
_. births, all add yet another strand to the powerful ny 
- that binds the enigma of reincarnation. 

THE MAN WHO RETURNED AS HIS GRANDSON 

- Mrs. Susan George was sorting through her jewelry 
box that afternoon when her son, William, wanderec 
into her bedroom from the room in which had beer 

playing. 
Fascinated by his mother’s treasures, the five-year. 

old boy stood at the side of the bed where she ha¢ 
arranged her earrings, bracelets, necklaces, and pins 

_ Then, spotting the gold watch which she lifted from the 
. jewelry box, he suddenly reached out for the timepiece 

_ “William!” Mrs. George scolded. “Mustn’t touch!” 
“But it is mine!” the boy shouted. “That is my golc 

watch!” 
_ “Shush,” Mrs. George scowled. “That watch belongec 
_ to your grandfather. The same Grandpa William whosé 
- mame you bear. He asked your momma i hep the 

ae oo for him.” 
~ Yes,” insisted Walliams. “And that j is my watch!” s 
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boy lei to ae Eats and it took his pe ais 
several minutes to persuade him to allow her to replace — 
“it in the jewelry box. When Mrs. George told her hus- 
band, Reginald, about the incident, both of them were __ 
peed by the boy’s behavior. | ‘ 
The Georges are Tlingit Indians who live in sputle ee 

eastern Alaska: Like other Tlingits, the Georges believe 
_in reincarnation. Ever since their son William was born,. _ 
he had given evidence of resembling his paternal grand- 
father in birthmarks, attitudes, and physical appear- 
‘ance. Although such things were within the realm of 
their persona! beliefs, the Georges found that a mani- 
festation of the doctrine of reincarnation occurring in 

their own home was more than a little disconcerting. 
I his article, “Cultural Patterns in Cases Suggestive 
of es arnation Among the Tlingit Indians of South- 
eastern Alaska” (Journal A.S.P.R., Vol. 60, July, 1966), 
Dr. Ian Stevenson analyzes the ps of forty-three Tlin- 
git cases. Surely the case of the fisherman who returned 
as his own grandson must rank as one of the most amaz- 
ing and one of the most well-documented of contem- 

porary studies of possible reincarnation. 
~ William George I, had been a well-known Aneta 
fisherman, a healthy, robust man, who had always been 
“extremely active. As he grew older, the fisherman, in 
“Spite of the fact that he, like his fellow Tlingits believed 
in reincarnation, began to experience certain doubts and 
uncertainties about the afterlife. 

Often, when he and his favorite son, a, Reginald, were 
‘out fishing, the older man would say, “If there is really 
anything to. this business of rebirth, I will come back 
and be your son.” 

_ On a number of occasions, William rae such a state- 
ment to his daughter- “oalaw, Susan. Ignoring the laugh- 
ter of the young people, the fisherman would expand 
his ‘statement by saying that they would be able to 
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ae fier ay the fact that he a er 4 
the same birthmarks as the ones he presently bore. These 
birthmarks were well-known by his friends and kin to be_ 
two large moles, each about half an inch in diameter, ; 
‘one on his upper left shoulder and the other on his left 

\ forearm. : 
— William George continued to ee his plans for a | 

_ return to life in the form of Reginald’s son, and he be- 
came increasingly serious about the matter. In the sum-— 
~ mer of 1949, he gave Reginald his gold watch. a 

“This was given to me by. your mother, as you well | 
know,” William told his son. “I want you to take it now, 
and I want you to keep it for me. When I. come back as 
your son, rll reclaim the watch, so you take good care 

_ of it for me.” 
_ Reginald told his father not to dwell on such a mor- : 

_ bid subject. The elder George was in fine health, 60 
_ years old, and should be able to look forward to several 
more productive years. Reginald told his father to keep” 
_ his watch and to plan to carry it for many years to come, 

_ William George was insistent. “I don’t have long, and 
I don’t want any harm to come to the watch. If there is” 
anything to this business of reincarnation, I'll be back 
as your son and I'll get my watch back then. $ 

___ Reginald could see that there was no use in arguing 
_ further with his determined father. He went home for 
the weekend, told his wife what his father had said. 
“You might as well go along with him,” Susan George) 
_ advised her husband. “I'll put his watch in my jewelry 
box. It'll be safe there.” 
A few weeks later, in August, the crew of William 
_ George’s seine boat reported their captain as missing. 
_ None of them could say what had happened to their 

_ skipper. His body was never recovered, and they could 
_only conclude that he had fallen overboard and had 
: been a away by the tide. 
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THE ENIGMA OF REINCARNATION 

‘On May 5, 1950, scarcely nine months after William — 
rge's death, his daughter-in-law, Susan George, went 
labor. 

_ As she lay in the delivery room waiting for the anes- 
istic that would remove her consciousness, Susan 
George thought she saw the form of her, father-in-law 
Standing at her side. The vision was so real and the 
actions of the image so life-like that Mrs. George came 
Out of the anesthetic uttering soft cries of confusion. 
She awoke fully expecting to see an apparition of Wil- 
iam George still hovering in her room. 
_ Mrs. George saw no apparition, but she was presented 
with a healthy baby, a boy who had a large mole on his 
Teft shoulder and another on his left forearm. Both birth- 
“marks were in precisely the same location as those borne 
_by his grandfather. 

Reginald and Susan George were confused. It seemed 
‘as though William George had returned just as he had 
ete At any rate, the couple felt that the exact. 

ent of the moles justified their naming their son, 
iam George, II. 

_ As the boy began to grow up, his parents found an 
Be tercasing number of details which tended to jus- 

‘ their decision to name their son after his grand- 
ather. The boy's behavior traits, his likes, dislikes, and 

eo. coincided exactly with those of William George I. 
__ Foremost among the many similarities was the pecu- 
liar manner in which the boy walked. His grandfather, 
when a young man, had injured his right ankle severely 
while playing | basketball. William George, Sr. had 
‘wa ked with a limp for as long as most members of the 

' village could remember. Because of the nature 
of the i injury, William had turned his right foot outward. 
so that he walked with a peculiar gait which became a 

| cteristic of the man. Reginald and Susan George - 
were Startled when their young son took his first steps 
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2 Stl his. oh foot aad ‘outware Inv spite of het 
efforts to guide the boy into a proper gait, he persisted 

in maintaining the peculiar, twisted manner of walking. 
“He is the image of his grandfather,” members of the 

_ George family have told investigators. “Not or does 
-he look like him, he worries like him.” 

The Alaskan fisherman, for all his bravado sad skill 
aboard his boat, was known as a great worrier. His con- 
stantly repeated words of cautionary advice to his crew 
often brought groans of irritation from seamen who felt 
that they knew their business at least as well as their 
captain. William, I also has the habit of giving unso- 
licited advice to much older and more experienced sea- 

~ men. When Dr. Stevenson investigated the case in 1961, 
__ the boy had gained the reputation of being fretful and 

overly cautious. It was especially noted that William, II 
_ had a morbid fear of the water. 
_ “But he certainly knows his fishing and his boats,” one 

- fisherman testified. “The- first time he was put in a boat 
he already knew how to work the nets.” 

_ “And he knew all the best bays for fishing and how 
best to work them,” another fisherman put in. 

_ William George, II has always referred to his great- 
aunt as his sister. His uncles and aunts (Reginald’s 
brothers and sisters) have always been his “sons” and 
“daughters.” In gruff tones, he has scolded two of his 
“sons” (uncles) about their excessive use of alcohol. 
-William’s own brothers and sisters often call him “grand- 

_ pa, a title to which he has never objected. 

In recent years, William, II has been discouraged 
from talking about his former life. Older members of the 

Tlingit village have warned his parents about the dan- 
_ gers of recalling a past life, and Rog and Susan 

_ have heeded this advice. 

“His mind had begun to wander,” Reginald said. “He 
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THE ENIGMA OF REINCARNATION 

becoming more oe bout the past than about © 
e present and the future. This can be very harmful.” 

_ Although he has ceased to speak in excessive meas-_ 
‘ures about his past life as his grandfather, William, II 
‘still persists in asking for “his” gold watch. 
_ “Tshould have it now that I am older,” he maintains. 

BACK TO MOTHER'S ARMS 

4 ~ Sleep had beck out of the question for Mrs. Carmelo 
ei: Samona of Palermo, Sicily, ever since her daughter, 
' Alexandrina, had died three days before. 

The five-year-old girl had passed away suddenly of 
" Meningitis on March 15, 1910, and there had been noth- 
» ing that even her physician father had been able to do 
_topreserve her life. __ 
_ Then, on the third night of her grief, Mrs. Samona at 
last succumbed to a sleep born of exhaustion. It was 
during that night that she had a dream in which she saw 
the form of her deceased daughter. 
In a soft and comforting voice, Alexandrina told her 

mother not to weep any more. 
_ “I shall come back to you, ” Alexandrina said. “I shall 
be little again, like this.” The girl made motions with 
her arms, as if she were pantomiming the holding of a 
small baby. 
- Mrs. Samona told her husband nothing of the first 
dream, but when she had a repetition of the strange 
vision three nights later, she related the details to Dr. 
Samona. 
_ As time passed, Mrs. Samona was given the startling 

: 
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information that she would soon bear twin girls. One 
of the girls, according to the spirit of Alexandrina, would 

2 _ be a new life, the other would serve as the vessel sieges 
by she might return to earth. 

Dr. Samona reacted with harsh skepticism t to the in- 
formation which his wife relayed to him from her 
dreams. 

Pregnancy seemed out of the queeen for Mrs. Sa- 
- mona, to say nothing of twins! His wife had undergone 

an operation after the birth of Alexandrina which would 
have either greatly reduced her fertility or destroyed it 
altogether. 

Alexandrina’s words were prophetic, however, and: 
within a year, Mrs. Samona gave birth to twin girls. 

“See,” she told her husband when the nurse brought 
_ the babies to her, “see how the one = exactly like 
Alexandrina when she was a baby!” 

Dr. Samona conceded that there was a strong re- 
semblance, and however he might have truly felt about 
the matter at the time, he acquiesced to his wife's wish 
to name the girl Alexandrina II: 
- As the child matured, Dr. Samona was forced to ad- 
mit that Alexandrina II bore an increasingly strong re- 
semblance to their deceased daughter, not only in ap- 
pearance but also in mental attitudes and idiosyncrasies 

_ of taste. In addition, both Alexandrinas were left-handed, 
whereas none of the other Samona children had this 
trait. Other shared physical debilities included a slight 
discharge from the right ear, hyperaemia of the left eves 
and slight facial asymmetry. 

G. Delanne, in his Documents por Sonote a PEtude 
de al Reincarnation, 1924, (quoted in Dr. Ian Steven- 
son’s essay, “The Evidence for Survival from Claimed 
Memories of Former Incarnations,”) conducts an inter- 
view with Dr. Samona in which the physician comments: 

“IT can affirm in the most positive manner that in pom 
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a y, except for hair and eyes, which are actually a little 
lighter than those of the first Alexandrina at the same 
age, the resemblance continues to be perfect. But even 

ore on the physical side, the psychological similarity 
“developing in the child gives the case in question further 

and greater interest. 
“Alexandrina is indifferent to dolls and prefers to play 
_ with children her own age, a preference which was 
i ey noticeable with the other Alexandrina. Like 
her, too, she is always anxious that her little hands 
should be clean and insists on having them washed if 
they are in the least degree dirty. 
_ ‘Like her predecessor again, she shows a singular 

 repugnance for cheese and will not touch soup if it has 
_ the least taste of cheese in it. 
' “When she has a chance of opening the chest of 
“drawers in the bedroom it is a great amusement to her 

' to pull out the stockings and to play with them. This 
"was also a passion of the other Alexandrina.” 
_ Further evidence which seemed to point to Alexan- 

- drina’s physical return continued to occur throughout 
her childhood. 
"When the girl was eight, the Samonas told the twins 

t the family was planning an outing at Monreale so 
‘that they could see the sights there. 

Alexandrina II interrupted her mother’s enthusiastic 
citation with a childish moan of impatience. When 

Mrs. Samona inquired of her daughter why she seemed 
athetic about the coming vacation trip, Alexandrina 

complained that she knew Monreale end that she had 
| . seen the sights there. 

_ ‘Surely you are confused with some other city,” Mrs. 
-Samona told her daughter. “You have never been to 
: Monreale.” 
vii “Yes I have, mother,” the girl sighed. “Don’t you re- 
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z prauber the ee oe with aoe statue ‘at the m man with 
his arms held open on the roof?” 

“Perhaps you | have seen pictures. . 
“No, mother,” Alexandrina II intelitipted: “You re | 

have forgotten that we went there with a lady who had 
horns on her head. And don’t you remember our meeting 

some little red priests in the town?” 
_ Upon her daughter’s prompting, Mrs. Samona remem- 

bered that the last time she had visited the city of Mon- 
_ reale had been nearly ten years before, just a few months 

_ prior to Alexandrina I’s death. A lady friend of the 
family had accompanied them to Palermo for medical 
aid in connection with the removal of disfiguring ex- 

- erescences on her forehead. She further recollected that 
they had met a group of young priests dressed in blue 
robes with red ornamentation as they were entering the 

ee ~ church. 
The intriguing att of this particular exchange is that 

Alexandrina II seemed to “remember” incidents rather 
than recite travelogue-type information which she could 
have acquired from seeing pictures or reading articles 
about Monreale. Then, too, the incidents recalled were 
so inconsequential to Mrs. Samona that she remembered 
them only with great difficulty. It is most unlikely that 
she would ever have discussed a visit which she con- 

_ sidered so unimportant with Alexandrina II at an earlier 
time. Until prompted by the child, the mother seemed 

_ to have forgotten the details of the trip, to Monreale, 
_ which had been made before the death of Alexandrina I. 

A similar tale of a return to mother’s arms_is cited in 
the Honorable Ralph Shirley’s The Problem of Rebirth. 

In this instance, Captain and Mrs. Battista of Rome, 
Italy, lost their little daughter, Blanche. The child had 
been especially fond of a French lullaby which Marie, 
a Swiss “Nannie” had taught her to sing. After Blanche’s 
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would - cause to return, yeni and Mrs. Battista com- 
pletely blotted all recollection of the tune from their 

Mrs. Battista did not become pregnant again until 
ee years after Blanche had passed away. During the 

mirth month of her pregnancy, she had a vision in ~ 
which her deceased daughter appeared to her and said, 

other, I am coming back.” 
Captain Battista was skeptical of such a message and 
d to convince his wife that she had been dreaming. 

Mrs. Battista insisted that she had perceived a vision. 
“It was no dream,” she argued. “I heard Blanche’s 
eet and familiar + voice tell me cay she was going to 

When the baby, a daughter, was born that next Feb- 
tuary, Captain Battista gave in to his wife’s demands 

at this daughter should aiso be christened Blanche. 
“Such a thing is not right,” he protested, but his wife's 

earnest desire soon quieted his feelings of discomfort. 
Then, nine years after the death of Blanche I, when 
lanche II was about six years old, a most extraordinary 

thing occurred. 
_ The Battistas were seated in the study, which ad- 

the bedroom where their nee slept, when 

a. found Blanche II sitting up on her bed, singing 
the song with a faultless French accent. Neither of the 

ttistas had taught the song to the child. In fact, they 
d long so made a pact never to refer to the lullaby - 



ce am singing a French song,” the child answered i 
simply. 

_ “Who taught you such a pretty song?” Captain Bat- 
- tista asked. 

“Nobody,” shrugged Blanche II. “I just know it out of 
- ny own head.” 

- Then,-while the Battistas stared at each other in ‘won- - 
der, the child once again sang the lullaby as gaily “as 

___ if she had never sung another song in her life.” 
Captain Battista concludes his story by writing: “The : 

reader may draw any conclusion he likes from this faith- — 
ful narrative of facts to which I bear my personal wit- — 

ness. For myself, the conclusion I draw from them is. 
__ that the dead return.” | 

EAST IS EAST AND WEST IS WEST 

As we have previously noted in the chapter, “Re- _ 
membrances of Lives Past,” it is not a simple. matter to © 
obtain cases suggestive of reincarnation in the United ’ 
States, or, for that matter, the whole of the Western — 

_ world. Even though many of the great minds who — 
shaped the intellectual and religious climate of the West. 
held firm beliefs in reincarnation (i.e. Plato, St. Augus- 

tine, St. Clement, St. Jerome), historically, at least since 
‘the fourth century A.D., the ecclesiastical dogmatists | 

_ have spoken out against thie doctrine of rebirth. Only a_ 
slightly more liberal attitude exists today, and Ameri- 
can parents would certainly not encourage a kinder- 
gartener to come forward with alleged memories of a 
prior existence. Doctor, priest, and P.T.A. would de- 

om 
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Inquisitors. : 
Jan Stevenson, who hide fone a F ateal aval of 

investigation into Situations wherein individuals have 
claimed to recall former lives, has amassed more than — 
600 cases suggestive of reincarnation. The researcher, 

presently of the Department of Neurology and Psychi- _ 
at of the University of Virginia, has. found these cases” 
" distributed all over the globe, among peoples of widely — 

ing cultural patterns, and among societies where 
eligious dogmas sternly preach heals a belief in’ 

acamation. — | 

As the reader progresses into his study of this sub- 
he will note, as did Dr. Stevenson, that cases sug- 

Ee which seem completely unrelated to see inde- © 

end. nt of the percipient’s cultural environment. 
seal the case eed occur in India, Eegne, or 

' A small child, two to four years S age, ‘begins to pro- < a 
tes to his parents or brothers and sisters that he wishes 

ms The child graphically describes. his former life 
generally expresses a dissatisfaction with his in- — 
to return to the geographical environment which 

was forced to leave at the event of his death. 
4 point to be stressed is that, even though the ma- 

of Eastern cultures (Indian, Ceylonese, Burmese ) 
in a belief in reincarnation as a part of their re- 
faiths, young children are definitely not en- 
‘ed to “remember” past lives. On the contrary, a 
yho claims such memories will generally be 

gly admonished to forget the whole thing. In the 
which follow, we will see that the parents often — 



ment solic nek offspring pers ed in ¢ 
__ ories of a prior existence. 5 : 
In spite of threats of punishment fe fe a ous = 

is mockery from his siblings, we see that the child persists 
in his allegations. He experiences a strong pull back 

_ toward the life that has recently terminated, and he 
continues to beg his present parents to allow him to re- 

turn to the community where he lived in his previous 
incarnation. 

If the child continues in his -persistence and in his 
recall of intimate details of another existence, the par- 
ents may reluctantly begin to make inquiries about the 
accuracy of the story which their child babbles. In many 

cases, the investigation will not have occurred until sev- 
eral years after the child has begun to speak of his mem- 

-ories. In each of the cases which we shall examine, we 
shall see that this delay in investigation speaks very 
convincingly against any charge of conspiracy or fraud 

on the part of the parents. In many of the stories pre- 
sented in this book, the parents have reacted with emo- 
tions and attitudes ranging from disinterest to violent 

_ anger when their child persisted in his claims of a previ- 
ous incarnation. All of the parents were publicity shy 
_and had no desire to put their offspring on depley for 

_ monetary gain. 
_ If the parents do begin some attempts at verifiealiel 
and if some positive results are obtained, members of 
the two families involved may visit each ‘other for the 

» _ purpose of interrogating the child. He may be asked if 
_ he remembers persons, objects, past incidents, and per- 

sonal experiences of his alleged previous existence. If 
the child scores an impressive series of hits, his story 
‘will create a great deal of attention in the communities 
involved and, in most cases, local newspapers will be 
alerted to the event. 
“In recent seas, the Indian Society for Boychical B Re. 
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ch has sent investigators to document cases sugges- 
e of reincarnation, but it is impossible to determine 

how many dramatic cases have never been researched 
e to angry and frustrated parents suppressing a 

child's memories with threats and demonstrations of 
‘physical punishment. Even though the religions of India 

‘include reincarnation in their doctrines, I feel we 
“must re-emphasize the fact that no Indian mother 
crouches over her child’s cradle at night and encourages 
him to recall a past life. 
I think another most impressive point in the cases 

vhich we shall examine is the early age at which the 
child begins to graphically describe a former life. It 
‘would seem to be beyond belief that a two-year-old 

yy could speak so eloquently in protest of his murder 
t the hands of a debtor, solely from the aspect of the 
mechanics of speech and articulation, let alone the mani- 
estation of reincarnation. 

In each of the following cases, the young child truly 
ems to be an “old soul,” much advanced beyond his 

group in proficiency of speech, application of in- 
; ct, and sociability. Imagine the reaction of the vari- 
» ous widows, whom we shall meet in these chapters, 
when they hear intimate details of their marriage re- 

tionship from the:lips of two-year-old boys, who con- 
tmue to speak frankly of matters which only their hus- 
mds would know. SS 
ruly, fraud would seem to be out of the question in — 
cases. No two-year-old is capable of being coached 

to perpetrate such elaborate hoaxes. No child's brain is 
pable of memorizing countless details of the lives of 
bscure men and women who died in remote and deso- 

" late villages. And what motive would a parent have to 
precipitate such a hoax? What would justify the count- 
Jess hours necessary to coach a two-year-old to recite, 
the details of the life of a housewife of a butcher in a 
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eae village? ‘The Indian newspapers do not offer a 
reward for the year’s best case sugges of reincarna- 

_ tion, 
No, something is at work here. Whether it he extra- - 

sensory perception, possession by a discarnate soul, or 
~yeincarnation will be judged according to the personal 

_ bias of each reader. All that I shall present are ies 
documented facts. : 

“DON’T CALL ME ISMAIL!” 

| The young boy looked at his father, lying on the bed 
beside him, and said, “I am tired of living here. I want 

_ to go back to my house and children.” 5: 
Mehemet Altinklish listened to these strange notions 

coming from the mouth of his son Ismail—a mere child 
_ of eighteen months! “What did you say, Ismail?” 1s 
asked, 
“Don’t call me Ismail,” the boy insisted. “I am Abeit” 

Upon being questioned by his father, the boy insisted 
that he was the reincarnation of Abeit Suzulmus, a 

_ prosperous market gardener who had age: murdered 
_ shortly before Ismail’s birth. . 

‘Abeit, who lived in the Bahchehe section of the Midik 
_ District of Adana, Turkey, had gardens of sufficient 

size that it was necessary for him to hire laborers. Three 
such laborers came to him looking for work one day and 
he employed them. For unknown reasons, they lured 

_ Abeit into his stable and there beat him to death with 
an iron bar. 
The killers then went to the house and slaughtered 
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beit’s second wife, Sahida, and two of their children. 
murders took place on January 31, 1956. 
week later the killers were caught. They were tried 

ad convicted. Two were hanged; the other died in | 

few short months after the murders, Ismail was born 
another section of the Midik District, about three- 

quarters of a mile from Abeit’s gardens. From the time 
was a year and a half old, the boy insisted that he 
Abeit Suzulmus, exhibiting a very strong identifi- 

on with the murdered man. So strong: was this iden- 
cation that he continually begged his parents to let 
n visit Abeit’s home. ; 

_ When he reached the age of three, his parents finally 
greed to such a trip. 
Leading a party of twelve, young Ismail traversed 

istance between the homes unaided and without 
aror, even though several members of the party delib-— 
ately tried to léad him astray. As young as he was and 
rer having wandered very far from his present home, 

is highly unlikely that Ismail could have made the 
omplicated journey without some prior knowledge or 

liliarity with the route. Ismail claimed to have at- 
aed this familiarity from his previous life. ° 

\ When the group reached the house, Ismail identified 
1¢ members of Abeit’s family froma crowd of about 
Wirty persons, calling them by name and embracing 
em as he did so. He referred to them as Hatice, “my 
rs t wife,” Culsarin, “my daughter,” Hikmat, “my daugh- 

, and Zaki, “my son.” ; 
During this, first visit, the boy led the party to the 

room stable saying, “Let me show you where I was 
urdered,” and he pointed to the exact spot. Abeit- 
mail also commented that some of the equipment and 
amnishings in the stable had been removed since his 
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an aoe tces ie he life of. Nba ‘Ismail 
stated that, at-one time during his life, Abeit Joaned 
money to Abdul, but they did not know the amount of 

the loan nor whether it had ever been repaid. Abdul 
confirmed the fact that he still owed money to the 
— Suzulmus family. 

_ The Adana press carried an incident occurring be 
- tween Ismail and an ice-cream vendor, who seldom 

visited the area of Ismail’s home. According to the news- 
paper, Ismail confronted the vendor, a man called Me- 
_hemet, and asked if he recognized him. When the ven- 
dor replied in the negative, Ismail said, “You have for- 

gotten me. I am Abeit. You did not sell ice cream bis 
- . fore, but watermelons and vegetables.” 
_* The vendor said that this was true. Ismail went on 
to tell the vendor about a time when he, Abeit, had 

- performed the circumcision ceremony for him. When 
_ they parted, the vendor was thoroughly convinced ee 
he had met Abeit in a new life. 
Another time, a cowherd named Mezit, who was em: 
ployed by the Suzulmus family, was leading a cow past 
the Altinklish home. Ismail recognized Mezit, calling 

__ him by name and inquiring whether the cow was his 
ho eS) “yellow girl.” 

__~ So real are the memory patterns of Abeit to. emai 
that he often speaks of his former life in the present 
tense, such as, “I have a house and family,” or “Here 

is my grave.” He has begged many times to be allowec 
to go and live with his (the Suzulmus) family, althougk 
_ this has been generally discouraged. Even then, he take: 
_. them sweets, despite the fact that his family canno' 

afford it. Strange sacrifices fora childso young, = 
___ Ismail’s obsession with Abeit has even penetrated hi 

é “sleep. Often he has been heard crying out, “Gulsarin 
_ Gulsarin!” and awakened showing great emotion. It i 
_- hard to imagine that anything other than — sede 
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experiences could bring on such a display of 

cern, particularly when the subject is sleeping. 
‘Professor H. N. Banerjee, editor of the Journal of 
Parapsychology, interviewed the boy and all concerned. 

tensively and concluded that it seemed more certain 
an usual that this particular case had not arisen through 

desire to defraud. Banerjee noted that the family 
not sought any publicity for the case and had, in 
resisted for a year and a half the boy’s demands to 
o Abeit Suzulmus’ home. When Banerjee and the 

sress arrived on the scene, the family of Ismail were 
a reluctant to cooperate. Reports of the case had not. 

reached the outside world until three years after 
Ismail had first visited Abeit’s home. 

Banerjee also reported that ill feelings had arisen 
een the two families involved. It would seem most 
ely that a fraud could be so ingeniously perpe- 
d when those involved are not on speaking terms 

with one another. : 

THE THIRD TIME AROUND 

Those who truly believe in the reality of reincarnation 
that the case of Swarnlata Mishra adds heavy am- - 

munition to their cause. Swarnlata, the daughter of no 
$ a personage than the Vice-Chancellor of Saugor 
niversity and former Home. Minister of Madya Pra- 
sh, India, claimed verifiable memories of two lives 
n she was but 10 years old. 

_ My name is Biya,” the small girl told her family. “I 
“was born about 1900. I had four brothers and two sisters. 

of my younger brothers was Babu.” 
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a “Babu,” he ee reece was her pet : 
younger | ‘prother, Hari Prasad Pathak, and was what she 

_ had always called him when they were at home. _ 
_ Hari heard of the strange claims of the 10-year-old 
girl and -decided to make a trip to the Mishra home in 

order that he might convince himself of their validity. 
_ His sister, Biya, had been dead for almost 20 years! He 
made the journey to Chhatarpur, in April, 1959. ; 
Upon meeting the young girl, Hari questioned her. 

_ regarding details of their childhood home, household 
articles, and many other family characteristics. As Hari 
stood in awe, the little girl told him not only of the loca-. 

tion of their former home, but its size, color, and shape, 
as well. She recalled how their old home had been fur- 

_ nished inside, and she told him of many incidents ‘that 
had happened decades before. 
-Chintamani Pandey, Biya’s husband, and Murli Pa 

dey, her son, also heard of Swarnlata’s claims. They, too, 
_ were curious about this girl who said that she had lived 

i, Immediately Swarnlata recognized. them both, ex. 

a past life as mother of their family, so they traveled. 
_ from Katni to Chhatarpur to see her. 

__ pressing joy and asking of their well-being. When Chin- 
 tamani produced an old group photo, she looked at it | 
and smiled. “This is you, here, but you were much 

AS photographs, many of them quite old. From these, she 

oe younger then.” 
_” Swarnlata was invited to the Pathak house for a visit, 
‘whereupon she was presented with some more group 

easily identified her mother and father as well as two 
other brothers and an old servant. 

Swarnlata’s. father, D. P. Mishra, recalls a enh aval 
trip which they took when his daughter was about four 

years of age. As the car neared Katni (the childhood 
home of Biya), the child became very excited and asked 

_ the driver, “Take me to the house where I was born.” 
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Hle notice was taken of her remark until Jater. 
they stopped at a roadside stand for tea, Swarn- 
d, “We could take tea at my old house in Katni.” 

r father dismissed her mutterings as nothing but - 
chi iildish bees and turned his attentions back to the 

é woman, Biya, died in 1939. 
there was no long time gap between Biya cad 

varnlata. The 10-year-old daughter of a government — 
icial was to recall yet another life. 

told her parents that, that same year when Biya 
, she was reborn into a Brahmin family at Silhatte 

parents’ wamies were Resins and Shashimata. They 
were people of means, for Kamlesh was taken to school 
ch day in her own private automobile. 

_ But the good life was not to last for her. One day, 
“when she was nine years old, the car crashed into a tree 

ly injuring her. She died in a hospital shortly after 
the accident. : oe 
_ Her father, D. P. Mishra, says that as early as the age 

our, Swarnlata sang Assamese folk songs and _per- 
ed Assamese tribal dances. Investigation has shown 

both the dances and the songs to be quite authentic, in- 
deed strange in view of the fact that Swarnlata ce 

r been outside the geographical boundaries of Mad- 
Pradesh, nor, as her father confirms, had she ever 

in contact with any Assamese. 

. P. Pastore, former president of the “Municipal 
ard of Chhatapur, interviewed the girl, checking and 
ying all other data, and came to the following con- 
n: 

. it is quite evident that, what she claims to recall 
ally are memories of former lives.” 
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THE EXECUTIONER LEFT HIS MARK 

eet 

“I'm worried about our son,” said Mrs. Hami to her 
husband. “He seems as if he were in another world.” 

Add he does all day long is wander around the house 
talking to himself.” : 

“But it’s common for young children to go around bab- 
bling.” H. A. Tileratne Hami had no fears for his child. 
The woman's worries were obviously unfounded. Me: 

But the mother was not to pass it off that easily. For 
days she followed the two- -year-old around the house, 
listening to him. Gradually, in bits and pieces, she 
picked up the gist of what he was saying. 

- Wijeratne was talking about another lifel. He “mut. 
tered to himself about his arm being deformed because 
he had murdered his wife in his former life. The Laws 
of Karma were doing their justice. fi 

_ Mrs. Hami immediately recalled a conversation which 
she had had earlier with her husband in which she re- 
membered his: commenting that there were marked 
similarities between his son, Wijeratne, and his de- 
ceased brother, Ratran Hami. Even later when her hus- 
band had said, “This is my brother come back,” she 
had not paid much attention to it. Now she Bie to 
wonder. : 

_ She told her husband of what the boy had said con- 
cerning the murder of his “wife,” and she asked him 
questions about Ratram Hami, a subject hitherto un- 
mentioned in the household. H. A. Tileratne had al- 
ways been vague in reference to his brother. Now, with 
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1e question put to him and the overwhelming evidence 
terated by his son, he told her the story. 
fileratne Hami and his brother Ratram Hami had 

sn farmers in the village of Uggalkaltota at the 
ye. Tileratne was some 15 years the elder, but it was 
tran who got married first. On October 14, 1927, 
ran and his wife, Podi Menike, had come to some 
reement. As a result of the argument, the bride 
ed to leave her parents’ home and go with Ratran 
is village. This angered Ratran to the extent that 
ew forth his kris and assaulted the disobedient 

e, subsequently killing her. 
e murderous bridegroom was tried, convicted, and 
mced to hang. When the sentence of the court had 
pronounced, Tileratne went to his brother and 

ed him if there were anything he could do. 
Ratran replied, “I am not afraid. I know that I will 
ve to die. I am only worried about you. Don’t sorrow, 

rother. I will return.” 
July, 1928, Ratran was executed. 
August, 1961, Dr. Ian Stevenson and Francis Story 

erviewed Wijeratne with members of his family and | 
re able to throw a little more light on the “why” of 
ease. Marriages in Ceylon are accomplished in two 

ges. When a marriage is agreed upon, usually by the 
arents of the families involved, a legal contract is 
rawn up. A delay may then occur before the formal 
vedding feast and the domestic union and consumma- 
ion of the marriage. During the interval between legal 
arriage and wedding feast it is not uncommon for the 
de to continue to live at her parents’ home, but she 

hnust remain in readiness to depart with her husband 
en he calls for her. Such was the case of Ratran and 

Menike. The legal ceremony had taken place, but 
final ones were yet to come. 

TAL. 
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that his wife had become infatuated with another man, 
__ who had persuaded her not to go through with her mar- 
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- riage to Ratran. When it came time for the final step of 
the marriage, Ratran went to his wife’s house to get her. 
She refused. fe 

The bridegroom pleaded with her, but when Podi 
would not be swayed, he walked the five miles back to 
his own home. There he got out his knife and sharpened 
it. He returned to the house of Podi Menike and once 

again begged her to return with him. to consummate their 
marriage. 

Again Podi refused, and then Ratran saw that his 
beloved was in the company of his rival. Being thus 
angered, Ratran fell upon the wayward wife and ended 

her infidelity+and her life. 
Wijeratne-Ratran says he definitely remembers the 

gallows and the sensations he underwent as the trap 
was sprung. It seemed as though he were dropping into 
a pit of fire. After that he forgot everything until he was 

two years old and realized that he had been reborn as 
his brother's son. 
When he talks of the murder, Wijeratne states, “T 

had an unbearable temper at the time. I did not think 
_-of the punishment I would get.” He continues, “But I 

be _ do not think that I did wrong. If I were again faced 

with the situation of a disobedient wife, I think I would 
act as before.” 
How did a boy of two acquire such an enormous 

amount of exacting information about a past life and 
a past crime when, in fact, his mother had never known 
of the incident and his father had never mentioned his 
uncle’s execution around the house? Ariyaratne, Wijer- 
atne’s older brother by seven years, verifies the fact that 
his father had never spoken of Ratran and that Wijer. 
atne began to narrate the story in great detail when he 
was no more than two and a half years old! 
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ratne e has since given up fspsnihepusly ee 
¢ subject, but will talk about it freely whenever it 
ntioned. 
Volume XXVI, Proceedings. of the American Soci- 

Psychical Research, September, 1966, (Twenty 
s Suggestive of Reincarnation), Dr. Ian Stevenson 

des his investigation by commenting on Wijer- 
statement that, as Ratran Hami, he had killed 
Menike and, in similar circumstances, he would 
esitate to kill her again. The researcher points out 
atran Hami pleaded innocent at his trial. Steven- 

seems inclined to believe that this difference sup- 
ports the reincarnation hypothesis as opposed to the 

y that Wijeratne obtained his information through. 
sensory perception from his parents or, conceivably, 
the court records. Investigator Stevenson feels that 

Wijeratne had acquired his information from these 
2s, he would have adhered to the plea of “not 
oS carl 

DOES THIS BOY PROVE REINCARNATION? 

ihe was somewhat less than three years old when 
ot Bepeaniy began speaking of a 
oe 

day when her mother was returned to the house 
bundle of kindling for the kitchen fire the little 

sked her, “Were the sticks free?” 
nm her mother replied that they were, the girl 

» the comment, “When I lived in Talawakelle, we 
buy wood for our kitchen fire.” 
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: What was this coming eae the mouth of a - ebild sO 
- young? A hint of a former life? Quizzed further, Gnana- 

tilleka told her mother of how, in her previous life— 
when she was Turin Tillekeratne—she did many things 
which she remembered. The infant furnished details of 
the location and appearance of her former house ix 
Talawakelle—the Post Office where her father had 

_. worked, a mountain which she supposedly had climbed. 
and of how she had seen Queen Elizabeth when - 
majesty had toured Ceylon in 1954. 

- Was little Gnanatilleka creating some sort of fantastic 
childish make-believe? Or, had she lived before? Be- 

_ cause of the strong Buddhist influence on the island, a: 
well as intense interest in matters affecting or concernec 
with its doctrines of reincarnation, any such claims fey 
past lives are carefully investigated and substantiated 
As news spread of her astonishing claims, interviewer: 
_and investigators were attracted from many areas. One 
particularly interested party was the Ceylonese nS 
ment itself! 

Born in March of 1956, ge daughter of D. B. D 
Appuhamy, a farmer from the village of Kotmale, Gna 
natilleka claims that in her previous life she occupiec 
the person of Turin Tillekeratne, the son of G. Podiap 
puhamy, an officer in the Ceylonese Post Office, living 

in the village of Talawakelle. Turin Tillekeratne wa: 
born on January 1, 1941 and died November 9, 1954. 

_ With this background data in mind, investigators pro 
ceeded to devise means to test the clans of Gnanatil 

_leka. Although Kotmale and Talawakelle are only | x 
_ miles apart, researchers were able to establish that she 
Gnanatilleka, had never been to Talawakelle prior t 
her claims of a previous life in that area, and, althoug] 
her parents had visited there, fiexs did not know the 
family of Turin Tillekeratne. 

For their first test, investigators inde the directio 
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H. S. S. Nisanka brought Turin’s mother to a busy, 

i street in the village of Kandy, a major town in ~ 
a region. They asked the woman to stand near a 
while they brought Gnanatilleka down the street 
if the Bil would recognize the mother of Turin. 

Vhile her father carried her-down that same busy 
amidst the crowds of people, Gnanatilleka sud- 
ome excited and cried out, “Stop, stop! There 

my Talawakelle mother!” 
the amazement of the investigators, the girl had 
ed Turin’s mother—a woman she had never met 

m the midst of the crowded marketplace. 
or another test, she was confronted with a group of 

e and asked to pick out her (Turin’s) brothers — 
isters. This she did without error, even calling 

n by their pet names! 
ater on, while talking with them, she astonished 
by relating personal incidents that had taken place 
m her and members of her family during Turin’s 
e. In particular, she told of the visit of Queen 

zabeth to the island. She and her brothers and sisters 
run down to the railroad tracks to view the Queen 
he passed. Their mother had stayed behind to watch 
the house. This, according to the other members 

' Turin’s family, was substantially correct. To their 
ement the girl also told them of an incident where 

‘of them had once been bitten by a dog. This, ac- 
ding to the family, was also correct. 
nd little Gnanatilleka continued, putting together 

of Turin’s life that had been all but forgotten for 
2D hegelal 
She spoke of school life at Sri Pada College in Hat- 

The headmaster of this school confirmed that a boy — 
ed Turin Tillerkeratne had once attended there and 

at Gnanatilleka’s details concerning the place were 
sentially accurate. 
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The fests: anes Ae chief ‘investigator Hs: Si 
Nissanka that \Gnanatilleka’s story was no falsertnn. 
Of the case he says, “J have no doubt that Gnanatilleka’s- 

is another genuine case of re-birth, of* reincarnation. - Ms 
The Podiappuhamy family has also come to that same 

conclusion. Of the girl, they comment, “There is no use 
going into details. We have studied Gnanatilleka closely, 

’ and we know that she is our son Turin.” 
- Could the girl have made. up the whole story? From 
the facts we have, it is not likely. Although she had never 
been to the village of Talawakelle, or, for that matter, | 

had never heard anyone speak of the place, she was 
nonetheless able to tell investigators where Turin had 

lived, what his house had looked like, and to identify 
his mother, brothers and sisters. 

She knew that, in Talawakelle, her mother had to buy 
_ firewood. While this is the case in most Ceylonese homes, © 
Gnanatilleka could not have possibly known this fact, 
for in Kotmale, her family lived on a farm which bor- 

- dered on a woodlot where they always had access to” 
plenty of free firewood. Gnanatilleka had never seen a 
wood vendor in her area, 

The same situation is true of coconuts. In Kotmale - 
there are many trees and coconuts are plentiful, but in 

- Talawakelle, all of the land is taken up by the tea-— 
growing plantations and it is necessary to buy coconuts © 
there. She knew this, yet she had never been there, nor 

had she ever heard anyone speak of it. 4 
Gnanatilleka’s story of the mountain climb joan 

_ further investigation. While it is quite common for a 
_ Buddhist youth to make a pilgrimage up Adam’s Peak, © 

(for here it is said that the Lord Buddha left the im-— 

print of one of his feet), it was found that the girl's 
memories of the trip corresponded to those of Turin and © 

were not just common knowledge events that might 
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od the girl personally. Concerning the interview, 
tes, “I spoke to her in Sinhalese, an Aryan Jan- 
poken by the majority race that inhabits Ceylon, 
alese . . . my general observation of this peasant 
de during our conversation is that she is a very — 

gent girl for her age. For a child who was not yet — 
n I interviewed her, it was remarkable to hear _ 
ak the Sinhalese language so fluently and un- _ 
gly. ... this evidence of reincarnation already has __ 

accepted by thousands of Ceylonese who have 
igrimages to see and come away believing. . . is 

Moyea are sah ere where you always keep ee 
. eplied his mother rather sternly. 

0 these,” he persisted. “The other ones!” 
h, Ravi,” moaned his sister, “don’t start that apaint” iM) 
1e “that” that Ravi Shankar* was about to start 

s the story of his previous life as ‘Munna, son of 



_-ransom—if he would only accompany them. There 

Ee all, one of them was a relative, so what could possibly 

Ps their direction and headed toward the river. Perhaps 

-. ‘was assumed to be the elimination of Prasad’s heir so 

‘: _ From the time that he was between two and three 

2 een was ee puiside that day when: ‘two men 
came up to him and offered him a few coins—which 
to a six-year-old, must have seemed like a King 

seemed to be no harm in going with the men. Afte 

happen? Besides, a new toy every once im a while 
never hurt anyone. 

His eyes filled with visions of great rewaedl young 
Munna left what he had been doing and accompanied 
the men. He was not alarmed when they changed 

it was a boat which the men were going to give him. 
_ When they reached the river, - ‘the 1 men turned on 
him. : 

“And now you'll be out of my way,” his +alotive said 
As the boy stared at them in startled disbelief, the 

‘men produced weapons and murdered him, removing 
his head and severely mutilating the rest of his bod 
The murderers, a barber and. a-washerman, we: 

_ Tater arrested. They had been seen in the area in the 
_ company of young Munna. The motive for the murder 

_ that the relative might receive the property. With this 
_ testimony leveled against them, one of the men made 
a confession. But after they had been officially charged 
he retracted his statement, thus destroying the cas 

_ for the state. There had been no witnesses to the crim: 
_ and so, for lack of evidence, the case had to be droppe 
‘i and the confessed murderers were set free. mi 

Six months later, in another district, Ravi was bor 

i 

< 
Se 

| : _years old, he began telling, with remarkable, accura 
the story of Munna. 
Word of the claims reached Sri Jageshwar Prasad 
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ther. and he went to see Ravi wah af idea 
either corroborating or refuting the boy’s story.  * 
avis father, Sri Babu Ram Gupta, was quite annoyed 
rasad’s mission, fearing that the man was somehow ~ 
ing to take the boy from him, and he refused to 
sad see the child. Sri Prasad, however, arranged 

idience with Ravi’s mother, and through her, was 

mitted a confrontation with the boy. 
avis account of the murder was substan the - 
as that which Sri Prasad and the investigating 

cials had been able to put together. The confession 
the one murderer lent. even further credence to the 

ri Prasad was so impressed with the ia state- 
mts that he tried to re-open the case against the 
tderers of his son. For some reason, possibly due to 
-unacceptability of Ravi’s testimony, this was not 

ble. 
tavis father became even more annoyed with the 

jation as more and more investigators called upon 
boy and more questions were put to him. Sri 

bu Ram Gupta discouraged the boy from talking 
t his alleged memories of Munna’s life any further 

od beat him when he did. Gupta went so far as to 
d Ravi out of the district for a while, in hopes that 

interest. would die down, and Ravi Us forget 
bout his past life. 

sri Ram Gupta, protective as his Gated were, would 
fer have the last word. Shortly after Ravi returned 
m his paternally inflicted exile, his father died. . 
Of particular interest is the congenital marking on 
neck of Ravi Shankar, which gives an appearance — 
eing an old scar from a healed knife wound. Is it 

sible that this might be a reminder of the a 
his past life? 

Also noteworthy is the fact that Ravi still fears the 
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vo men oe allegedly ill —M le 
know the men nor why he fears them, Ravi tol 
-vestigator Dr. Ian Stevenson in 1962, but whenever. 
‘meets them on the street or RTE oe he gets” shudders 

_ in his body and a certain feeling of anxiety. __ “3 
__ As Ravi gets older, the memories of Munna are fading 

e from him. Little regarding the murder is clear to him 
x anymore, but his memory seems to improve when stim- 

ulated in conversation and he can recall a great deal. 
then. Perhaps this tendency toward repression stems 
from Ravi'’s father’s attempts” to make ee as ne 

‘Munna and his past life. i 

”~ ‘THE PAST LIFE OF BHAJAN SINGH 

2 Thakur * ‘Reacul Singh’s ‘mind was heavy jit 
_ thought-as he traveled the road from Change to 

_ Jamalpur, India. a 
Was his grandson Munesh going insane? Was the ) 
e just babbling? fe 
Singh dismissed both these ‘ideas as he made his 
way through the night. Young Munesh was too sin- 
cere to be making the story up. And he had repeated 

_ the facts too many times. 

- “I am Bhajan Singh.* I belong to the village 
_ Ttarni. I have a wife, three brothers, a mother, and 
ies _ daughter.” The boy had rambled on about his pee 
sions, his home, and his family. | 

pak © Singh is as common a name in India as Smith is 
3 the US. 
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akur Netrapal Singh would find out once. and for 
ami was on his way. He would stop and inquire 
d. co someone there had heard of Bhajan 

He had not been in Itarni long when he discovered _ 
at there had been a man named Bhajan Singh but 

at the man had died from the fever in 1951, leaving Anh 
and a daughter. Munesh had been born in — 

he grandfather sought out Bhajan Singh's fad ES 
d told them of how his four-year-old grandson, yl om 
pt insisting that he was Bhajan Singh. 
‘The family was, quite naturally, curious to ane of iets 

_ A few days later a brother, Bhure Singh, and his 
her-in-law, journeyed to Chandgari to see Manes: 

Ik to him. 
Upon seeing the two men, Munesh began to weep. — 

asked by his grandfather to identify them, he _ 
i ated to Bhure and called him by name. The two ; 
sitors rs quizzed Munesh for a time, and then prepared _ 

hey Opens about to depart, Munesh grabbed — ; 
s arm. “Take me with you,” he Pea “I want 
ame to Itarni.” | 
when the packs: agreed to take Munesh ae 
visit did the boy quiet down. oa 
of the boy’s alleged reincarnation Bee ue 

a Devi, ees Singh’s widow. Curious, she 

an oe again, recognizing them poe oe 

tears were not enough to convince the widow. 

ae Devi peed to be. alone with Munesh, then 2 



is ie that soil prove to her that he ‘was indeed her 
_ husband reborn. | 

2 THE NIC 

Munesh replied that he had hoe her one ‘ame’ 
with a churning stick and had cut her arm. The four- 
‘year-old went on to tell the woman. of their marital 
relations, secrets that are spoken of only between hus- 

band and wife in India. 
Such intimate revelations convinced Ayodhya Devs 

and she asked that Munesh be allowed to go with her 
to Itarni. The boy’s parents agreed, and Ayodhya Devi 
and the four-year-old reincarnation of her husband set 
out on the 40-mile trip the next morning. 

As the strangely reunited couple neared Itarni, they 
were met by a crowd of villagers: Munesh looked 
over the crowd rather matter of factly, not being par- 

oe ticularly excited by the reception. Then he saw his (iely 

oy. 
jan Singh’s) best friend standing amid the crowd. 

“Bhagwati Prasad!” he yelled, and Ayodhya Dewi 
_ stopped the cart. The two “friends” spoke to each other 
about events of the past, and when they had finished, 
Bhagwati Prasad was certain that Munesh was his ale 

2 friend, Bhajan Singh. 
Munesh then led the crowd directly to Bhajan Singh’s 

house (Munesh had never been there before), when 
he saw Bhajan’s mother. At this he was overjoyed and 
broke into tears again. 

When Munesh-Bhajan had reese control of his 

emotions, he took the crowd on a tour of the farm, 

answering questions and pointing out things of interest 

_ which he remembered well. 
- The arden oy then showed them fe house 

e ding hight there and also how he had died there. 
Before he left, Munesh had identified all of his ae 
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Eebee his will, his sae four bullocks, and two 
alo. 
hen Munesh had returned to his home in Chand- 
he became lonesome and longed for the company 

his wife, Ayodhya Devi, and his daughter. He had 
- yet seen his daughter in his present life as Munesh, 

d he begged his grandfather to let him go to her. 
er much persuasion, it was agreed, but this time 
‘foreknowledge of Munesh’s arrival was given. 
Nevertheless, as before, Munesh-Bhajan walked. di- 
y to the house of his father-in-law, as if he had 
there many times. He seemed to recognize every- 
there, but his happiest moment came when they 

esented his daughter. Bhajan was so taken with see- 
y her again that he would not leave her side and 
sn refused to eat unless she were present. 
one Munesh-Bhajan had to go back to Chand- 

; but there he was very unhappy, and the only 
ne he showed joy or enthusiasm was when one of 

(Bhajan Singh’s), family visited him. Whenever 
y left, the boy would grieve over their departure. 

esh’s past life so possessed him that it seemed to 
pletely overshadow the present world. 
uld four-year-old Munesh have fabricated the fan- 

e story? Was his family engaged in some kind of 
antic hoax? It is highly unlikely. When Munesh 
began to speak of a previous life, he was mocked 

d ridiculed, even punished when he persisted in tell- 
his “stories.” There was no attempt at monetary 

made by any member of either family. World 
riety seems a remote possibility as a motive, for 

her than word of mouth gossip, the case was not 
ished in even the local paper for nearly four years 
Munesh had begun to make his claims. 
at seems even more conclusive, is the overwhelm- 

evidence that there was no normal way in which 
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3 sos Fore miles belwoed on alge isa founidatll 
distance in India, and communication is very poor. 

_ Munesh had rarely been out of his own village, and 
_- when he had, he had been accompanied by a member 

of his own family. Moreover, no one in Munesh’s village 
of Chandgari had ever heard of Bhajan Singh. Bhajan’s 

obituary had never even been printed in the news- 
papers! 

-. Hemendra Nath Banerjee, professor of iced 
Government College, Sri Ganganagar, India, an authori- 
ty on extra-sensory perception among children, con- 
ducted an extensive investigation of the case. Writing 

in Fate, Banerjee says: 
“We have checked, cross-checked, double-checked 

and triple-checked, and still we come to the same co 
clusion. This is a case of extra-cerebral memory. 

“This term is a working term for us. We do not wish 
to say ‘reincarnation’ or ‘multiple personality or ‘spirit 

_ possession’ for we, as empirical scientists, shy ace 
from occult and spiritualistic connotations. — 

“Our term only means that Munesh’s claims of mem: 
ories of a past life appear to be independent of the 

cerebrum, the seat of memory in the brain, whic 
_ thought to die at the death of the individual” ~ 
What, then, have the parapsychologists concluded in 

the case of Munesh? 4 
‘“Only that we do not know,” Banerjee admits 
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THE POISON VICTIM CAME BACK 

‘Jasbir has died of smallpox,” Sri Girdhari Lai Jat 
to his brother, Sri Paltu Singh. “Will you come 

d help me bury him?” 
‘But it’s late, Girdhari,” answered the brother. “Why 
wait until morning?” 
irdhari agreed disconsolately. It was getting late. 
aps morning would be a better time to consider 

ch a task. He returned home to the side of his 
and-a-half year old son, Jasbir. The night would 

‘long. What more could he do here? Would he not 
er serve his own needs by getting some sleep? 

t, alas, he had a duty to his son. 
A few hours later, as Girdhari was looking at the 

still figure lying on the bed, he ovens he saw 
's body move. Impossible! 

He continued staring at the corpse. 
_ There it was again! His son was not dead! 

Jasbir convalesced for several weeks before he finally 
sained his power of speech. When he did, Jasbir was 
t the same boy. Somehow, during his coma, he had 

: dergone a complete transformation of character. Jas- 
“now thought of himself as Sobha Ram, son of 
ankar of Vehedi village, and he expressed a strong 
sire to go there and be with his father and family. 

refused to eat food in the Jat household on the 
ounds that he was a Brahmin, a higher caste,. and 

t such an act was unthinkable and taboo in the 
f the rules of caste. 
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SH Girdhart Lal Jak ‘was co a loss: as a whee to. 
i Tf he. did not take food, Jasbir would die for ‘certain. 

But how could he force aie boy to eat? How could: ie 
convince the boy that he was not a Brahmin? ; 
A neighbor who was a Brahmin, heard of Girdhar’s 

plight, and lent a helping hand. She cooked for Jasbir 
in the Brahmin manner, from foodstuffs which Gird- 
hari supplied. This she did for almost two years. 

However, during the same period of time, sales 
knownst to Jasbir, the boy was also eating food from 

the table of his father. Little by little the Jat family 
had been substituting food from the same menu from 

_ which they fed. 
When Jasbir discovered the deception, he ened 

no more to do with it, but the’ family put pressure on 

> his life and death. 

- injury. A few hours later he died in Vehedi. 

him, stating that he had already violated the taboos 
and eaten the food of a lower caste. Eventually, they 

talked Jasbir into giving up, at least temporarily; hi 
rigid Brahmin dietary habits and taking regular meals 
with them. This Jasbir did, but he did not give up 

_his obsession with the new personality. He was Sobha 
Ram, and he continued to give the —, details: me) 

- He died, he said, in the village of Vehedi, following 

a wedding procession. According to Jasbir (Sobha), he 
had eaten some sweets during the procession between 

villages. The sweets were allegedly given to him by a 
than to whom he had lent money in the past. In an 

effort to avoid his debts, the man had poisoned. Sobh 

Somewhere along the road between Nirmana and 

Vehedi, Sobha had become dizzy and nauseated and 
had fallen from his chariot, suffering a severe head 

The Jat family desired no notoriety in connection 
is ing their son Jasbir, so they tried to keep. his —— 
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eiynie ey. wile ae in ees had 

a the Brahmin circles of the special cooking — 
ad been done for the boy Jasbir. The lady, _ 

ti Shyamo, was a native of Rasulpur, but she | 
aried a native of Vehedi and had since ives sf 

- was quite pian curious, when. on one’ obey 
visits to Rasulpur, Jasbir seemed to recognize her. 
then on, it was only a matter of inquiry before - 
ti Shyamo learned of the boy’s strange story. 

he story of Jasbir, corresponded almost identically 
‘that of one Sobha Ram, a young man of 22, whom — 
had known in Vehedi. Sobha Ram had been a son 
ne Tyagi family, who were friends of hers. Sobha __ 

ed recently in a chariot accident, similar to the Oe 
hich Jasbir had described. 
nati Shyamo took this story to the Tyagi fanibe 
re very much interested in the information their — 

end had acquired, for as far as they had known, eit 

bh had died directly as a result of injuries sus-— = 

: debtor or of any poisoning. 
y traveled to Rasulpur to hear Jasbir's story di- 
‘om the boy. Jasbir recognized each member of 

family immediately and expressed. his affection and 
ppreciation of their visit. 
er questioning, he related to them detailed events 
life of Sobha, all of which were corroborated — 
family. He showed a special affection toward | 
r, the son of Sobha Ram. 

oe Beas fear the railway station. Fe was ee ae 
0 lead the party to the Tyagi quadrangle. This 

? 7 geen without difficulty. To confirm 



Sukla. From ake he ‘once again Be 

te should be noted that, although te 
Rasulpur and Vehedi are but twenty’ or so miles 
they are off the beaten track, and communi 
tween them is Ms poor. Few residents if eith 

cleat © the Tas ae would hae to ha 
asus by other than normal means. — ; 

have prevented him from meeting ae wife 
of Sobha Ram, since such a confrontation mi ht t 

REINCARNATION AND ESP 

ie “Shanti’s talking about her husband again, 
mate teased the small girl. 

“But I do have a husband,” the litle ‘gia Bs 
“And a son, too.” : 
The more the girl insisted, the more aoe hi 

from the children around her ¢ on the: str 



P 
ckery for telling about the ees she pais aah 
her parents had wamed Shanti not to talk of her 
nd” and “son” so much. But sometimes the feel- 

not keep hen. inside. 
nti Devi, from her earliest’ childhood, eecae 

smember details from a life lived in the city of © 
tra. Most of her family and relatives ignored the 

laims to such knowledge and attributed the 
te aaa of the place where she claimed 

. Beicntc. Shanti aroused the aa ae 
fessor Kishen Chand, her granduncle. To satisfy _ 

self and, perhaps to put an end to Shanti Devi's — 
on Ay husband she had in Muttra, the professor 

1g 40 the girl and sent a letter off to a man 
Kedar Nath Chaubey, whom Shanti Devi con- 
had been her husband in Muttra. 

essor Chand was more than a little surprised 
he received an answer from such a man in Muttra. 

iti had never been near the city of Muttra, yet. 
had given him not only the correct name of the 

hom she contended was her husband, but also 
orrect address of his house. Chand was not one 
riving at premature conclusions, but he had to 
that these were at least very strange coincidences. 
r Nath Chaubey, the man who received the 

_was Cas too. He had a son, but his ee 

L but to send a friend to find out if some attempt 
being made to defraud him. ‘After the friend had 



_ that the case merited some investi: 
_ girl came from a respected family. : 

_ _ Kedar Nath and his son traveled to Delhi to mee 
__ Professor Chand and Shanti Devi. Still openly skeptical 
about the truth of the story that had been related to 
him, Chaubey was amazed to find that the girl knew 
things about him that only his former wife might know. 

Shanti went directly to the man’s son, embraced 
him, and spoke to him in the terms of endearment 

diat. his wife had used nine years before! She also 
assumed the same attitude toward him that his wife 

had taken before her death, The next day, Chaubey 
left Delhi in great confusion, in spite of the protests 

of Shanti Devi that she wished her “son” to sects with 
her. 
‘Desh Bandhu Gupta, then president of the All-India 

- Newspaper Editors’ Conference, as well as a member 
of. parliament, prepared a scheme which he thought 
_ would determine the validity of Shanti’ claims. Mr. 

ee Gupta, and other prominent people interested in the 
case, escorted Shanti Devi by train to Muttra. The girl 
«was then asked to direct the- party to the house 
which she had lived with her husband. 

The instructions Shanti Devi gave were clear and: 
precise and she led the party unerringly through the 
narrow streets of Muttra to the front door of a dwell- 
gs j ee 

“I used to live in this house,” she said to the m 
ee when I lived here the building was ee Ue 
ow. 

_ The men looked at the white exterior of the buidine 
then back at the girl. One of them knocked at the 
door of the dwelling. 
To the girl’s surprise, the occupant of the honest was 

a3 “not Kedar Nath and his son, but a family unknown 
ee Ok See The ee in the crowd ‘house that 5 Se 
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: forwarded to him from the old address. 

stigators to her “mother's” house. Once again she 

1e noticed anything different about the building, 

3 house of her “husband.” After looking about 

wee 

o longer deny the validity of the girl’s claims. 

nd these, together with the testimonies of Kedar 

Kedar Nath ie to the story and coinflerned that 
se that the girl had led the crowd to had been ; 

5 years before. He explained that, shortly after 
- death of his wife, he had moved to a smaller — 

ng. The first letter from Professor Chand had 
ad ‘ 

had noticed the difference in paint on the — 

gned statements that testified to what they had 

Chaubey, and the girl’s parents, were enough to — 

rove her contention that she did remember a = 
as Kedar Nath’s wife, Shanti led the party OF 

t err in her directions. Mr. Gupta asked the girl 2 : 

she told them that there had been a well lo-— ; 
a certain corner of the property. The ground _ 

_tumed over, and the casing of a long unused vat 

hand "Devi found her “mother” inside the house 
dentified her immediately, though the old woman 

thered and bent with age. The group of men ren 

¥ r information, then her ESP abilities must have ce 
_ developed to a degree that would enable her _ 



—to7 perceive Tacages hes a distant city abou' 
who had been dead for nearly a decade. ‘There must be 

agents who “broadcast” the impressions” which a tele- 
_ pathic percipient receives. A great many people in 

- Muttra must have had Kedar Nath’s wife on their 
minds at all times. That a simple housewife had made 
such a great impression upon the citizens of _Muttr 
is too preposterous an assumption to follow. See 

- Once Shanti Devi was brought to Muttra, however, 
-. one might make a case for the hypothesis — that the 
girl was drawing her knowledge from the subconscious 

- minds of Kedar Nath, his son, and his friends. The 
_ impressive fact that Shanti Devi often described things 

as they had been nine years before, rather than 
_ they were at the present, may also be attributed 
- telepathic reception of information from the sube 
scious of the many people who crowded about her. 
__ But even in Muttra, the telepathic. hypothesis be- 
comes stretched to the snapping point. To be able ‘ 

- accomplish such apparent feats of memory via some 
~_extrasensory ability, Shanti Devi would have had 
have the ability to probe the minds of Kedar ‘Nath 
_ and the other assembled adults, discard what was co: a 

_ temporary, determine which impressions denoted past 
conditions, and arrive at a subconscious consensus, all 
in the split second which it took her to respond 
_the questions put to her by her interrogators. The gir 
could have made a fortune as a professional medium 

_ Clearly, there is something more at work in n the: = 
a Devi case than ESP. 

I find the extrasensory hypothesis useful in pee ; 
‘many cases suggestive of reincarnation, however. ' fake, 
_ for example, the well attested to phenomenon of | ret On) 
cognition, the “psi” experience wherein one» eT Ce € 
_ a scene from the past and thereby derives i 
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a past event which he could not have acquired 
gh normal means. ; ee ae 
seems to me that retrocognition could account for _ 
an experience as the businessman, whom we dis- 

sed in an earlier chapter, who felt himself an Indian 
ile camping with his boy scouts. Perhaps he per- 
ved a scene from the past when Indians did indeed 
sleeping outside of Indian Cave. As he lay there in 
mi-trancelike state, some part of his subconscious 
have dramatized the incident to include him as 

character within the scene instead of being merely 
percipient. To illustrate with an example, we have 
‘had the experience of incorporating the ringing 
the alarm clock into our dreams. Tickle the foot of 
sleeper and his dream machinery may transform 
t sensation into the caress of a lovely maid or the 
her of a deadly reptile, depending upon some un- 

whim of the subconscious. 
hen, too, our young student, who so stubbornly in- 

fed that a room lay beyond the stone wall in the 
rman castle, may have been sensitive to certain vi- 
ttions in the psychic ether and have “seen” through 
stone via retrocognition. To offer another ESP- 
ted explanation of this case; the student may. have 
yoyantly perceived the information of the hidden 

m from either the ancient book in the curator’s 
or from the forgotten memories of the curator 

elf. 
mittedly, the ESP hypothesis is qute unsatisfactory 
laining many of the documented cases with which 
ve dealt in this book, but by the same token, 

> should not accept every strange flash of “memory” 
2 of of reincarnation. An unfamiliar room may seem 
evoke hidden memories because of its own peculiar 

sphere or because scenes of violent emotional im- 
have been enacted within its walls. An old stone 
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of a latent psychometric talent on the part of the in 
vidual who touches its surface. But in each of these 
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axe may seem ve feces a flood om ‘memories i heeause 

ESP-induced experiences, the - oe is “observing, 

not remembering. iN: 

It seems to me that it was ESP at work rather than 
a manifestation of reincarnation in this case quoted 
by Rev. Leslie D. Weatherhead in his The Case a 
Reincarnation. | 
“ According to Rev. Weatherhead, in October of 1959, 
he received a letter from a woman who had a uni- 
versity degree in science but who had had no interest 
in matters of a psychic nature until after her son’s 

early death. The woman tells of a number of unusual 
_ experiences which her son David had during his brief 
life span. 

_ “From four years he spoke ‘of an invisible playa 
whom he called his Little Princess. In any difficulty 
he would say: ‘I must ask my Little Princess” ~ 
, Rev. Weatherhead’s correspondent says that she. and 
her husband identified the invisible visiting royalty with 

her husband’s ancestors, “. . . and do indeed believe 
_ he could see and hear her.” 

At age seven, according to the woman, “Ded: ac 
companied her to Rome to visit her grandmother, who 
stayed in Italy a great deal. For an afternoon's outing, 
the woman and her son accompanied a noted archaeolo- 

gist to view a recently excavated Roman villa on ‘the 
outskirts of Naples. : 

From the moment they reached the excavation, David 
became very emotional and excited and ran about the 

ruins until he came to a Roman bath ong with 
the signs of the Zodiac. 

“Here's our bath, and our tiles—mine had a bull. on 
it and the fish was Marcus,” the boy shouted excitedly. 

epee’ 
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it was all so ste 1 can’t bee Seer a weesraess 
sthe r of David’s strange experiences took place 
e and his parents were visiting some caves in — 

e which had been used at one time as prisons. 
rench soldiers. The boy began to tap on the 
f the cave and told his parents that there was yet 

her cave where a young prisoner had been walled — 

vid | aid his skeptics ‘shat he had “watched it 
¢ done.” _ 

authorities denied the existence of “such a cave 
e perpetration of such an act. 
n David gave the name of Phe prisoner, and. he 

ted upon a closer examination of the records 
authorities. 
eally, pens were taken and the walls were | 

x 

cod Maen was correct.” 
David was 14, his mother ee ienee him | 

at some new mummies which had been acquired — 
| British Museum. His mother felt she would be — 

or yet another of David’s flights into the un- 
i . to cag aap her son appeared quite = 

ide a ae David teeoence ae 
» should have pace three: initials on the underside 

Jar d made oa birds on his note ae Auae 
That was ny eee he told her, “but you weren't oy 



the coffins if oe were mR oRL 
Rey. Weatherhead concludes that such wae I~ 

-penings have “no adequate interpretation other than 
that of reincarnation.’ 

It seems much more likely to me that youre ‘David 
was an exceptionally gifted clairvoyant. Such people as 
Peter Hurkos, Croiset, and my good friend, John Pen- 
dragon, have the extraordinary talent of being able 
to hold scarves, watches, rings, letters, and other items 
and thereupon being able to recite episodes of the 
owners’ past, present, and, sometimes, his future. 

Such emotion-charged places and objects as — 
ancient Roman villa, a prison cave; and an Egypti 
mummy would seem to be powerful broadcasters — 
the sensitive psyche of a young clairvoyant. Aga , 
perhaps because of his youth and his inability to under- 
stand his ESP talents, David may have projected him- 
self into the impressions which he perceived when he 
came into contact with certain places and things. When 
such an exceptionally talented clairvoyant as Great 
Britain’s John Pendragon receives emanations from a 
object or letter, he perceives the impressions of hi 
“psychic screen,” almost as if he were watching a tel a 
vision drama untald: Only under the most unusu: of 
circumstances would a clairvoyant feel himself canighi 
up in the impressions or feel himself a part a 
drama. oO al 

_ Another strike which I would call on the interpre: ‘ 
tation of David’s experiences as being suggestive of of 

_ reincarnation is the matter of the great coincidence of 
the young man happening to encounter such widel) 

_ separated locales for his former lives in his own ae, 
lifespan. - - 

It would seem to me to be stretching the law: 
chance a bit far to consider that a young yee 5 
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mse where he iad served either as guard or 
er, and happen to come into cont with the 

C ae among thousands that contained the 
ly shell of a former life. No, it seems 

more realistic to suppose that David and_ his 
$ were unaware of the fact that he was possessed 

t talent for psychometry. 
P, then, in this writer's opinion, may account for 

y alleged cases of reincarnation. One little- under- - 

— as a “general hypothesis to account for all” ss 
ggestive of reincarnation, tesa does 1 not 
e test. = ae 

Joskea Eaud the ig of irate. villager who. 
ded him, He was silent. 

a knife whistled chrough the air, pion 
of his skull. Phoh was sees by the time he — 
ot 2 i 

could see his body lying there on the ee 
gushing from the knife wound. He wanted to ee : 

but he feared all the people standing around. 
they “as ty to sy him oe Veet 



_ been tatooed on both hands and feet, a protective me 

which Phoh had received. 

THE ENIGMA OF RE IN 

Phoh did not return to’ his ee Instead, in 
priile form, he visited friends and relatives. A: i 

_ “J was very distraught when they could not see me 
or feel my hands when I would touch them.” _ 

When he arrived at his brother’s house, Phoh fou 
himself at breakfast with his sister-in-law, who wee was" 
unaware of his presence. 2 

_. “She was heavy with child, and I was overcome i 
a certain compulsion to enter her body, which I did. 

I dwelled there for a few months, until it was time 
_ for her to deliver, then I emerged from her ee as 
‘Thiang.” Reker 

This is the story told by Siamese ree Sgt. Thian 
San Kla, the man who claims to be his Uncle Ene 
reborn. 
Prior to his death, Phoh had be suffering fuss 

suppurating wound on his right big toe. He also had ~ 

~ sure’ which supposedly gave a man immunity fro 
the weapons of his enemies. _ 

When Thiang was born, just three months afte 
Phoh’s death in July, 1924, his right big toe was slightly 
deformed, and he had markings on his hands and feet 
which strongly resembled tatooing, On the left rear 

~ surface of his skull was a large birthmark, a pene 
naevus, which corresponded exactly to the knife woun: Ky 

_ It was not until he was about four years of. agi : 
that Thiang began to relate his story. At that time, he 
told his parents that his name was Phoh and that | 
was his father’s brother reborn. 

Although Thiang’s father only lived for two months 
_ after the boy had begun to talk, it was sufficient tim ’ 

__ to convince him that his young son was also his brother. 
- Before he died, Thiang told bin not sae) He — 

So 
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concerning - Phoh’s life ‘that he, as Phoh’s beothier 
know, but also many things which he was able 

verify through others. 
iang-Phoh recognized and identified all of the 
bers of both his and Phoh’s families as well as many 
oh’s friends. 

hoh’s wife, Pai, heard about the claims of her nephew 
d traveled from her home in the village of Ar Vud © 
Ru Sai, Thiang’s home. 
A Ithough the two villages are but 25 kilometers apart, 
re is still relatively little communication between 
om. With her, Pai brought some items that had- been 

’s possessions, as well as a number oe articles that 
not. 

iang correctly, and with apparent ease, separated 
articles into two .groups—those which had been 
ind those which he had never seen before.. : 
hile this was quite a convincing display, Pai re- 
d more proof. Thiang readily obliged by taking 

aside and recounting to her some of the more inti- 
details of her family life. 

fis more than convinced Pai that Thiang was her 
sband Phoh reborn. It also placed her in a rather 

ward situation. Pai was not a married woman, for 
- husband had been killed, yet she felt that she could. 
consider herself a widow, either, because of the 
helming evidence of Phoh’s rebirth as Thiang. 

solution to her problem, Pai became a Buddhist nun. 
Nai Pramaun, of the Municipality Office in Surin, is 

teresting witness of the case. 
maun had been a young man and an Assistant 

ict Officer at the time of Phoh’s murder and had 
tigated the alleged cattle thefts as well as the 
er. Because he lived in the area, Pramaun had 
heard of the claims of the small boy, and because 

f his acquaintance with the family through his in- 
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estgutions regarding Phob's dea 
Thiang. © ; 

Thiang fresopnived “Prarnaun tnrnodealet a 
_ dressed him by name. Thiang-Phoh recalled 
_ Officer the names of all who were present at the m 
including the murderer. himself, a man nami 
_ When he had finished his interview, the inves’ 
examined the marks on Thiang’s body. Although 

- was no other physical similarity between the t 
_ sonalities, Pramaun told investigator Francis Story, 
wrote of the case for Fate, that the birthmark 

other deformities corresponded’ —— with those 
Phoh. é 

‘ ake: unenanele correct, with, hometee one 
sistency. Phoh, claims Thiang, was wrongfully | 
of stealing cattle, but according to Mr. Pramaw 
was a notorious figure in the area, who had 
engaged in cattle theft._ 
_ One very convincing piece of evidenees on : 
of Thiang occurred when he recognized son 
as that which had belonged to him in his life 
Nobody had told Thiang of this property, y 
able to dene, exactly, the circumstances under 

ae in an sont to regain” his propor ‘bak 
_ doned the idea when told that he had ‘no chi 

ie ae story is well known chrouaha the 7 
_ which he lives. The evidence is so convinci 

one doubts its validity. But for Thiang it Temain 
nightmare ... a nightmare in which he 
in life as his own uncle! . 



_ THE CASE FOR REINCARNATION* 

An afterword by David D. Graham, 
> pp ap Bsher, Infinity Newsletter 

approach the subject of reincarnation in his 
mon he would certainly have placed himself in a 
sition that would have subjected him to ridicule, 

d by dismissal, and perhaps, even a trial for 

or a number of years, dating back at least to 

(At least, not from the pulpit! ) 

liberal attitude on the part of. certain con- 

ry, more commonly called the Dead Sea Scrolls, 
sh are believed to be writings made by the Essenes, 

arnationists. 

both were trained in, and preached, ortho- 

their ee of research and Oye were able 

rgyman, as recent as twenty-five years ago, 

time that Jesus was on Earth. The Eco 

have had liberal ministers and religious — 

19th century, ‘but even the most zealous liberal — 
ime would not touch reincarnation with a ten- 8 

of the greatest influences, which encouraged a 

theologians, was the discovery of the Essene ~ 

modern writer-ministers as On Lewis Busia % 
Dr. Marcus Bach have both written and — 

the subject of reincarnation, in spite of the : 

their earlier years in the pulpit. These men, - 



Hon. a were nar ale to. discuss . 
ministers were still ean: eek 
discussing it at all. 

~ Reincarnation is certainly not a new idea, 0: 

- limited to Oriental thought, but one with a long h 
almost as old as civilization itself. We find e 

__of reincarnation dating back to 2500 B.C. 
and to the reign of Thutmose III fifteen hundre 

_ before the birth of Jesus, antidating the earliest wr 
_ of Judaism. Archeological discoveries have’ sh 
the priests of ancient Egypt taught of the passin 

_ the Soul or BA through different bodies a 
_ physical death. Ancient records in China have hist 
dating back forty-five hundred years that 
they, too, had a belief in rebirth, as taugh 

_ philosophers as Lav-Tze and Chaang-Tze. 
_ founded in the 6th century B.C., had as its 
a belief in reincarnation, which its millions of 
retain to this day. me 
It must be kept in mind that Egypt ands Ch 

which are the oldest civilizations (excluding 
_ bility of Atlantis, Mu, etc.), were the centers of 
‘culture and philosophy, and formulated the 
that time. The earliest Israelites of. 1225 

much Egyptian influence in their ‘religion, as 
‘the teachings of the great law-giver, Mos. 

_ parallels are seen between Hebrew laws and 
sayings of Ptah-Hotep of Egypt on 

of Justice and Righh 

Egypt, and one of the greatest roatheual tic 
Sy aii of the 6th eae? | B. C., ‘Pythas 
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be simply one of a succession of “receptacles” 
ousing of the Soul. 

long list of ancient Greek thinkers followed Pyth- 
and they included such illustrious names as 

Socrates, and Aristotle. In fact, it was St. August- 
who said, “The message of Plato, the purest and 
uminous of all philosophy, has at least scattered 

“darkness of error, and now shines forth mainly in 
s, a Platonist so like his master that one would 

Ik they, live together, or rather, since so long a period 
me separates them, that Plato is born again in 

Clement of Alexandria said, “We were in being 
before the foundation of the world; we existed 

the eye of God, for it is our destiny to live in Him. 
; are the reasonable creatures of Divine Word. Not 
the first time does He show pity on us in our 
nderings. He pities us from the very beginning.” 
Many Christians will continue to say that this is all 
for the non-Christians but, if it is a basic part 

the teachings of Jesus, why do we not have refer- 
e to it in the New Testament? 
ell, first of all, let's remember that many of the 
y Christian writings were either lost over the years, 
deliberately destroyed by the 4th century, A.D. 
me being found in 1947 that escaped destruction, 
d the Dead Sea Scrolls). Such early Christen 

Origen, a Reincarnationist, later found disfavor with 
Church and was considered anathema because of 

erence on such basic subjects as Original Sin, 
ch he said, “We do not-sin because of the first 

having sinned, but the first man sinned for the 
2 reason that we do; because he was still a child 

Spiritual Evolution, and we ourselves are far from 
ing reached perfection.” 
nother quotation from Origen says, “The Soul, which 
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is immaterial and invisible in its 
material place without having a body suite 
- mature of that place; accordingly, es ime 

off one body, which was necessary before, bu Ww. 
is no longer adequate in its changed state 
changes it for a second.” 

Once again referring to St. Augustine, we. 
he was a Platonist, who wrote in his Confessions, 
I not live in another body before — my 
womb?” 
Other early Church leaders who were ‘Re 

ists included Basilides, Tatian the A pologist, Valen 
tinius, Porphyry, Manes, St. Jerome, St. Pamp ili 
St. Gregory, Jamblichus, and oe 

dist. 

by Jesus which have ee: to remain er 
centuries. We find a classic example when Jesus 

to the coast of Caesarea Philippi, and He sa | 
disciples, oe do men say that I, thes = of 

; am?” ; 
hoe answer ee “Some say thou — 

this was nies since all but John the Bayh 
_ been put in their graves, for it is obvious th 

idea of reincarnation was an aco Spe a 
fied no comment. ron 

_ the oe asked, “Master, who did sin, ‘this 
his parents that he was born blind?” 

“Neither,” answered Jesus, “did this man | 
ue parents; but that the works of God should 

manifest in him.” (John 9:1-4). This seems 



iad said that Elias must first come, to which — 

things. But, I say unto you that Elias has 
eady and they knew him not!” The disciples 
tstood that Jesus was referring to John the 
Matthew 17: 10-13) 

Spiritual volition, for eae said that to enter — 
ngdom of God (Oneness) we must be perfect, 

; our Heavenly Father is Perfect, and Final or 
lete Perfection is not possible for most of us in 

ng ae of a few os at most. This takes 

ot th the Jewish and Christian ee as more 
ations are de public. 

of Divine Plan that the end of World War II, 
ited by the use of atomic bombs, ushering in 

Atomic and Space Age, occurred in the same 
oe that the Dead Sea Scrolls were found. | 

: gional scrolls give a very strong indi-— 
ion that Jesus was either an Essene, a student of 

ring the “silent years” from twelve to thirty. 
Iso been speculated that Jesus studied in Egypt, 2 
and even Tibet, ppenee ee little evidence of © 

a ag time His in ssled Him why the oe : 

nswered, “Elias truly shall first come,. and re- — . 

mes, or at least associated very closely with | : 



this has been ee to date 
a very strong link between the teachings re 
those of the Teacher of Righteousness, “who 

_ to the records, lived ney S a ha pe efo 
birth of Jesus. ee 

Beccoveny of the scrolls, hor it is. "indicated tha thi 
formed a very definite link between Judaism and 

_ Christianity, and at a later date, when fierce ed 
raged between Jews and Christians (Jew and Gent 

_ the teachings of the Essenes were deleted fro: 
Canons. As a result, neither group was willing t 
the Essenic teachings, and they were either lo: 3 
destroyed, with the =e. of those recently f : 
at Qumran. - ; 

As I pointed out earlier, it is generally 
that the Essenes were Reincarationists, and 
that their writings were destroyed by early i 

and Jews alike may account in part for the loss of 
eas teaching of reincarnation in the New Testament, 

than for the few examples given here. fa 
The general idea behind reincarnation, and the th 

that lends a practical aspect to it, is that, 

series of incarnations, we are able to gain 4 
Final Perfection through working out our individu 

_ karmas. Our spiritual evolvement must | take 
_ whether we believe in reincarnation or not, f 

must come when we put aside all carnal imperfec 
_ for to enter the Kingdom we must be perfect! _ e 

_ It must be remembered that the spirit of each 
is ageless, just as young today as it was ten thousé 
years ago, and that each incarnation is d igned 1 
further develop it. Reincarnation, whether fact o: 
is at least a logical hypothesis in view of 
for complete perfection. 

In many Le of the- noe a Poe Ss bi 



ulated from ‘fhe’ ae of. Leo optone” ane ee 

that it is hie believed that the Soul or 

her groups, primarily in the West, believe 
Soul does not enter the physical body until 

me of birth, but hovers near the mother for some 
rder to attune to her temperament and to 
tself for entry into the physical world. Still 

ch puberty. The actual time probably makes 
erence, for it does not change the*basic theory _ 

ie covered some of the historical background | 

msider logical in their search for Truth. 
latter part of the 19th century, Charles Fill- _ 
id his wife founded what eventually became 

is Unity School of Christianity. He once said — 
e Western World looks upon reincarnation as a 
1 doctrine, and that many people close the doors 

r minds without waiting to find out what message 
y have for them, interpreted in the Light of Truth. 
is statement had a shocking effect on the church- 
of that day, but, as Marcus Bach wrote in an 

cl . Good Business, a Unity sone “Time 

derful world of Spirit.” 
‘Fillmore, in agreement with Albert Schweit- 
that Christ released us from the bondage of © 
w, allowing us to make the most of each 

nals 

we in the West record age. The reason behind ~— 

ody at the exact moment of con- _ 

ay that the Soul does not enter the body until _ 

icarnation, so it is only logical to look now at - Bd 
some of the modern thinkers and metaphysical _ 

is an fe hication ‘that we are Se more and more on 



ne to mistakes of eee ae itd no 
immediate redemption. This accounts for the caste 
tem of India which prevents the individual fro 
above his station in life, as gained at birth. - 

I would like to mention here that we sho 
confuse the theory of reincarnation with that of 

migration, which is a common error among many. 
migration is the belief that when we die we © 
inhabit the body of a lower animal form, sucl 
cats, etc. This belief is followed by a small 

a India, but has not a foundation in Christian” 
_ for it is not logical to think that God | cause 

sik f 

animals in India. t 

A man who has served as a point of ref 

who passed out of his last incarnation in 194 
left behind a wealth of readings and. research 
that are housed at the Association for Researe 
Enlightenment, which he founded at Virginia 

Virginia in 1931, and which today has over t 
dred active fee! throughout the world. 

Loving Father! As to heuer the ‘eae is” 

or tetarded during these incarnations is left to 

Life is a ne experience, and the ee 

a person finds himself is one in which | he may 



ee tee me the Soul decided to manifest 
> three-dimensional plane. 
yce pointed out that no soul is placed here ac- 
tly. We are all where we are today because we 
chosen” to be there in an effort to work out 

levelopment. 
gar Cayce’s son, Hugh Lynn, once asked if his 
had ever found out how he developed his psychic 

rs, and he was given the answer in a life reading 
gar Cayce which showed that during Cayce’s 
incarnation he had been wounded in battle and 
the field for dead. However, he had managed 
for several days, conscious and in extreme pain. 

‘was not able to move or help himself in any way, 
only his mind as a weapon against pain. Just 
) his physical death he had been able to ele- 

his mind beyond the reach of his body and its 
ring, and since no achievement, good or bad, is 

x lost, the ability to subdue the body and its feel- 
s became a part of the pattern of his individuality, 
he was later able to use this power in the physical 
of Edgar Cayce. 

her writer who has gained a great amount of 
into the field of reincarnation is Fay M. Clark, 
of Beyond the Light. His trips into Cosmic 
sness were made while under the influence of 

Jine, and his answers to various questions were 
recorded, and often in direct conflict with his 

ing when fully conscious. 
trips “beyond the light” varied in length from a 

Minutes to almost one hour, and his return to 
1 consciousness was always voluntary. 

ve you ever wondered why some people are born 
wealthy families and have every comfort that life 
offer, while others are born into dire poverty, with 
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es good parents, and when the boy was killed, 

ie chal sacs kee gee the or Why s 01 
have every advantage that money and social pr 

can bestow, while others stumble along with litt 
in life? Why some people live to extremely 
: while in another case a child is uses only 

__ nothing so far as one can tell? 
The reason for this, according to some ,a ie grea’ ate 2 

metaphysical minds, is because this is but one of m 
lives or incarnations that we experience, and we « 

‘not judge this one life solely on its record, but ra 
as a part of a great Cosmic jigsaw puzzle, 
carnation representing a piece of it, but all 

- eventually creating the whole picture: Final P rfectio 
- Lessons must be learned on this, the Earth P. and 

_ living various roles is the method of doing so. _ ; 
: An example of this might be found in a case 
I know of first-hand, in which a child, just 

years old, was killed by an auto when he ran ou 
the street in front of his home. His family ] 
perienced many marital problems, created to | 

extent by drinking on the part of both parents. 
the boy was born, both gave up drinking and 

returned to the old drinking habit, for they re 

that he was given to them in order to bri 
together and away from their former habits. z 

only conjecture, but could it be that this little f 
had but one more incarnation before Perfectio: 

his role was to bring one more person out of the Je 

_ of degradation in order to gain his At-Ouese= wou 
like to think so. 

In our various lives we do all sorts ‘af thing 
good, some bad, and the conditions under whi 
live in this life are the direct results of things 

186 



“sends” ‘us Ce. oe are where we a 
wo doing. Stop and think this over, and in all 

lan soweth, that shall he also reap!” OF Vall oe 
Biblical ‘quotations, none is truer. We may blame 
rents, employers, the police, the government, and 
ae of other people and circumstances, but -' in. 
nal analysis, it is ourselves we have to blame for — 

ondition. Once we realize this, we can feel that 
_the road to gaining im our spiritual evolu- | 

n other words, we are today the direct result 
t we have heer and have thought, the Universal 

ause and Effect. 

odlent Ve that of Love. It ‘must be ee : 

0 others with whom we have strong emotional 
whether in love or hatred! For this reason we 
completely eliminate all feelings of antipathy 

thers. We must not only release ourselves but 
The key is Love, but if we cannot in all sin-- 
Ove our enemies, we must at least learn to 

them, thus - freeing them and ourselves from 

Bpaal ties. on 
keincarnation has a tendency to further explain such — 
iomena as child prodigies, ‘premature death, and 
as. How could a man like Edison discover or in- | 

» hundreds of things that he did, when he was ~ 
ighly educated scientist? How could Albert Ein- 

safle the scientific world with theories that only 
Il of other geniuses could understand, and. 
lop the atomic bomb mathematically? What 
usical ability of a Beethoven or Bach? Could 

sty, you will have to answer affirmatively. “What- _ 

ind that like attracts like and we are continually _ 



_ Truths, are not easy to understand without Se 
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it. Beene the nan were in fine 
Divine Mind? 
Concerning premature death, especially by \ vic 

such as war, murder, or suicide, it is. pes th 

period of time to continue living among ‘their 
temporaries, and to continue their Evoluti 

' situations and societies similar to those they left. 
What we call * ‘intuition’ or instinct may ie six 

iene forth experiences from the di pa of ot 
lives—a manner of telling us what to do in 
situation, because we have undergone this or a 
event at some earlier time. hate ‘T wo a 

and 10% subconscious memory. 

Many believe that early cave men ‘he ide 
developed intuitive power. Over the centuries w 
lost it to a large part, but we still have it to a de 
ready to develop when we acknowledge its p 

In conclusion, I would like to reiterate # 
majority of the world’s religions have believe 
form of rebirth, and that it is highly probable 
reincarnation was a basic part of the early Ch 
teachings, as shown by the various biblical re 

to it, as well as the statements of well known 

leaders of the early centuries. 

an churches with oe esoteric teachin Ae lacing 

them. Reincarnation, as well as other Metapl 
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er reasons - aay. be given for ecamianon: they 
to the fact that it is the logical method | 

ich the individual] reaches God Consciousness. | 
our many incarnations we are able to gain full — 

of the many facets of life. We are able to 
being men at one time and women at 
are parents and children, young and old, 

es, We must learn, and the sooner the better, 
mble, tolerant, and above all else, to love one 
ee by the Nes religious | leaders of 

‘od we are doing more soul-searching. than ever 
: ve oe dee can not allow us to rea ee 
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